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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
Regd.Office: 274, DHANDARI KHURD, G.T. ROAD,
LUDHIANA,141 014 PUNJAB (INDIA)

CIN: L51909PB2000PLC0O23679

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be
held on Thursday, the 28" day of April, 2022 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing / Other
Audio Visual Means to transact the following business(es):

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:-
1.  Toreceive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2020 including the Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the
financial year ended on that date together with the report of Board of Directors &
Auditors thereon.

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2020 including the Statement of Profit & Loss Account
for the financial year ended on that date together with the report of Auditors
thereon.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

2. TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT
MODIFICATION(S), THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148(3) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 including any statutory amendments and modifications thereof, for the time
being in force, the remuneration payable to M/s Jatin Sharma & Co., Cost Accountants,
Firm Registration Number: 101845, appointed by the Board of Directors to conduct the
Audit of the cost accounting records of the Company for the Financial year 2020-21
amounting to Rs.77,000 exclusive of GST as applicable and re-imbursement of out of
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified

and confirmed.”
By Order of the Board,
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

Ludhiana, 31.03.2022 (NAVEEN ARORA)
Regd. Off.: DIRECTOR
274, Dhandari Khurd, G.T. Raod DIN:09114375

Ludhiana-141014 (Pb.)
CIN: L51909PB2000PLC023679



NOTES:

1

In view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, social distancing is a
norm to be followed. Accordingly, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular
No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular
No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/C
F D/ C M D 1 [/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 allowed conducting
Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM) without the physical presence of members at a common venue. Thus, in
compliance with the said Circulars, the 20th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company will be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM). Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM.

The relative Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in Respect of
Item(s) of Special Business is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

The venue of the Meeting shall be deemed to be the registered office of the Company.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013, body corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-
voting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM alongwith Annual
Report for the year 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Depositories. Members may note that Notice
and Annual Report 2019-20 has been uploaded on the website of the Company. The Notice
can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com,
respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for
providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.
www.evotingindia.com.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books shall remain closed from April 22, 2022
to April 28, 2022 (both days inclusive).

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
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mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will
be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first servedbasis.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended, securities of listed
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form except in case of request received
for transmission or transposition of securities.

In view of the above and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease
of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact Company's Registrar
and Transfer Agent: M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for assistance in this regard.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Details by every participant in the securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to
their Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
submit their self attested copy of PAN card and bank details alongwith Original cancelled
cheque leaf/attested bank passbook showing name of account holder and address, to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd..

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, etc. will be available for
inspection in electronic mode during the AGM. All other documents referred to in the
Notice will be available for inspection without any fee by the members from the date of
circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM i.e. April 28,2022,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI ( Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020,
May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021 and December 14, 2021 the
Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business
to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has availed the services of
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be
provided by CDSL.

14. The members who have voted through remote e- voting will be eligible to attend the AGM

but they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.



INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOVE E-VOTING AND E-
VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM
AREASUNDER:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The voting period begins on 25" April, 2022 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 27" April,
2022 (5:00 p.m.). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
(record date) of 21% April, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be
entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at
a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs
and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In_terms of SEBI circular _no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their
demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode
CDSL/NSDLIis given below:

| Type of [ Login Method




shareholders

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1)

2)

3)

4)

Userswho have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Myeasi.

After successful loginthe Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME,
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website
directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistrat
ion.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link
availableon ~ www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on




2)

3)

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL.: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in

demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-
Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised

to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned

website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL




Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738

and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990

and 1800 22 44 30

(v)

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual AGM for Physical shareholders
and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual
shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the




Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy

Bank format) as recorded in your demat account or in the RTA records in

Details order to login.

OR Date e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
of  Birth RTA, please enter the member id / folio number in the
(DOB) Dividend Bank details field.

(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the
Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

(viii)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix)  Click on the EVSN for SEL Manufacturing Company Limited on which you
choose to vote.

(x)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired.
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolution details.

(xii)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiiiy  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to

modify your vote.



(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For
Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register

themselves in the “Corporates” module.
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be
able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer at
shivaligupta393@gmail.com and to the Company at the email address Vviz,
info@selindia.in, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same

as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.



2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend
the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for
better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance
atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at info@selindia.in. The Company
reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the AGM. The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may
send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
info@selindia.in.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE RTA/DEPOSITORIES.
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1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No.,
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy
of Aadhar Card) by email to delhi@linkintime.co.in.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no.
with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-
Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

Other instructions:

i)

i)

i)

Vi)

vii)

Voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on cut off date.

The Company has appointed M/s Gupta Shivali and Associates, Practising
Company Secretary (Membership No. 30617), to act as the Scrutinizer to
the e-voting process i.e. votes cast during the AGM and votes cast through
remote e-voting, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the Company
(‘the Chairman’) or to any other person authorized by the Chairman after
the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM
and votes cast through remote e-voting), not later than 48 hours from the
conclusion of the AGM.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on
the website of the Company i.e. www.selindia.in on the website of CDSL
i.e. www.cdslindia.com. The results shall simultaneously be
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolution shall be
deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting i.e. 28th
April, 2022.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of
the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-
off date i.e. 21% April, 2022 may follow the same instructions as
mentioned above for e-Voting.

A person who is not a Member as on the cut off date i.e. 21st April, 2022
should treat this Notice for information purposes only.
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If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services
(India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, MarathonFuturex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M
Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF ITEMS OF SPECIAL
BUSINESS:

FOR ITEM NO.2:

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the
appointment of and Remuneration payable to M/s Jatin Sharma & Co., Cost Accountants for the
audit of cost accounting records of the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules 2014, for the Financial Year 2020-21 at a remuneration of Rs. 77,000/- excluding
the applicable GST and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by him in connection
with the audit.

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor as determined by the Board is required to be
ratified by the members of the Company. Board recommends this resolution for the approval of
the members.

None of the Directos, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are
in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the above Resolution(s).

The Board Recommends this Resolution for your approval.

By Order of the Board,
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

Ludhiana, 31.03.2022 (NAVEEN ARORA)
Regd. Off.: DIRECTOR
274, Dhandari Khurd, G.T. Raod DIN:09114375

Ludhiana-141014 (Pb.)
CIN: L51909PB2000PLC023679
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members
SEL Manufacturing Company Ltd.

The Directors hereby present the 20th Annual Report on the affairs of the company
together with Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Rupees in Lacs)
Current Year Previous year
(2019-20) (2018-19)
Revenue from Operations 29104.29 45910.97
Other Income 7659.79 7539.42
36764.08 53450.39
Less
Expenditure 36056.30 49228.14

Depreciation &Amortization 10782.78 46839.08 10883.24 60111.38

Profit/ (loss)before exceptional items

And tax: (10075.00) (6660.98)
Exceptional Items 244026.36 16935.56
Profit/ (Loss) before tax: (254101.36) (23596.54)
Less

Taxes : -- -=
Profit/ (Loss) from continuing Operations (254101.36) (23596.54)
Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing Operations -- --
Profit/(Loss) for the period (254101.36) (23596.54)
Other Comprehensive Income
i)Items that will not be reclassified 62.28 401.41

to Profit or loss

ii) Items that will be reclassified (779.99) (351.90)

to Profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)for the Period (254819.07) (23547.03)

The Directors of the Reconstituted Board were not in office for the period to which these
report/annexures primarily pertains. During the CIRP Process (i.e. between 11th April,
2018 and 12th March, 2021), Resolution Professional (RP) was entrusted with and
responsible for the management of the affairs of the Company. The Reconstituted Board
is submitting these reports/annexures in compliance with the Act and other Regulations
and the Directors, as on date, are not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary
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duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company
and performance of the management for the period prior to the acquisition.

BUSINESS:

The Company is in the business of textiles with production facilities located at different
parts of India.

State of Company’s affairs:

During the year under review, your company has achieved Revenue from Operations of
Rs. 29104.29 lacs as compared to Rs. 45910.97 lacs in the previous year. After
deducting Expenses and Exceptional Items there was Loss of Rs. 254101.36 lacs as
compared to Loss of Rs. 23596.54 lacs during the previous year.

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) by State Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing
Company Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time (“Code”), the NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order”)
dated April 11, 2018 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) had admitted the application
for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the
Corporate Debtor. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated April 25, 2018 (“IRP
Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, as the interim resolution professional of
the Corporate Debtor (“IRP”).

Subsequently, on a writ petition filed by the Corporate Debtor and the managing director
of the Corporate Debtor against the Admission Order, the Hon’ble High Court of Punjab
and Haryana (“High Court”) vide its order dated May 01, 2018, while disallowing the
writ petition, kept the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor in abeyance and ordered that the IRP
not take over the management of the Corporate Debtor till May 15, 2018 (“First
Abeyance Order”). Pursuant to the First Abeyance Order, the existing management of
the Corporate Debtor continued to manage the affairs of the Corporate Debtor during the
period of abeyance. Against the First Abeyance Order, a special leave petition was filed
before the Hon’ble Supreme Court, which, while dismissing the said special leave
petition, vide its order dated May 12, 2018, extended the abeyance of the CIRP by
another week, during which period the existing management retained control over the
management of the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, upon the lapse of the period of
abeyance, as stipulated by the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor
resumed on May 21, 2018 and Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, resumed his position and
duties as the IRP on the same date. Thereafter, in accordance with the provisions of the
Code, the first meeting of the committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtor was held on
June 15, 2018 wherein inter alia the IRP was confirmed as the resolution professional of
the Corporate Debtor (“Resolution Professional”).
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Subsequently, a petition was filed by one of the promoters and directors of the Corporate
Debtor, before the High Court (“Petition”’) wherein the High Court, vide its interim order
dated June 22, 2018, directed the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance
(“Second Abeyance Order”) and directed the earlier board of directors of the Corporate
Debtor to operate their bank accounts and bank operations as before the initiation of the
CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to protect the interest of the bank consortium. This Petition
was transferred to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”). The Hon’ble
Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed the
Transferred Case as withdrawn (“Withdrawal Order”). A copy of the Withdrawal Order
was published on September 11, 2019 (“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on and from
the Publication Date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the Resolution
Professional had resumed his position as such.

As such on and from the Publication Date, the Resolution Professional had again
assumed control over the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor and the
powers of the board of directors of the Corporate Debtor.

As narrated above, the Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process (“CIRP”) in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 read with the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons)
Regulations 2016. Upon re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was
handed over from the existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed
by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Further the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on February
10, 2021 approved the Resolution plan submitted by Consortium of Arr Ess Industries
Private Limited and Leading Edge Commercial FZE (“Consortium” or “Resolution
Applicant”) in respect of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (“Company”) and the
Monitoring Committee (“MC”) of the Company (constituted in terms of the Resolution
Plan) in its meeting held on March 13, 2021 duly appointed the nominees of the
Resolution Applicant as Directors of the Company and approved the reconstitution of the
Board of Directors of the Company (“Reconstituted Board”). The Reconstituted Board
has just been formed on March 13, 2021 and is in process to regularise all the issues at
the earliest.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY/FIRM(S) :

As at 31.03.2020, the Company had the following Subsidiary Company(ies) namely SEL
Aviation Pvt. Ltd., SEL Textiles Ltd., Silverline Corporation Ltd., and also a subsidiary
firm namely M/s SE Exports.

The Annual Accounts/Financial Statements of the Subsidiary companies/firms and the

related detailed information shall be made available to shareholders of the holding and
subsidiary companies seeking such information at any point of time.
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Further the Annual Accounts/Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies are kept
for inspection by any shareholders in the head office i.e. the Registered Office of the
holding company and of the subsidiary companies concerned.

Your company continued to hold 99% stake in the partnership firm namely M/s SE
Exports.

SEL Textiles Ltd., the wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company, engaged in the business
of textiles and the said Company consists two spinning unit(s) one at Neemrana
(Rajasthan) and one at Hansi, Hissar (Haryana) and a terry towel unit at Nawa Sheher
Punjab, Spinning unit at Vill Punjava-Lambi, Tehsil Malout, Dist Sri Muktsar Sahib
(Punjab). Further SEL Textiles Ltd., has a subsidiary company i.e. M/s Silverline
Corporation Ltd.. SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd., subsidiary of the company is in the business of
Aviation services. The contribution of Subsidiaries in the overall performance is as given
in Consolidated Financial Statements. Further the Report on financial position of
subsidiaries alongwith names of companies which have ceased to be its subsidiaries,
associate companies etc. during the year has been duly provided as an Attachment in
prescribed Form AOCI.

Consolidated Financial Statements:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, prepared and
presented in accordance with Accounting Standard, are attached to and form part of the
Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A separate section on Corporate Governance and a Certificate regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance, forms part of the Annual Report

DIVIDEND:

No dividend has been recommended for the Financial year 2019-20.

SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS, EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION,
SWEAT EUITY SHARES:

During the year, the company has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Rights,
Employee Stock Options and/or Sweat Equity Shares.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

During the year, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
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The Company has complied with applicable secretarial Standards.

DIRECTORS & KMP:

As narrated before, the Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process (“CIRP”) in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 read with the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons)
Regulations 2016. Upon re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was
handed over from the existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed
by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Mr. Ashwani Kumar resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 17.08.2019 and Mrs. Paramjit
Kaur also resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 07.11.2019 and Mr. Joginder Kumar Gupta
ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.07.2019 respectively.

LISTING WITH EXCHANGES AND LISTING FEES:

The Equity Shares of the Company are presently listed with Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE) and The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE). Further the
Company has paid listing fees to both the exchanges (i.e. BSE and NSE) upto financial
year 2021-22.

AUDITORS:

M/s Malhotra Manik & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration No. 015848N) were appointed as Auditors of the Company for a term of five
years.

AUDITORS' REPORT:

A) With reference to the Auditors remarks regarding non provision of interest on
NPA classified bank borrowings, it was stated that the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process has been initiated under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016, In view of this, the Company has stopped providing interest accrued and
unpaid effective Ist April, 2016 in its books. The amount of such accrued and
unpaid interest, calculated according to the CDR term, not provided for is
estimated at Rs. 57,777 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and the same
has not been considered for preparation of the financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2020. Due to non provision of the interest expense, net loss for
the year ended 31st March, 2020 is reduced by Rs. 57,777 lakhs. Further the
Financial Liability is reduced by Rs. 201,240 lakhs and correspondingly the
equity is increased by the same amount.

B) With reference to remark on Impairment testing valuation repots, it was stated
that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated
under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016”. In view of this, the impairment
of Capital WIP is done on the basis of valuation report as at the Insolvency
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Commencement Date. However, the said valuation Reports are not shared to any
person/authority considering the confidentiality of the same.

Further the report of Auditors and notes on accounts are self explanatory and there are
no further adverse remarks/qualified opinion by the Auditors.

COST AUDITORS:

In terms of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to maintain cost accounting
records and get them audited every year and accordingly such accounts and records are
made and maintained. The Board appointed M/s. Jatin Sharma & Co., Cost Accountants,
as cost auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a fee of INR 77,000
plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses subject to the ratification of the said fees
by the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting. The cost audit report for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020 has been filed with the Central Government.

Number of Board Meetings held during the year:

The Board met 5 times during the financial year 2019-20 till the CIRP of the Corporate
Debtor stood restored and the Resolution Professional had resumed his position, the
details of which are given in corporate governance section.

Annual Evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of
Individual Directors:

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Declaration by Independent Directors as required under Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

All the then Independent directors of the company had given their statement of
declaration under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that they meet
the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, and their
Declarations have been taken on record.

18



Development and implementation of a Risk Management Policy: The main objective
of Risk Management is risk reduction and avoidance as also identification of the risks
faced by the business and optimize the risk management strategies. The Company has put
in place a well-defined Risk Management framework for drawing up, implementing,
monitoring and reviewing the Risk Management. It controls the risks through properly
defined framework.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Details of loans, guarantees and investments by the Company to other body corporates or
persons are given in Financial Statements/Notes to the financial statements.

MATERIAL AND SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS &
COURTS

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) by State Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing
Company Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time (“Code”), the NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order”)
dated April 11, 2018 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) had admitted the application
for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the
Corporate Debtor. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated April 25, 2018 (“IRP
Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, as the interim resolution professional of
the Corporate Debtor (“IRP”).

Subsequently, on a writ petition filed by the Corporate Debtor and the managing director
of the Corporate Debtor against the Admission Order, the Hon’ble High Court of Punjab
and Haryana (“High Court”) vide its order dated May 01, 2018, while disallowing the
writ petition, kept the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor in abeyance and ordered that the IRP
not take over the management of the Corporate Debtor till May 15, 2018 (“First
Abeyance Order”). Pursuant to the First Abeyance Order, the existing management of
the Corporate Debtor continued to manage the affairs of the Corporate Debtor during the
period of abeyance. Against the First Abeyance Order, a special leave petition was filed
before the Hon’ble Supreme Court, which, while dismissing the said special leave
petition, vide its order dated May 12, 2018, extended the abeyance of the CIRP by
another week, during which period the existing management retained control over the
management of the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, upon the lapse of the period of
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abeyance, as stipulated by the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor
resumed on May 21, 2018 and Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, resumed his position and
duties as the IRP on the same date. Thereafter, in accordance with the provisions of the
Code, the first meeting of the committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtor was held on
June 15, 2018 wherein inter alia the IRP was confirmed as the resolution professional of
the Corporate Debtor (“Resolution Professional”).

Subsequently, a petition was filed by one of the promoters and directors of the Corporate
Debtor, before the High Court (“Petition’’) wherein the High Court, vide its interim order
dated June 22, 2018, directed the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance
(“Second Abeyance Order”) and directed the earlier board of directors of the Corporate
Debtor to operate their bank accounts and bank operations as before the initiation of the
CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to protect the interest of the bank consortium. This Petition
was transferred to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”). The Hon’ble
Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed the
Transferred Case as withdrawn (“Withdrawal Order”). A copy of the Withdrawal Order
was published on September 11, 2019 (“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on and from
the Publication Date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the Resolution
Professional had resumed his position as such.

As such on and from the Publication Date, the Resolution Professional had again
assumed control over the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor and the
powers of the board of directors of the Corporate Debtor.

Further the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on February
10, 2021 approved the Resolution plan submitted by Consortium of Arr Ess Industries
Private Limited and Leading Edge Commercial FZE (“Consortium” or “Resolution
Applicant”) in respect of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (“Company”) and the
Monitoring Committee (“MC”) of the Company (constituted in terms of the Resolution
Plan) in its meeting held on March 13, 2021 duly appointed the nominees of the
Resolution Applicant as Directors of the Company and approved the reconstitution of the
Board of Directors of the Company (“Reconstituted Board™).

No other significant and material orders have been passed by any regulators or courts or
tribunals against the Company impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS
Apart from the Orders of NCLT and other Court(s) Orders and State of Company’s
Affairs as stated earlier, no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial

position of the Company have occurred after the end of the financial year 2019-20 and till
the date of this report.

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:
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Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace
for every individual working in SEL through various interventions and practices. The
Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company always endeavors to create and
provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual
harassment. The Company believes in prevention of harassment of employees as well as
contractors. During the year ended 31 March, 2020, no complaints pertaining to sexual
harassment were received.

RELEVANT EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, forms an integral part of Board Report.
Form MGT-9 is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at
www.selindia.in/policy.html

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
The report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed to this report as Annexure V.

With reference to Secretarial Auditors comments regarding not having alteast Half of the
Board of Independent Directors as per the requirements under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as per SEBI (LODR) Third
Amendment Regulations, 2018 the provisions as specified in Regulation 17 etc. of the
SEBI(LODR) Regulations, shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution
process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency
resolution process under the Insolvency code.

With reference to other comments regarding Non-submission of Financial Results in
time under Regulation 33 (3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for quarter/half year ended
30.09.2019, and for the quarter/nine months period ended 31.12.2019, the Company
was under CIRP process during that period and the Exchanges were informed in respect
of interalia the insolvency commencement date, the appointment of the RP etc.

Further the “Secretarial Auditors” report is self explanatory and therefore does not
require further comments and explanation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted a policy to regulate the transactions of the Company with its
related parties. As per policy, all related party transactions require approval as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations. The said policy is
available on the Company’s website viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html
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Further the Company has also formulated a policy for determining ‘material’
subsidiaries.  The said policy is available on the Company’s website viz.
www.selindia.in/policy.html. Details of transactions are also given in Annexure IV to this
report in the prescribed form.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has in place a whistleblower policy, to support the Code of Business
Ethics. This policy documents the Company’s commitment to maintain an open work
environment in which employees, consultants and contractors are able to report instances
of unethical or undesirable conduct, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of
Company’s Code of Business Ethics at a significantly senior level without fear of
intimidation or retaliation.

Individuals can also raise their concerns directly to the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Any allegations that fall within the scope of the concerns identified are
investigated and dealt with appropriately. Further, during the year, no individual was
denied access to the Audit Committee/Relevant Authority for reporting concerns, if any.
The details of establishment of vigil mechanism for Directors & employees to report
genuine concerns are available at the website of the Company viz.
www.selindia.in/policy.html

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR DIRECTORS

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year, there was no change in the Capital Structure of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

For the year 2019-20, till the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the
Resolution Professional had resumed his position, the Board had constituted its Audit
Committee pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. The Audit Committee of the Company comprised of the following members
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namely Mr. Ashwani Kumar, Mr. Ranjan Madaan, Mrs. Paramjit Kaur and Mr. Navneet
Gupta. Sh. Ashwani Kumar was the chairman of the said committee.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo is given in Annexure I to this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, the names and other particulars of employees are set out in the Annexure-II
to this report and forms part of this report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors approving the financial statements assured that the financial statements for
the year under review conform in their entirety to the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Directors approving the financial statements confirmed that:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts/financial statements, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

e Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2020
and of the profit/loss of the Company for the year ended on 31 March, 2020;

e Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

e The annual accounts/financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

e That Internal financial controls were laid down to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating

effectively.

e Proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the
existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

The annual report on CSR containing particulars specified in Companies (CSR Policy)
Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure III. The CSR policy of the Company is also placed on
the website of the Company viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html
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For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.
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DATED : 31.03.2022 WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:09114375 DIN: 00551773
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ANNEXURE-I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

A. Conservation of energy

i) Steps taken or Impact on conservation of energy:

The company provides high priority to energy conservation schemes to conserve natural
resources and is regularly taking effective steps to conserve energy wherever possible.
This continues to remain thrust area with studies, discussions and analysis being
undertaken regularly for further improvements. Energy Conservation is an ongoing
process in the Company. The Company continued its efforts to improve energy
usage efficiencies.

ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of
energy:

SEL continues to work on reducing carbon footprint in all its areas of
operations through initiatives like a) green infrastructure b) green IT
(data centers, 1laptops and servers etc. <c) operational energy
efficiency, d) Green data centers. e) Power generation thorough own
captive power plants.

iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipments etc.:

The company has installed its own Captive Power Plant (CPP turbine). The details of its
utilisation is given as under:

(a)Captive Power Plant (CPP Turbine) 2019-20 2018-19
Units (Lacs) 562.05 715.62
Husk per Unit (Kg) 1.69 1.69
Cost/Unit (Rs.) 6.03 6.22

B. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Specific areas in which R & D activities/Technology Abrorption were
carried out by the company

e Quality Improvement

e Yield/Productivity Improvement

e Energy Conservation

e New Technology/Product development

Benefits Derived

e Better Quality; reduced wastages

¢ Cleaner environment

e Safer operations and improved competitiveness

Future Plan of Action

Management is committed to strengthen R & D activities for
product development and to improve its competitiveness in the
times to come.
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PLACE
DATED

Expenditure on R & D
(Rs. In Lacs)
a) Capital I
b) Recurring : --
Total e

Technology Absorption

The Company has not imported any technology from abroad during
the 1last five years. However the company has been using the
imported machinery. The Company has been making efforts for
absorption of latest technology.

Benefits Derived

The Company has achieved improvement in quality and lower cost of
production.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO, EFFORTS AND INITIATIVES IN
RELATION TO EXPORTS:

The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of
export opportunities based on economic considerations. There
have been concentrated efforts to maintain and improve exports

performance and to meet the need of end users.

(Rs. in Lacs)

2019-20 2018-19
(1) Foreign Exchange earned
(a) FOB value of exports as 4529.72 20221.18
per Balance Sheet
(b) Overseas Income - --
(ii) Foreign Exchange used
(a) CIF value of Imports 104.16 372.22
(b) Other Expenditure 153.97 599.98

(c )Overseas Expenditures -- -

For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

LUDHIANA (NAVEEN ARORA) (RAJEEV BHALLA)
31.03.2022 WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:09114375 DIN: 00551773
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ANNEXURE-II TO THE DIRECTORS’

REPORT

Information pursuant to provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31% March,

2020:
Name Age | Designation | Gross Qualification | Experie | Dt. Of joining | Previous %age of Eq.
(Yrs) Remn. nce Employment Shares held
(Rs.) (Yrs.) as on
31.03.2019
Mr. Neeraj | 53 Managing | 40,00,000 Diplomain | 28 Yrs | 30.03.2006 | SEL Mfg. (2.98%)
Saluja Director business Co. Ltd.
& COO Administra
-ton
Mr. Dhiraj | 48 | Jt. 24,00,000 Degree in 24 Yrs | 28.05.2007 | SEL Mfg. (2.53%)
Saluja Managing Mechanical Co. Ltd.
Director Engineeri-
& CMO ng
Mr. Vinod | 61 Executive | 42,00,000 MBA 39 Yrs | 13.07.2010 | Vardhman (0.00%)
Kumar Director Texgarment
Goyal & CEO s Ltd./
Vardhman
Textiles Ltd.
Mr. 50 | Executive | 20,00,000 CA 25 Yrs. | 08-05-2008 | SEL Mfg. (0.00%)
Navneet Director Co. Ltd.
Gupta & CFO
Mr. Manuj | 51 President 29 Malwa (0.00%)
Mehta (HR) 5120004 MBA 22-11-2010 Industries
Yrs. Ltd.

. resident . .00Y
?;I;anta » fOi)sef;tio B'Te.Ch' N |33 Va”a.bh (0-00%)
Kumar ns) 4464000 Textile Yrs 08-04-2013 | Textile Co.

tech. ) Ltd. Ldh.

Das
Mr. 53 | President B.Tech. in (0.00%)
Anchal (Commerc | 3480000 Textile 31 30-08-2010 \T/a“t’.rm?_r: g
Kumar ial) tech. yrs. extiies
Mr. 55 President 31 Vardhman (0.00%)
Rajesh (Raw 4224000 MBA 29-11-2010 | Textiles
Singla material) vrs. Ltd.
Mr. 45 Asstt. 3300000 Diplomain | 23 Yrs. | 04-11-2008 | Vanasthali | (0.00%)
Raman Vice FD Textile
Kumar President Ind.Ltd.

(Marketin

g
Mr. 47 | President | 4104000 B.Tech 21 01-04-2008 | Cheema (0.00%)
Chhotu (Marketin Spintex
Ali g)
Mr. 53 | Asstt. 2784000 Diplomain | 31 12-10-2007 | Vardhman | (0.00%)
Mukhwind Vice textiles textiles Ltd.
er Pal President
Singh (Productio

n)
Mr. 48 | President | 2250000 Diplomain | 25 28-11-2006 | Aarti (0.00%)
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Deepak (HR) Manageme Internation

Chauhan nt al

Mr. Sudhir | 50 | Sr. 2376000 B. Techin | 30 31-05-2010 | Vardhman | (0.00%)
Kumar Manager Textile textiles Ltd.

Yadav Tech.

*Remuneration received includes basic salary, allowances, taxable value of perquisites etc..
*The nature of employment i.e. the tenure of Appointment for Managing Director/Executive Director is for a period of

3 years.

Other employees are on Roll of the Company.

*Mr. Neeraj Saluja and Mr. Dhiraj Saluja are sons of Mr. Ram Saran Saluja, all were on the Board of the Company.
None of other Director/employees are related to any director which were on the Board of the Company.

Nature of Duties:

Employees are incharge of their respective departments as narrated above.

PLACE
DATED

LUDHIANA
31.03.2022

For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

(NAVEEN ARORA)
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
DIN: 09114375

(RAJEEV BHALLA)
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00551773
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MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed company is required to disclose following
information in the Board report.

(a) ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for the financial year;

NAME DESIGNATION RATIO TO MEDIAN
REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

Mr. Ram Saran Saluja Director 0

Mr. Neeraj Saluja Managing Director & COO 23.89

Mr. Dhiraj Saluja Jt. Managing Director & | 14.33

CMO

Mr. Vinod Kumar Goyal Executive Director & CEO 25.09

Mr. Navneet Gupta Executive Director & CFO 11.95

Mr. Ashwani Kumar Independent Director 0.17

Mr. Ranjan Madaan Independent Director 0.39

Ms. Paramjit Kaur Independent Director 0.33

*computed based on annualized remuneration.

(b) increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

During the financial year 2019-20 there has not been any increase in the Remuneration to Managing
Director/whole time Directors of the Company. The company has not paid any profit linked commission to
non-executive Independent Directors of the Company. During the year, there has also been no further
increase in remuneration during the year for Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company.

(c) percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year;

7.00%

(d) number of permanent employees on the rolls of company;

6604

(e) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The average increase in the remuneration of employees was 7.00%. During the financial year 2019-20,
there has not been any increase in the Remuneration to Managing Director/whole time Directors of the
Company. The company has not paid any profit linked commission to non-executive independent
Directors of the Company. Further during the year, there has also been no further increase in remuneration
during the year for Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary of the Company.
Accordingly, there is no comparative information in this regard.

(f) We hereby affirm that the remuneration paid to the managerial and non-managerial personnel is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company
For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

PLACE : LUDHIANA (NAVEEN ARORA) (RAJEEV BHALLA)
DATED : 31.03.2022 WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:09114375 DIN: 00551773

29



ANNEXURE-III TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or
programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programmes.

We at SEL are always committed towards sustainability. We do recognise that our business
activities have wide impact on the society in which we operate, and therefore an effective practice
is required with due consideration to the interests of our stakeholders. Our strategy is to create
meaningful societal value, to enhance the competitiveness of value chains that we are part of. It is
our conscious strategy to design and implement Social Investment Programmes in our business
context and enriching value for the disadvantaged sections of society through economic
empowerment and growth. This entails transcending business interests and quality of life for the
upliftment of all and working towards making a better world for all sections of the society.

The Company’s Policy including the projects/programs, the company intends to undertake
includes:

To align and integrate Corporate Social Responsibility programmes with the business value chain
of the Company and make them outcome oriented and to support creation of sustainable livelihood
sources.

To ensure environmental sustainability by adopting best ecological practices and encouraging
conservation use of natural resources.

Establishment of Primary Health Care Centres.

Girl Child Education: focus on education of girl child and the underpriviliged by providing
appropriate infrasturcture and groom them as future value creators.

Mother and Child care projects and preventive health through awareness programmes.

Vocational training: Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise to
the vulnerable thereby empowering them towards a dignified life and enhance their means of
livelihood.

Basic Infrastructure facilities: Creating inclusive and enabling infrastructure/environment for
livable communities.

Housing facilities: Strive to provide awareness for creating public infrastructure that is barrier free,
enabling for all including the elderly and the disabled.

Safe drinking water/Sanitation & Hygiene: To emphasize on providing basis health care facilities
and establishing health centers for the elderly and disabled.

Optimum use of Renewable sources of energy/maintaining quality of air, water and soil.
Awareness programmes on anti-social issues and Espousing basic moral values/Gender equality,
empowering women.

Crisis management: To respond to emergency situations & natural dissters by providing timely
help to affected victims and their families/contribution to such funds as may be set up by the
Central Government for socio-economic development.

To strive for sustainable development in areas of strategic interest through initiatives designed in a
manner that addresses the challenges faced by Indian society/promote rural development projects.
To join with other insititutions/society etc. to contribute to the national mission of eardicating
hunger and poverty and other social causes.

To sustain and improve standards of Health Safety and Environment.
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The CSR policy of the Company is also placed on the website of the Company viz.

PLACE
DATED

www.selindia.in/policy.html
Composition of CSR Committee

Upon re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over
from the existing board of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the
Hon’ble NCLT. Earlier the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists
of Sh. Ranjan Madaan (Chairman), Smt. Paramjit Kaur and Sh. Ram Saran Saluja.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years

N.A since losses were incurred.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above)

N.A.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year :

a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year; N.A.

b. Amount unspent, if any; N.A

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year N.A.

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent, of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

N.A.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company.

N.A.

Manner in which amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

--N.A--
For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.
: LUDHIANA (NAVEEN ARORA) (RAJEEV BHALLA)
31.03.2022 WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN:09114375 DIN: 00551773
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ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
--NONE--
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an
arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
Listing Agreement. There were no materially significant related party transactions made
by the Company with promoters, Directors, key managerial personnel or other designated
persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
The details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the accompanying
financial statements.

For and on Behalf of the Board
For SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LTD.

PLACE : LUDHIANA (NAVEEN ARORA) (RAJEEV BHALLA)
DATED : 31.03.2022 WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:09114375 DIN: 00551773
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Annexure-V
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2020
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

SEL Manufacturing Company Limited
274, Dhandari Khurd, G.T. Road,
LUDHIANA 141014 (PUNJAB)

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by SEL Manufacturing
Company Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate
conducts/Statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the SEL Manufacturing Company Limited books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by SEL Manufacturing Company Limited, for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder;

(ii1))  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

%) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent they
were applicable to the Company:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client:

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;

(vi)  We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its
Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for
compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the
Company and records in pursuant thereto, on test-check basis, we report
that the Company has generally complied with the following laws
applicable to the Company:

Factories Act, 1948

Labour Laws

Acts prescribed under prevention and control of Pollution/Environment
Protection.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
i1) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and the

National Stock Exchange of India Limited/ SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc., to the extent applicable, as mentioned
above subject to the following observations/non-compliance:

Al)

A2)

As per clause 17(1)(b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of the
Company does not consist to have alteast Half of the Board of Independent
Directors as per the requirement under said clause of the Listing Regulations.

Non-submission of Financial Results in time under Regulation 33 (3) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for quarter/half year ended 30.09.2019, and for
the quarter/nine months period ended 31.12.2019.

We further state that:

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) by State Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing
Company Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time (“Code”), the NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order”)
dated April 11, 2018 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) had admitted the application
for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the
Corporate Debtor. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated April 25, 2018 (“IRP
Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta (Regn No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P00001/2016-17/10009) as the Interim resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor
(“IRP”) who was later confirmed as Resolution Professional of the Company.

Subsequently, a petition was filed by one of the promoters and directors of the Corporate
Debtor, before the High Court (“Petition”) wherein the High Court, vide its interim order
dated June 22, 2018, directed the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance.
This Petition was transferred to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”). The
Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed
the Transferred Case as withdrawn (“Withdrawal Order”). A copy of the Withdrawal
Order was published on September 11, 2019 (“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on and
from the Publication Date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the
Resolution Professional has resumed its position.

During the period under review Board Meetings were held till the corporate insolvency
resolution process of the Corporate Debtor stood restored. After restoration of the
corporate insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, the
powers of Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and the said powers were
exercised by the Resolution Professional. As a result thereof, Committee of Creditors
held its meetings from time to time during the period under review.

We further report that till the restoration of the corporate insolvency resolution process as
stated aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors
under the Act, subject to our observations/non-compliances as mentioned at Para A(1)
above. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We may further state here that as provided under Sub-Regulation 2A and 2B in
Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions as specified in Regulation
17,18,19,20 and 21 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, shall not be applicable during the
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insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing
corporate insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency code.

Further, adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings;
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions at
the board meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not made any further
Issue of Capital or redemption/buy-back of Securities, Merger, Amalgamation, or
Foreign Technical Collaborations etc.

For P. Sharma & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Pawan Sharma
Place: Bhatinda ACS No.: 15148
Date: 13.02.2021 C P No.: 12316

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report

36



ANNEXURE A
To,
The Members,
SEL Manufacturing Company Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

a) Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial
statements of the Company.

d) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

e) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For P. Sharma & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Pawan Sharma
Place: Bhatinda ACS No.: 15148
Date: 13.02.2021 CP No.: 12316
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Annexure-VI: Remuneration Policy
1. Policy

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and all other
employees of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (“the Company”) is based on the commitment of
fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is aligned to this philosophy.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Clauses of the Equity Listing Agreement (“Listing Agreement”)/SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In case of any inconsistency
between the provisions of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the
company shall abide by the applicable law.

While formulating this policy, the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act have been considered,
which are as under:

“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Non-Executive
Directors:

e Independent directors (“ID”) and non-independent non-executive directors (“NED”’) may be paid
sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which they may be
members) and commission within regulatory limits.

e  Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

e  Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into
consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).

e Opverall remuneration should be reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration.

e  Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognised best practices.

e Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

e The aggregate commission payable to all the Non executive Directors and the Independent
Directors will be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board
based on company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any
other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board.

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will recommend to the Board the quantum of
commission for each director based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by
various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings,
individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in
meetings.

e In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any director such fair and
reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/her role as
a director of the Company. This could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for

38



attending Board/ Board committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings,
meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and training (organised
by the company for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in
the furtherance of his/ her duties as a director.

Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“ED”)/ KMP/
rest of the employees

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified
individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be:

e Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the company
attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent).

e Driven by the role played by the individual.

o Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s operations and
the company’s capacity to pay.

o Consistent with recognised best practices.

e Aligned to any regulatory requirements.

In terms of remuneration mix or composition:

e  The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as approved by the shareholders. In case of any change,
the same would require the approval of the shareholders, if required, under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

e Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with
their skills and experience.

e In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain perquisites,
allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax
optimisation, where possible. The company also provides all employees with a social security net
(subject to limits) by covering medical expenses and hospitalisation through re-imbursements or
insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.

e The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

e In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the
company may provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of commission, calculated with
reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by
the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Act. The specific amount
payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

e The company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The
performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process
and the performance of the company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The company continuously strives to improve its level of overall efficiency through good corporate
governance, which envisages transparency, professionalism and accountability in all its operations.

1. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) by State Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing Company
Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time (“Code”),
the NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order”) dated April 11, 2018 (“Insolvency
Commencement Date”) had admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate
insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. Subsequently, the NCLT vide
its order dated April 25, 2018 (“IRP Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, as the
interim resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor (“IRP”).

Subsequently, on a writ petition filed by the Corporate Debtor and the managing director of the
Corporate Debtor against the Admission Order, the Hon’ble High Court of Punjab and Haryana
(*High Court”) vide its order dated May 01, 2018, while disallowing the writ petition, kept the
CIRP of the Corporate Debtor in abeyance and ordered that the IRP not take over the
management of the Corporate Debtor till May 15, 2018 (“First Abeyance Order”). Pursuant to
the First Abeyance Order, the existing management of the Corporate Debtor continued to
manage the affairs of the Corporate Debtor during the period of abeyance. Against the First
Abeyance Order, a special leave petition was filed before the Hon’ble Supreme Court, which,
while dismissing the said special leave petition, vide its order dated May 12, 2018, extended the
abeyance of the CIRP by another week, during which period the existing management retained
control over the management of the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, upon the lapse of the period
of abeyance, as stipulated by the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor
resumed on May 21, 2018 and Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta, resumed his position and duties as the
IRP on the same date. Thereafter, in accordance with the provisions of the Code, the first
meeting of the committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtor was held on June 15, 2018
wherein inter alia the IRP was confirmed as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor
(“Resolution Professional”).

Subsequently, a petition was filed by one of the promoters and directors of the Corporate Debtor,
before the High Court (“Petition”) wherein the High Court, vide its interim order dated June 22,
2018, directed the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance (“Second Abeyance
Order”) and directed the earlier board of directors of the Corporate Debtor to operate their bank
accounts and bank operations as before the initiation of the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to
protect the interest of the bank consortium. This Petition was transferred to the Hon’ble Supreme
Court (“Transferred Case”). The Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6,
2019 as prayed for, dismissed the Transferred Case as withdrawn (“Withdrawal Order”). A
copy of the Withdrawal Order was published on September 11, 2019 (“Publication Date”).
Accordingly, on and from the Publication Date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored
and the Resolution Professional had resumed his position as such.
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As such on and from the Publication Date, the Resolution Professional had again assumed
control over the management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor and the powers of the board
of directors of the Corporate Debtor.

As narrated above, the Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(*CIRP”) in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read
with the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon
re-initiation of CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the existing board
of directors to the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Further the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on February 10, 2021
approved the Resolution plan submitted by Consortium of Arr Ess Industries Private Limited and
Leading Edge Commercial FZE (“Consortium” or “Resolution Applicant”) in respect of SEL
Manufacturing Company Limited (“Company”) and the Monitoring Committee (“MC”) of the
Company (constituted in terms of the Resolution Plan) in its meeting held on March 13, 2021
duly appointed the nominees of the Resolution Applicant as Directors of the Company and
approved the reconstitution of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Reconstituted Board”).
The Reconstituted Board has just been formed on March 13, 2021 and is in process to regularise
all the issues at the earliest.

2. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance philosophy stems from our belief that corporate governance is an integral
element in improving efficiency and growth as well as enhancing investor confidence.

2(A) Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management:
A declaration signed by the CEO is given below:

I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management,
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors
and Senior Management in respect of the financial year 2019-20.

Vinod Kumar Goyal
CEO

2(B) Whistle Blower Mechanism/Vigilance Mechanism:

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place
mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has in place a
whistleblower policy, to support the Code of Business Ethics. This policy documents the
Company’s commitment to maintain an open work environment in which employees, consultants
and contractors are able to report instances of unethical or undesirable conduct, actual or
suspected fraud or any violation of Company’s Code of Business Ethics at a significantly senior
level without fear of intimidation or retaliation. Individuals can also raise their concerns directly
to the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Any allegations that fall within the
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scope of the concerns identified are investigated and dealt with appropriately. Further, during the
year, no individual was denied access to the Audit Committee for reporting concerns, if any.

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(a) Board Meetings

The Board met 5 times during the financial year 2019-20 till the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor
stood restored and the Resolution Professional had resumed his position. These meetings were
held on 23.04.2019, 23.05.2019, 03.07.2019, 17.07.2019 and 05.09.2019 respectively.

(b) Composition

The details of the Board composition, attendance of Directors at Board Meetings
held during 2019-20 and their other memberships are given below:

S. | Name Designati | Category No. | Atte- | Total Number of | No. of Committee | Directorship
N on of danc Directorshi_ps in | Positions in_ Public in other listed
0 Boar | e at gtgre]rpaljllsé)slic Ltd. | Ltd. Companies entity
d Last (Category of
Meet | AG Directorship)
-ings | M
'r?(}gij- Chairman  Member Chairman  Member
1 | Ram Saran | Chairman | Promoter 05 Yes |1 2 -- 2 --
Saluja
2 | Neeraj Managing | Promoter 04 Yes |1 3 1 1 -
Saluja Director
3 | Dhirgj oo Promoter - No |-- 3 -- -- --
Saluja Managing
Director
4 | Ashwani Director | Independent | 01 N.A |- 3 3 -- i-tzrime Industries
Kumar (Independent,
Non-executive)
2.Master Trust
Ltd.
(Independent,
Non-executive)
5 | Navneet Executive | Executive 05 Yes | -- 3 1 2 --
Gupta Director
& CFO
6 | Ranjan Director | Independent | 05 Yes | -- - 1 1 --
Madaan
7 | Vinod Executive | Executive 05 Yes |-- -- -- -- --
Kumar Director
Goyal & CEO
8 | Paramjit Director | Independent | 04 Yes | -- 1 -- 2 --
Kaur

Notes:
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Mr. Neeraj Saluja and Mr. Dhiraj Saluja are sons of Mr. Ram Saran Saluja, all on the Board of
the Company.

*The Directorships held by directors as mentioned above, do not include Directorships in foreign
companies, Alternate Directorships, companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013 and private limited companies.

**|n accordance with Clause 26, Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit committees and
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees of all Public Limited Companies have been considered.
The details of the familiarisation program for Directors is available on the website of the
Company viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html

Mr. Ashwani Kumar resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 17.08.2019 and Mrs. Paramjit Kaur also
resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 07.11.2019 and Mr. Joginder Kumar Gupta ceased to be
Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.07.2019 respectively.

The holding(s) of Non-Executive directors in the Company as on 31.03.2020 is given as under:

Name of the Director No. of Equity shares held
(face value of Rs.10/- each)

Mr. Ram Saran Saluja 4621505

Mr. Ranjan Madaan --

Skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company in the
context of its business and sector:

Global Business Understanding, of global business dynamics, across various geographical
markets, industry verticals and regulatory jurisdictions.

Strategy and | Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in

Planning guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain
environments.

Financial Management of the finance function of an enterprise, resulting in

proficiency in complex financial management, capital allocation and
financial reporting processes.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resultling in a
practical understanding of organizations, processes, strategic planning,
and driving change and long-term growth.

The Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, and are independent of the management of the Company.

(c) Information of Directors including those being Appointed/Re-appointed
The Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in

accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the 1BBI
(Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon re-initiation of
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CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the existing board of directors to
the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT.

(d) Audit Committee

For the year 2019-20, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of the following
members namely Mr. Ashwani Kumar (Chairman), Mr. Ranjan Madaan, Mrs. Paramjit Kaur and
Mr. Navneet Gupta. Mr. Ashwani Kumar, Mrs. Paramjit Kaur and Mr. Ranjan Madaan were
non-executive Independent Directors of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as contained in SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as provided in Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the F.Y. 2019-20 till the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the Resolution
Professional had resumed his position, the Audit Committee met on 23.04.2019, 23.05.2019,
16.07.2019 and 05.09.2019 respectively.

Attendance of each Member at the Audit committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Member No of meetings attended
Sh. Ashwani Kumar 1
Sh. Ranjan Madaan 4
Smt. Paramjit Kaur 4
Sh. Navneet Gupta 4

(e) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference in compliance with the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

For the year 2019-20, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three
members namely Mr. Ranjan Madaan, Mr. Ashwani Kumar and Mrs. Paramjit Kaur. Sh. Ranjan
Madaan was the chairman of the said committee.

All these members were non-executive Independent Directors of the Company. During the F.Y.
2019-20 till the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stood restored and the Resolution Professional had
resumed his position, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 22.04.2019
respectively.

Attendance of each Member at the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Member No of meetings attended
Sh. Ranjan Madaan 1
Sh. Ashwani Kumar 1
Smt. Paramjit Kaur 1

44




The Remuneration Committee constituted to recommend/review the remuneration package of the
Managing/Whole time/Executive Directors, based on performance.

The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of
achievements. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing Industry practice.
Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: The candidature of an independent Director is also
evaluated in terms of the criteria for determining independence as stipulated under Companies
Act, 2013, listing agreement and other applicable regulations or guidelines. In case of re-
appointment of Independent Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the results of the
performance evaluation of the Directors and their engagement level.

4. DIRECTORS’ ETC. REMUNERATION:

The Company pays remuneration to the Managing Director, Whole time Director/Executive
Director as approved by the members of the Company in the General Body Meeting and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The details of
remuneration paid to them during the Financial year 2019-20 are given below:

NAME DESIGNATION GROSS SALARY
(Rs. in Lacs)

Sh. Neeraj Saluja Managing Director & COO 40.00

Sh. Dhiraj Saluja Jt. Managing Director & CMO 24.00

Sh. Navneet Gupta Executive Director & CFO 20.00

Sh. Vinod Kumar Goyal Executive Director & CEO 42.00

The tenure of appointments of the Managing Director, Jt. Mg. Director, Whole time
Director/Executive Director were for a period of 3 years each respectively with no severance
fees.

The Company does not have a Scheme for grant of Stock Options to the Managing
Director/Executive Director(s) or Employees of the company.

Non-executive Directors have not been paid any other remuneration except Sitting fees for
attending meeting(s) during the Financial Year 2019-20. The criteria for payment of
remuneration is time spent by the Non-Executive Directors at the Board/Committee meetings
and advice given be these directors to the Management.

There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-executive Directors vis-a-
vis the Company. The Company has not granted any stock option to any of its Non-Executive
Directors.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

For the year 2019-20, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company comprised of

the following members namely Mr. Ranjan Madaan, Mr. Ram Saran Saluja and Mrs. Paramjit
Kaur. Sh. Ranjan Madaan was the chairman of the said committee.
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The Compliance officer of the committee was Mr. Ranjan Madaan. The quorum for the meeting,
two Directors and the committee met to dispose of Investors complaints/requests as required.

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are as per the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the F.Y. 2019-20, Six Investor complaints were received and resolved. Further, there
was no pendency in respect of shares received for transfers/dematerialization.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

The details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) are as follows:

MEETING DAY, DATE & TIME | VENUE NO. OF SPECIAL
OF MEETING RESOLUTIONS
19" AGM Thursday, 26.09.2019 | 274,  DHANDARI | FOUR
09.30 A.M. KHURD, G.T. ROAD,
LUDHIANA
(PUNJAB)
18" AGM Thursday, 27.09.2018 | 274,  DHANDARI | THREE
09.30 A.M. KHURD, G.T. ROAD,
LUDHIANA
(PUNJAB)
17" AGM Wednesday, 27.09.2017 | 274,  DHANDARI | FOUR
09.30 A.M. KHURD, G.T. ROAD,
LUDHIANA
(PUNJAB)

No Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held during the F.Y. 2019-20.

The Company did not pass any resolution through postal ballot during the financial year 2019-20
and further the Company do not propose to pass any resolution through postal ballot in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

CERTIFICATE FOR DIRECTORS DISQUALIFICATION:

As the Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the 1BBI
(Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. Upon re-initiation of
CIRP, the management of the Company was handed over from the existing board of directors to
the resolution professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT. Hence such certificate is not
applicable.

DETAILS OF TOTAL FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS:
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M/s Malhotra Manik & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 015848N)
been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. The particulars of payment of total
fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor
IS a part is given below:

Amount (Rs.
In Lakhs)
Audit Fees (including audit and audit related services) 3.73
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.17
TOTAL 3.90

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal ) Act, 2013:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in SEL through various interventions and practices. The Company always
endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment. The Company believes in prevention of harassment of employees
as well as contractors. During the year ended 31 March, 2020, no complaints pertaining to
sexual harassment were received.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has in place a whistleblower policy, to support the Code of Business Ethics. This
policy documents the Company’s commitment to maintain an open work environment in which
employees, consultants and contractors are able to report instances of unethical or undesirable
conduct, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of Company’s Code of Business Ethics at a
significantly senior level without fear of intimidation or retaliation.

Individuals can also raise their concerns directly to the chairman of the Audit
Committee/Relevant Authority of the Company. Any allegations that fall within the scope of the
concerns identified are investigated and dealt with appropriately. Further, during the year, no
individual was denied access to the Audit Committee/Relevant Authority for reporting concerns,
if any. The details of establishment of vigil mechanism for Directors & employees to report
genuine concerns are available at the website of the Company viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html

7. DISCLOSURES:

During the period under review, there was no material significant transaction with the promoters,
directors, management, their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
company at large.

Further with reference to not having alteast Half of the Board of Independent Directors as per the
requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as per SEBI (LODR) Third Amendment Regulations, 2018 the provisions as specified in
Regulation 17 etc. of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, shall not be applicable during the
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insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate
insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency code.

With reference to Non-submission of Financial Results in time under Regulation 33 (3) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 for quarter/half year ended 30.09.2019, and for the quarter/nine months
period ended 31.12.2019, the Company was under CIRP process during that period and the
Exchanges were informed in respect of interalia the insolvency commencement date, the
appointment of the RP etc.

Apart from the above, there has not been any non-compliance by the company in respect of
which penalties or strictures have been imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There is a policy to regulate the transactions of the Company with its related parties. As per
policy, all related party transactions require approval as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges/SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The
said policy is available on the Company’s website viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html

Further the Company has also formulated a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries.
The said policy is available on the Company’s website viz. www.selindia.in/policy.html.

Convertible Warrants and GDR Issue:

The Company on 01.06.2012 had issued 220,000,000 Equity shares of the Company of the face
value of Rs.10/ each consequent to the Global Depository Receipts (GDR) issue of the Company.
As on 31.03.2020, 4,96,00,000 shares of the face value of Rs.10/- each per share were
outstanding, representing the shares underlying GDRs which were issued during 2012-13.

Commaodity price risk:

The Company does not deal in commaodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular
dated November 15, 2018 is Nil and is not required to be given.

Compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Mandatory Requirements
The Company is compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further with reference to not having alteast Half of the Board of Independent Directors as per the
requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as per SEBI (LODR) Third Amendment Regulations, 2018 the provisions as specified in
Regulation 17 etc. of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, shall not be applicable during the

48



insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate
insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency code.

With reference to Non-submission of Financial Results in time under Regulation 33 (3) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 for quarter/half year ended 30.09.2019, and for the quarter/nine months
period ended 31.12.2019, the Company was under CIRP process during that period and the
Exchanges were informed in respect of interalia the insolvency commencement date, the
appointment of the RP etc.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Company communicates with the shareholders at large through its Annual Report, filings
made with Stock Exchanges and by filing reports & returns with the Statutory bodies like the
Registrar of Companies and Stock Exchanges. The Quarterly Financial Results are published in

prominent daily newspapers like The Financial Express and Desh Sewak. The Financial Results
etc. of the Company are also made available at the Company’s website www.selindia.in.

9. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

i) 20" Annual General Meeting:

Date and Time : Thursday, the 28" day of April, 2022
at 11.00 A.M. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means

ii) Financial year 2020-21

First Quarterly Results - April 2021

Second Quarterly Results - April 2021

Third Quarterly Results - April 2021

Fourth Quarterly Results/

Annual Results 2020-21 > June 2021

iii) Date of Book Closure - April 22, 2022 to April 28, 2022

(both days inclusive)

(iv)  Dividend Payment Date : No dividend has been declared for the F.Y.
2019-20

(V) Listing :The Equity Shares of the Company are
Listed with:

a) Bombay Stock Exchange Limited,
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b) National Stock Exchange of India
Limited

(vi)  Stock code NSE: SELMC
BSE: 532886
ISIN Number for NSDL/CDSL.:
INE105101020

(vii)  Stock Market Data

The highest and the lowest share prices are indicated below:

Month BSE SENSEX At Bombay Stock Exchange

Limited (BSE)

(inRs.)

High Low Month’s high | Month’s low

quoted price quoted price
April, 2019 39,487.45 38,460.25 1.30 0.95
May, 2019 40,124.96 36,956.10 1.13 0.92
June, 2019 40,312.07 38,870.96 1.04 0.77
July, 2019 40,032.41 37,128.26 0.95 0.62
August 2019 37,807.55 36,102.35 0.81 0.52
September 2019 39,441.12 35,987.80 0.73 0.50
October 2019 40,392.22 37,415.83 0.75 0.50
November 2019 41,163.79 40,014.23 0.96 0.49
December 2019 41,809.96 40,135.37 1.10 0.76
January 2020 42,273.87 40,476.55 0.85 0.67
February 2020 41,709.30 38,219.97 0.84 0.63
March 2020 39,083.17 25,638.90 0.72 0.41

(viii)  Dematerialisation of Shares/ Registrar Transfer Agents & Share Transfer system:

The equity shares of the Company are available for dematerialization through National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) is ISIN-INE105101020

The Company has appointed M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (formerly Intime Spectrum Registry
Limited) having its office at Noble Heights, 1* Floor, Plot No. NH-2, C-1 BLOCK, LSC Near
Savitri Market, Janakpuri, NEW DELHI -110058 as Registrar for depository services and share
transfer work.

The dematerialized shares will be directly transferred to the beneficiaries through the
depositories. The process of transfer/transmission/transposition etc. of equity shares in physical
form including dispatch of the share certificates/option letters is completed within a period of 10-
15 days if the documents are in order in all respects.
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee specifically looks into the redressal of Investors’
complaints like transfer of equity shares and related matters.

(ix) Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2020

Share Holding Share Holders Share Holding
Number % to total Number % to total

Up to 500 33856 61.4938 6123150 1.8480
501 to 1000 7445 13.5226 6351898 1.9170
1001 to 2000 5052 9.1761 8045542 2.4281
2001 to 3000 2201 3.9977 5777733 1.7437
3001 to 4000 1110 2.0161 4050622 1.2225
4001 to 5000 1219 2.2141 5865664 1.7702
5001 to 10000 2024 3.6763 15565704 4.6977
10001 and above 2149 3.9033 279566687 84.3728
TOTAL 55056 100.0000 331347000 100.0000
Physical Mode 12 00.02 307801 00.09
Electronic Mode 55044 99.98 331039199 99.91

(x) Share Holding Pattern as on 31.03.2020

Category Number of Shares % to Total Shares
Promoter and Promoter Group 52275198 15.78

Foreign Portfolio Investors 42178900 12.73

Bodies Corporate 15148962 04.57

Public (Individuals) 160971851 48.58

Others 11172089 03.37

Shares held against GDRs/ADRs 49600000 14.97

TOTAL 331347000 100.00

(xi) Details of Unclaimed shares* as on 31.03.2020 issued pursuant to Initial Public Offer (IPO):

S. No. | Particulars Cases No. of
Shares

1. Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares | 01 361
in the Suspense account at the beginning of the year i.e.
01.04.2019.

2. Number of shareholders who approached for transfer of shares | 00 00
from suspense/escrow account during the year.

3. Number of Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from | 00 00
suspense/escrow account during the year.

4. Aggregate number of Shareholders and outstanding shares in | 01 361
the Suspense Account at the end of the year i.e. 31.03.2020.
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*The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.

(xii) Registrars and Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

(Formerly Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
Noble Heights, 1% Floor,

Plot No. NH-2, C-1 BLOCK,

LSC Near Savitri Market,

Janakpuri, NEW DELHI -110058

Tel.: 011 41410592

Fax.: 011 41410591

E-mail: delhi@linkintime.co.in

(xiii) Investors Correspondence:

(@) Investor correspondence: All queries of investors regarding the Company’s shares in
physical/demat form, payment of dividend on shares, etc. may be sent to the following
address:

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

(Formerly Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
Noble Heights, 1% Floor,

Plot No. NH-2, C-1 BLOCK,

LSC Near Savitri Market,

Janakpuri, NEW DELHI -110058

Tel.: 011 41410592

Fax.: 011 41410591

E-mail: delhi@linkintime.co.in

(b) For securities held in Demat form
To the Depository Participant
(c) Any query on Annual Report
Secretarial Department
SEL Manufacturing Company Ltd.,
274, Dhandari Khurd, G.T. Road,
Ludhiana (Pb.) 141014

e-mail 1D of the grievance redressel division : rahul@selindia.in
website: www.selindia.in
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(xiv) Major Plant locations of the Company:

(@ Vill: Lal Kalan, Teh: Samrala

Ludhiana-Chandigarh Road, Near Neelon Canal Bridge, Ludhiana
(b) Vill. Shekhan Majara, Machiwara Rahon Road, Teh. & Distt. Nawanshehar (Pb.)
(c) Vill. Mehatwara, Teh. Ashta, Dist. Sehore, Madhya Pradesh

(xv) Unclaimed Dividends

There is no amount lying pending with the company till date which needed to be transferred to
the Investor education and Protection fund administered by the Central Government.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, the amount remaining unpaid or unclaimed for
a period of seven years from the date they became due for payment shall be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“Fund™).

(xvi) CEO/CFO Certification

As required by sub clause 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, the CEO and CFO have certified about compliance by the company with the
requirements of the said sub clause for the financial year ended 31* March, 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
SEL Manufacturing Company Ltd.,

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SEL
Manufacturing Company Ltd., for the year ended on 31 March, 2020, as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ( the Listing
Regulations).

Managements' Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and
procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated
in Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained
by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with
Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ( the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in above
mentioned Listing Regulations.
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Other Matter:

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench by State Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing Company Limited
(“Corporate Debtor”), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with
the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, the NCLT vide its
order dated April 11, 2018 had admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate
insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the Corporate Debtor i.e. SEL Manufacturing
Company Ltd.. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated April 25, 2018 appointed Mr.
Navneet Kumar Gupta, as the interim resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor.

As narrated above, the Company was undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(“CIRP”) in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read
with the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations 2016. During
the CIRP Process, the powers of the Board stood suspended and the Resolution Professional
(RP) was entrusted with and responsible for the management of the affairs of the Company,

We may further state here that, the provisions as specified in Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution
process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution
process under the Insolvency code. (Sub-Regulation 2A and 2B in Regulation 15 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.)

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Reg. No. 015848N)

PLACE: LUDHIANA (CA MANIK MALHOTRA)
DATED: 31.03.2022 PARTNER
M. No. 094604
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MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES 28-A Bhal Randhir Singh Nagar

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ludhiana — 141001
: Mobile No. 9855037608,9814022781

E-Mail:mmasso123@gmall.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of SEL. Manufacturing Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SEL Manufacturing Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information {(hereinafter referred as “the Standalone Financlal Statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the possible effects of our observations described in the Basis Jor Qualified Opinion Pargraph below, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements read with Paragraph Material Uncertainty relating to Going
Concern and paragraph Emphasis of Matters described below give the information required by the
Companies Act,2013 (“ the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view In conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended {“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31™ March, 2020, the loss and
total Comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

" " Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section.of our report. We are independent auditors of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone -
Financial Statements.

We refer to:

1) Note No. 37 to the Standalone financial statements in respect of non provision of interest on
borrowings from banks (classified as NPA) amounting Rs. 57,777 lacs & Rs. 53,478 lacs (amount
calculated after considering the rates and terms and conditions stipulated originally as per COR
package) for the year ended 31* March, 2020 & 31° March 2019 respectively. The same is not in
compliance with the requirements of para 27 of the Ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements
w.r.t. preparation of financial statements on accrual basis. Consequently, borrowings are not
reflected at fair value in standalone financial statements as required by Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, :

2) Note No. 39(c} of the standalone financial statements, the company has provided for impairment
of Capital work in progress by Rs. 12,544 Lacs as per INDAS-36 for the year ended 31 March,
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2020. As per representation given by Resolution Professional, the impairment of Capital WiP Is
done on the basis of valuation report as at the Insolvency Commencement Date. However the said
valuation Reports are not provided to us considering the confidentiality of the same. Hence, we are
unable to justify its reasonableness.

We further report that, had the impact of our observations made in paragraph 1 of Basis for qualified
opinion paragraph been considered, the net loss for the year ended 31* March, 2020 & 31° March 2019
would have been increased by Rs. 57,777 lacs & Rs. 53,478 lacs and the borrowings for the year ended 31%
March 2020 and 31* March 2019 would have been increased by Rs. 201,240 lacs & Rs. 143,463 lacs and
Equity would have been reduced by the same amount for the years ended 31* March 2020 and 31* March
2019 respectively. The financial impact of matters stated in paragraphs 2 to the Basis for Qualified Opinion
can’t be measured reliably for the year ended 31* March 2020, -

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Note no. 36 of the Standalone financial statements, stating thereto that the terms and conditions of the
sanctioned CDR package w.r.t. interest and principal repayment were not complied with. Consequently,
State Bank of India, in its capacity as financial creditor had filed a petition under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016(IBC) against the company with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (NCLT) which was admitted on 11" April 2018 and Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process {CIRP) has been initiated in terms of IBC, Subsequently the NCLT vide its order dated 25" April,
2018 (“IRP Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta as the interim resolution professional .of the
Corporate Debtor (“IRP”). Due to legal interventions, CIRP was in abeyance from 1" May, 2018 to 21 May,
2018. Subsequently, in the first meeting of the committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtor held on
15" June, 2018 IRP was confirmed as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor {“Resolution
Professional”).The company has filed an appeal against the admission of petition and appointment of IRP
with NCLAT. This petition was transferred to the Hon'ble Supreme Court ("Transferred Case”). The Hon’ble
Supreme Court vide its order dated 6™ September, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed the transferred case as
withdrawn (“Withdrawal Order”). A copy of withdrawal order was published on 11" September, 2019

{“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on and from the Publication date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor

* ~ “stands’resumed: The company has’incurred niet loss of Rs. 254,101.36 lacs for the year ended 31 March,
2020 leading to erosion of entire net worth and current liabilities have exceeded the current assets of the
company.

Further refer to Note no. 38 of the Standalone financial statements, the Resolution Plan submitted by the
consortium of Arr Ess Industries Private Limited & Leading Edge Commercial FZE had been approved by
the members of the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) on 6% October, 2020 under the provisions Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code and related reguiations. Further, The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal has
approved the Resolution Plan on 10™ February, 2021.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

(1) Note No. 39 (a&b) of the standalone financial statements, the Company has provided a provision
made on alfowances for Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and other current assets
aggregating to Rs. 28,578 lacs net of amount collected and provision made in compliance of IND
AS-109 for the year ended on 31 March, 2020,

(2) Note no. 39(d) of the standalone financial statements, the company has written down inventories
of Finished Goods identified as non-moving, slow moving, obsolete and damaged inventory to net
realizable value by Rs 803 Lacs for the year ended on 31 March, 2020. The same has been
charged to Statement of profit & loss as exceptional item. -
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(3)

f4)

{5)

(6)

Note No. 48 read with 35(b) of the standalone financial statements, the company has provided for
allowance for interest subsidy receivable amounting to Rs. 26,621 lacs for the year ended on 317
March, 2020 which consists of interest subsidy (i) under TUFS from Ministry of Textiles and (i)
Subsidy under Textile Policy of Government of Madhya Pradesh.

Note no. 35(A)fiii) of the standalone financiol statements, Contingency reldtfng to export
incentives obligation refundable in respect of allowance for Joreign trade receivables amounting
Rs. 3,855 lacs which is further subject to interest and penalties.

Note No. 49 of the standalone financial statements, the company has made a provision for
impairment of Rs.201,324 lacs (considering negative Net worth of the subsidiary company namely
SEL Textiles Limited) for the year ended 31" March, 2020 relating to amount recorded as
receivable from SEL Textiles Limited on account of invocation of financial guarantee (given by the
Company to lenders of SEL Textiles Limited to secure the credit facilities for the said subsidiary
company) by the lenders of SEL Textiles Limited.,

Note no. 58, to the Standalone financial statements regarding the balance confirmations of Trade
Receivables, Capital/Trade Advances & Trade Payables. During the course of preparation of
Standalone financial statements, fetters have been sent to various parties by the company with a
request to confirm their balances as on 31* March, 2020 out of which few parties have confirmed

their balances direct to the company.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Litigations, provisions and
contingencies

Auditor's Response

indirect tax litigations.

The assessment of the existence of the present legal
or constructive obligation, analysis of the probability
or possibility of the related payment require the
management to make judgement and estimates in
relation to the issues of each matter.

The management with the help of opinion and advise
of its experts have made such judgements and
estimates relating to the likelihood of an obligation
arising and whether there is a need to recognize a
provision or disclose a contingent liability.

The Company recognises a provision when it has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the

The Company is involved in several ongoing direct and|In view of the significance of the matter we applied

the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

We tested the effectiveness of key controls around
the recording and assessment of tax provisions and
contingent liabilities.

We assessed the wvalue of the provisions and
contingent liabilities in light of the nature of the
exposures, applicable regulations and related
correspondences with the authorities.

We have reviewed and held discussions with the
management to understand their processes to
identify new possible obligations and changes in
existing obligations - for compliance with the
requirements of Ind AS 37 on Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

We have also discussed with the management
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significant changes from prior periods and obtained
a detailed understanding of these items and
assumptions applied. We have held regular
meetings with the management and key legal
personnel responsible for handling legal matters.

obligation,

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may probably not require an outflow of
resources. When there is a possible or a present
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

We have identified litigations, provisions and

contingencies as a key audit matter because it

in addition, we have reviewed the details of the
proceedings before the relevant authorities
including communication from the advocates /
experts; status of each of the material matters as
on the date of the balance sheet.

requires the management to make judgements and
estimates in relation to the exposure arising out of
litigations. The key judgement lies in the estimation
of provisions where they may differ from the future

We have assessed the appropriateness of
provisioning based on assumptions made by the
management and presentation of the significant
contingent liabilities in the financial statements.

obligations. The Company operates under several
tax laws and some of these have a significant impact
on the standalone financial statements of the
Company.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report herein
after called the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does
not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. The Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the Management Discussion ar__ld_
- Analysis; Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. ' )

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company has been under the corporate insolvency resolution process under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 {"the Code'). The powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended
as per Section 17 of the Code and such powers are being exercised by the Resolution Professional
appointed by the NCLT under the provisions of the Code. As per the order dated September 6, 2019 of the
Hon’ble Supreme Court, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the company has been restored
and as per Section 20 of the Code, the management and operations of the company are being managed by
Resolution Professional Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta.

'
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The Company’s management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Management/Resolution Professional is also responsible for overseeing the company’s
financial reporting process. :

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issve an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and-are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

_________ As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controis.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

HARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be Influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A,
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and  belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act ;

f. in our opinion, the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” and “Emphasis of Matter”
paragraphs above may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the Company.

g- With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act,

l. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us: :

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — Refer Note no. 35{A) to the standalone financial statements;

il. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any materizal foreseeable losses. .

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the {nvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

FOR MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PLACE: LUDHIANA (CA. MANIK ¥
DATED: 13.02.2021 PARTNER
M.No: 094604
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure-A referred to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the company on the
Standalone financial statements for the year ended on 31* March, 2020. We report that:

(i) (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing particulars including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant & equipments.

{b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, piant & equipments
by which property, plant & equipments are verified In a phased manner over a period of three years.
As explained to us, in accordance with this programme, certain property, plant & equipments were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets,

{c)According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

{ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the physical verification
of inventories has been conducted at reasonable interval by the management and no material
discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of inventories carried out by the management as
compared to the book records.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms and other parties covered in the
register maintained section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
_ _ complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.in respect.-ofloans, -
investments, guarantees and security.

{v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under. No order under the aforesaid sections has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of Cost records under section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of such
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii} (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by

" us, we state that the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income
tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, custom duty, Goods & services tax, cess and other
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, provident fund, employees
state insurance, custom duty, Goods & services tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as at 31%
March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of income tax, provident
fund, employees state insurance, custom duty, goods & services tax, The Punjab State Development
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Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except
disclosed as under:

Period to which the
Name of the Nature of dues | Amount (in amount relates Forum where dispute is
statute lacs) ‘ pending
(Assessment Year)
T
'"°°"‘1‘39 X Act, Penalty 698.66* 2013-14 CIT (Appeals), Ludhiana
| T t,
"°°ml‘; 6:" Ac Penalty 54.07* 2014-15 CIT (Appeals), Ludhiana

Act, s

Income Tax Act Tax 8.22* 2017-18 CIT (Appeals) ,Ludhiana
1961 \

Act, .
!ncorrlc;'é':x Tax - 2019-20 CIT {Appeals) ,Ludhiana
Income Tax Act, | Tax Deducted at Centralized Processing Ceil

1961 Source 0.14 2009-10to 2012-13 (TDS)

*disputed demand deposited by the company.

{viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
defaulted in repayment of loans/borrowings and interest thereon to banks/financial Institution as
given below: '

Bank Name Nature of Amount Amount Overdue Since

Interest 15,366,948,342 31.07.2016
State Bank of India

Principle 4,207,847,596 30.06.2016

Interest 49,423,773 30.04.2018 |
KarurVysyaBank- - - - - - - - - il R

Principle 54,894,566 30.06.2018

Interest 589,228,107 31,12.2015
Punjah & Sind Bank

Principle 353,164,064 31.12.2015

Interest 432,883,575 30.11.2015
Bank of Maharashtra

Principle 373,869,214 31.09.2015

Interest 1,843,049,355 28.02.2016
Punjab National Bank

Principle 838,150,017 31.01.2016

Interest 1,160,851,843 30.06.2015
Indian Bank _

Principle 317,131,583 31.07.2015
Sber Bank interest 328,094,612 31.03.2016

Interest 785,421,904 30.06.2015
United Bank

Principle 6145,23,201 31.07.2015

Interest 957,389,002 30.04.2015
Union Bank of India

Principle 293,054,061 30.04.2015

Interest 1,232,375,175 30.09.2015
UCO Bank

Principle 560,922,730 31.08.2015
Corporation Bank Interest 3,035,798,385 31.01.2016
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Principle 672,364,916 31.03.2016

interest 5,953,168,944 31.10.2015
Allahabad Bank _

Principle 1,993,082,908 30.,11.2015

Interest 635,902,750 31.10.2015

Dena Bank
Principle 498,373,384 31.10.2015
Interest 1,835,000,041 31.01.2016
Indian Overseas Bank

Principle 207,892,842 31.03.20186

Interest 43,179,538 31.03.2016
Vijaya Bank

Principle 41,201,630 31.03.2016

Interest 1,227,345,993 28.02.2016
Andhra Bank

Principle 166,831,155 31.03.2016

Interest 18,337,981 31.05.2016
Exim Bank

Principle 14,617,927 31.01.2016
{ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no money was

raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no material fraud on or by the Company, by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and the audit procedures conducted
by us, managerial remuneration paid or provided was in accordance with the requisite approvals

- - - - - - - - mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule 'V to the Companies Act; 20137 -~~~ "~

{xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 {xii) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of the transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting’
standards.

{xiv}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with the directors and therefore, the provisions of clause 3 {xv) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, are not applicable to the Company.

HARTERED
COUNTANTS
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{xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

FOR MALHOTRA MANIK &ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN.: 015848N

nﬂzw/c m_,,[),{a ¢

PLACE: LUDHIANA {CA. MANIK MALE
DATED: 13.02.2021 : PARTNER

M.No.: 094604
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph (g) under the “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” section of
our report to the members of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) :

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial feporting of SEL Manufacturing Company
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31* March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of india and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards

_and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit- - -

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
-company’s Internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those pelicies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail ;accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and(3)
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Einancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over Financial reporting with regard to the company were not
made available to us to enable us to determine if the company has established adequate internal financial
control over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls operating effectively as on
31* March, 2020.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit of
Standalone Financial Statements, in respect of the matters disclosed in paragraphs under “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” and “Emphasis of Matter” of our main Independent Auditor’s Report which came to
our notice during the course of audit of standalone financial statements indicates material weaknesses in
the internal financial controls over financial reporting as at 31 Ma rch, 2020.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis.

Qualified Opinion :
In our opinion, the_matters disclosed in above.paragraphs under “Basis for Qualified Opinion” indicate
material weaknesses in the internal financial controls over financial reporting.

We have considered the disclaimer of opinion as well as material weaknesses identified and reported in
Qualified Opinion paragraph in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2020 and the disclaimer
and material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the
Company.

FOR MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN

FRN.: 015848N
AEEARTERED A
OUNTA
Meoawle M A "
PLACE: LUDHIANA (CA. MANIK MALHOYRA]
DATED: 13.02.2021 PARTNER
M.No.: 094604

UDiM s 20 QY boy ARAAAL LIRS
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2020

{Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
ASSETS
{1) Non Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 1,39,890.30 1,50,645.27
{b) Capital Work in Progress 4 4,246.00 15,94042
{c) Investment Property - “
(d) Goodwitl - -
{e) Other Intangible Assets 4 - -
{f) Intangible Assets under Development - -
{g) Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants - -
{h) Financial Assets
(i} Investments 5 133,02 2,02,221.43
(ii) Trade Receivable - -
{iil) Loans - -
{iv} Others 6 0.50 0.50
{i) Deferred Tax Assets {Net) - -
{i) Other Non-Current Assets 7 1,039.80 945.00
1,45,309.62 3,70,756.62
(2) Current Assets
{2} Inventories 8 2,742.03 5,898.79
(b} Financial Assets
{i} Investments “ -
(i} Trade Receivables 9 7,110,93 4,262.64
{1ii} Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 181.76 475.12
(iv} Bank Balances other than (iii} above 11 34.64 32.59
{v) Loans - -
{vi) Others 12 466.47 27,382.78
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 1,900.36 1,443.20
{d} Other Current Assets 14 1,782.21 2,428.57
14,227.41 41,924.08
TOTAL ASSETS 1,59,537.03 4,12,680.70
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 15 33,134.70 33,134.70
[b) Other Equity 16 {5,14,908.07) {2,60,089.01)
{4,81,773.37) {2,26,954.31)
LIABILITIES
[1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Lfabilities
(i} Borrowings 17 1,18,092.11 ~1,58,498,35
{ii} Trade Payables - -
(1t} Other Financial Liabilites - -
{b) Provisions 18 139.68 136.12
{c} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) - -
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
1,18,231.79 1,58,634.47
{2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financlal Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 19 3,42,718.54 3,42,261.40
(li) Trade Payables 20
{1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; - -
{2} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,766.73 6,843.50
{iii) Other Financial Liabilities 2L 1,72,82490 1,31,187.39
(b} Other Current Liabilities 22 144.53 116.84
{c} Provisions 23 623.51 591.41
{d) Current Tax Liabilities{Net) - -
5,23,078.61 4,81,000.54
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,59,537.03 4,12,680.70

See accompanylng notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Malhotra Manlk & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. Q15848N

]
(€A. Mantk Malhotra}
Partner
M.No.: 094604

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 13.02.2021

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
of SEL Manufaciring Company Limited

w2t
[V.K.Goyal) (Navneet Gupta)
Director &CEQ Dlrector &CFO

DIN: 0275139%  DIN: 02122420
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

{Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
I. Revenue From Operatlons 24 25,104.29 43,910.97
Il. Other Income 25 7,659.79 7,539.42
ML, Total Income {[+11} 36,764.08 53,450.39
IV. Expenses
Cost of Materlals Consumed 26 6,324.90 15,027.60
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - pi Nl
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 27 1,934.16 (163.08)
Employee Benefits Expense 28 €,792.17 8,037.40
Finance Cost 29 121,05 337.54
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 30 10,782.78 10,883.24
Other Expense 31 20,884.03 25,958.93
Total Expenses {IV) 46,839.08 60,111.38
V. Profit/{Loss) Before Exceptional Items And Tax {I-Iv) {10,075.00) {6,660.98)
Vi. Exceptional Items 32 2,44,026.36 16,935,56
VIl Profit/{Loss) Before Tax {V-Vi) [2,54,101.36) {23,596.54)
VIIL. Tax Expense
2} Current Tax - .
IX. Profit/(toss) for the perlod from Continuing Operations {(VII-vill} (2,54,101.36) {23,596.54)
X. Profit/{toss) from Discontinued Operations - -
X, Tax Expense of Discontinued Qperations - -
XIl. Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (After Tax) {(X-XI) - -
XI0. Profit/{Loss) for the period {IX+XI1} [2,54,101.36) {23,596.54)
X1V, Other Comprehensive Income
A (i} items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 62.28 401.41
{il) Income Tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
B {i} Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss {779.99) {351.90)
{il} Income Tax relating to Items that wilf be reclassifled to Profit or Loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income{net of taxes) (717.71} 49.51
XV. Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (XI1+XIv) (2,54,819.07) {23,547.03)
XVI. Earning per Equity Share (for Continulng Operations) 34
1) Basic {76.69} {7.12)
2) Diluted (76.69) (7.12)
XVII, Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinuing Operations}
1) Basic - -
2} Diluted - -
XVIi), Earning per Equity Share (for Discontinuing & Continuing Operations} 34
1) Basic {76.69) (7.12)
2} Diluted {76.59} {7.12}
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Maihotra Manik & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No, 01584BN

Partner
M.Neo.: 094604

Place: Ludhlana
Date: 13.02.2021
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of SEL Manufagturing Company Limited

2 Y-

avneet Gupta) {Rahul Kapoor)
Director &CFQ  Company Secretary
DIN: 02122420

Director 8.CEQ
DIN: 0275135]



SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

Cash Flow Statemnent for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Detalls Current Year Details Previous Year
A |Cash Flow from Operating Actlvitles
Net Profit before Taxes & Extraordinary ltems (2,54,101.36) (23,596.54)
AdJustments for Non Cash ltems:
-Depreciation & Amortization 10,782.78 10,883.24
-Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investments 2,02,100.73 {121.46)
-Provision for Doubtful Dabts 546.39 14,710.45
-Impairment In Value of Capltal Work In Progress 12,544.57 -
-Allowances for Loans & Advances 28,031.82 2,346.58
-Inventories Written Down to Net Realisable Value 802.84 -
-Interest Cost 17.81 171.92
-Interest income (2595.22) {96.87)
-Dividend Income - [0.37)
-Share of Loss/(Profit} from Firm (47.49) 54,10
~{Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 2,54,484.22 {138.07) 27,809.50
Adjustments for Changes In Working Capital:
-Increase/ {Decrease) in Trade Payables {76.77) 265.74
-increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 27.70 [407.16)
-Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 526,73 33,746.34
-Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Provisions 32,50 {76.07)
-{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (2,848.29) {5,421.39)
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets (646.76) 3,522.99
-{Increase}/ Decrease in Current Assets Tax {Net) {466.17) {442.88)
«(Increase)/ Decrease in Bank Balance otherthan Cash {2.05}) 31.05
-{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets 294.90 302.39
~(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 2,353.92 {804.30) 914.68 32,435.69
Cash Generation from Operations (421.43) 36,648.64
-Taxes Paid - -
Net Cash from Operating Activities (421,43} 36,648.64
B ICash Flows from Investing Activities
-Purchase of Plant, Property & Equipments (23.80) {21.97)
-{Increase)/Decrease in Capital Work in Process - 45.31
-Proceeds from Sale of Plant, Property & Equipments - i42.13
-Interest Income 295,22 96.87
-Share of Profit/{Loss) from Flrm 14.00 {54.10)
-Dividend Income - 0.37 |
-{Increase}/Decrease of Non Current Investments - 54.49
-(Increase)/ Decrease In Non Current Loans - 21.01
-Increase/{Decrease)in Non Current Provisions 3.56 [140.26)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 288.99 143.85
C [Cash Flows from Financing Activities
-Proceeds/{Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings (48.30} {33,567.75)
-(Increase)/ Decrease In Other Financial Assets Non Current {94.80) (1,861.15)
-Proceeds/{Repayment} of Current Financial Borrowings - {97494}
-Interest Cost {17.81) {17192}
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities {160.91) [36,575.80)
Net Increase/{Decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalent (293.35) 216,70
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 47512 258.42
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 18176

475.12

Subject to our Separate Report of Even Date
For Malhotra Manlk & Assoclates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 015848N

%ﬁkﬁamot .

Partner
M.No.; 0946064

Place: tudhiana
Date: 13,02.2021
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For and on the behalf of Board of

SEL Manufgcturing Company Limited

\"’J:: %
(V.K.Goyal) (.N?fvneet Gupta} (Rahul Kapoor)

Director 8&CEQ  Director &CFO Zompany Secretary

DIN: 02751391

DIN: 02122420



.rBu._ovm.EREou
(100dey |nyey)

B/

OTFTZTZ0 :NIa T6ETSLZ0 :NI
042 203031 0302’2 401031
{=dno Joaunen) (1efony-A)
payw Auedwoe) Suunpepiue 13s jo

$103292{0 J© PIEOQ JO JJEYIY FY3 O pUE Jo4

TZ0TZ0'ET =leq
euRYpn ;32e)d

#09FE0 "ON'IN
Jautiegd
o _«s_ AueW D)

YOO /Y

y8STO "ON 50y a4
n:ﬂ...snuu«_ pasapeyy
$31R120S5Y 13 Y|UBL e130U|EW J03

z<.—2=0uu< !
mﬁm._k(:u

patyene ajep uaAd jo 1odai mo Jad sy

[{Z0°806FT's]  [66€92a - - - - {z5'010°SLS) | - I6'E6'TS 8006 - - 0ZOT E0°TE 38 5V]
B B - = - - - - - - - - a3uew Jayio Auy|
B T - B = - - - - - - - UILLED PIUIEJ3S OF JJSURI]
- - - B - - - - B - - - SpUpIAIG

JE3A 3y3 o} aulioau)

(20°6T8%5T)  |(TLets) - - - - {og 0TS} | - - - - - FAsuaYRadwoy 1830 |

STOT'E0TE| |

{10°680°09'2)  [0£7T86'S - - - - (9T'606°0°€) - L6'LER'TS 810067 - - 1e se aougjeq uﬂmqu
SI0JID

pouad toud 10 Aoyod

- - - - - - - - - - - - Sununodde  w  safueyy
{T0°680°09'2) |OLT86'S - - - - (5T°606°02 €} - LELEE'TS 81°006°¢ - - 6T0Z'E0"IE e SY
134 3y Jo) Stodu)

{0’ Lt5'e2) 15'60 - - - - (r5'965'¢2) - - - - - aasuaysdwoy |ewo1
— SaupEed|

paujeIdy 03 palsysuen

- - - - - - - - - - - - BAFSYY [RIBURD
U6TPSOET]  |6TZE64 - : - - cgcesee |- LELEBTS 8v°006'C - - 8T0Z70°T0 38§y

uopieiado
ustnoy e [RUEL T
J0 SJuamIales awoau] @ [0y @ InIasey |eueury Juzuno|e
ol 3 Jetueuy sadpay Asuayasdwo) | asusyaedwon uonenn4 punodwos | Bujpusd
Asuayaidwod (ay; Jupejsuen|  snjding Mo ysed  |aagio ysnouys | 1ayio y2nosyy afueyng anasIy ETNEE DM L] Aauow
Y10 Jo U0 sIuaralipluoneneasy| 30 uopod SlUUNRSUL | spuaunisu) snyding ufiazo4 WIRNUaLY S3IMNI3S |e3yden wauodwoa | uopesydde
12301 SwY 1YY sfueyoxy ELNEETTE] Aznby wag NG pUe SeAIasTy Aunb3 uryg SIB|ndjuEed
Anba a0 g
0LPETEE - [oLveres [ 0L'FET'EE
DT0Z'E0'LE W 5y peaA 3 Bupnip [ejde’ 21eys Ajjnba u) saguey) | ETOZEQTE IV SY Inba v saduey) | BT0Z 010 IV 5Y

S G [ende) aieus Amba 'y

0Z0Z 'HOUVIN LSTE 0IANT HY3A THL 404 ALNDI NI SIONYHD 40 INJINTLVLS

Q1IN ANVJWOD DNIINLIIVAINNYIN 135

72




OPE'ST - LT'6V9'05T 8L0p 95°€0Z 89°/8ET £0°646°EL £E7L0R'59 0E£'059 690858 610T "Y2IeN ISTE 1B SY

00orZy - OE'068°6E"T 8LE T9'6YT B68TT'T 91°6¢0°99. YZ'Z0EED 8LTY9 69'085'8 0707 ‘Yrew 1STE e sy

IN|EA Yoog 19N

- 9,°§5% TZEETSS'T 19°PEY £6°158 012927 85°€92°62°T 88°6ZL 1L TII6 - 0Z0Z “Yd1epy ISTE 38 se uonepudag

- - - - - - - - - - Jeah a3z Bupnp jesedsig

- - BLIBLOT 95'L ¥6'ES ST TZ'9E6'L 60°'508°C 758 - Jead 3y} Joj uoneasdag

- 94 85F £V OSE'RF'T SO'LTY 66'£6L 59'06%°Z LELTE'TTT 6LYTE6T 6528 - 6T0T ‘YoJepy ISTE Je se uopenadsa

- - - - - - - - - - 1eaA ayl Buunp [esodsig

- - ¥ EBBOT T ad 8Te9 | TE6LT 674108 60°50SZ 798 - Jeah 3y} 10} uojepnasdaq

- 90558 0C LSY'EET 62 Il TLVEL SE'TIZZ BOETE'ETT QL6ELOT piiy 74 - 810T ‘Iudy 35T 18 se uonepaldag

Juauueduw) 13 uonenasdag

00'9bT’y 9."55Y TS EL0'56°T ErTLY S5 T00°T 80°'TG3'E vLTTE'S6T ZTZTE0'58 68°TEL 69°085°2 0207 ‘Yd1eA ISTE Je S8 InjeA 55059

FART R AN - - - - - - - - - Jeah ay 3upnp uoponpag

- - 0B'ET 1504 - 58'CT SE9 - - .- Jeah ayl Buunp uonippy

Ty ovs'sT 9.5 TL666V6'T £9°/9% 851001 £2'8/8c O"90E"S6'T ZI'ZED'SR G8'ZEL 690858 6T0Z YDJBIAL ISTE 1€ Se INJeA §504D

T8y - =0 - - - - - - [ 54 1e2A ay3 Bunnp uoponpag

- - 16T - L6'TZ - - - - - Jeah 3w Buunp uop|ppy

£L'S86'9T 94'55y GL186'V6'T £8°49Y 65'6L6 £T'8IB'E OP"90€'S6T TT'ZEC'SR 6BTEL PLp8s'8 BT0T 1Ay IST I8 58 an|BA 55010

553180449 Uy 31q13ueju) syuawdinhz s8uy Aauyoey speoy puey
Hlom [eyded 13410 lejo, YO SIPIyaA | B sanixg 3 Jueld 2 Buipjing Ployases | pue] pjoyaasy sJejnoiued
¥ —"ONIION

wdwdinby pue jueld ‘Auadolg ¢

73




INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT) NOTE NO.-5
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31,03.2020 31.03.2019
{1} Investment In Equity Instruments
{i} Subsldaries {Unquoted-At Cost)
1} 127,057,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up of SEL Textiles Ltd. 2,52,470.24 2,52,470.24
Less: Impalrment in Value of Investment* [2,52,470.24) [51,146.24)
it} 3,989,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up of SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd. 1,443.76 1,443.76
Less: lmpairment in Value of Investment (1,443.76} (744.66)
jif) 48,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of Silverline Corporation Ltd, 4.81 4,81
(ii) Other {Quoted-At Fair Value)}
1} 6,248 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up of Reliance Industries Limited 69.51 B5.16
1i) 778 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of Dhanus Technologies Limited 0.68 0.68
Less: impalrment in Value of Investment {0.68} (0.68)
(2) Investment in Equity Instruments {Unquoted-At Fair Value)
i} 299,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each fully pald up of The Delhi Stock 209.51 209,51
Exchange Association Limited
Less: Impairment in Value of Investment {209.51) {131.88)
{3} Investment In Equity Instruments (Unquoted-At Cost)
1) 14,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up of Rythm Textile &
Apparels Park Limited 1.40 1.40
11} 1,108,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up of OPGS Power Gujrat Pvt. Ltd. 5.56 5.56
[4) Investment in Mutual Funds (Unguoted-At Falr Value)}
i) 150,000 Units of Rs.10/- each of SBI Infrastructure Fund 16.66 22,58
ii} 50,000 Units of Rs.10/- each of $81 PSU Fund 3.81 525
iif} 55,187.638 Units of Rs. 10/~ each of Union Multi Cap Fund 8.55 10.76
iv) 100,000 Units of Rs.10/- each of SBI Geld Fund 14.05 10.00
{5} Investments in Partnership Flrm (At Cost)
1} 99% Share in SE Exports
Capital {After adjusting Drawings) (38.81)
Add: Share of Profits 47.A9 8.68 {24.81}
Name of Partnérs Share of Profit Amount of Captialas  Amount of Captial
on 315t March, 2020 as on 31st March,
2019
Mr. Dhiraj Saluja 0.50% 2.85 2.61
Mrs, Reema Saluja 0.50% 4,23 3.99
SEL Manufacturing Co. Ltd. 99.00% 8.68 (24.81)
TOTAL 133.02 2,02,221.43
*refer note no. 43
Market Value of Quoted Investments '85.16 85.16
Aggregate Amaunt of Quoted Investments \ 30.68 30.68
Apgregate Amount of UnCuoted Investments . _ 4785 2,02,136.27
Aggregate Impairment in Value of Investments 2,54,124,18 52,023.45
OTHERS FENANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT) NOTE NQ. -6
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
[a) Fixed Deposits with Banks 0.50 0,50
TOTAL 0.50 0.50
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS NOTE NO., -7
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
a) Security Deposits 1,039.80 045,00
b) Capital Advances 1,625.38 1,665.99
2,665.18 2,610.99
Less: Allowance/Impairment for Doubtful Loans & Advances# 1,625.38 1,665,99
TOTAL 1,039.80 945.00
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,665.99 1,666.11
Less: Amount coflected and hence reversal of provision 40.61 012
Add: Provision made during the year - 0.00
Balance at the end of the year 1,625,38 1,665.99

CHARTERE

ACCOUNTAN
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INVENTORIES NOTENO. -8
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{Valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value, whichever Is fower)
(a} Raw Materials 546.02 829,58
{b) Work In Progress 753.53 1,819.16
{c) Finished Goods
-In Godown 1,117.53 2,572.76
-In Transit 7.59 223.74
(d) Stores & Spares 317.36 453.55
TOTAL 2,742.03 5,898.79
Inventories pledged as securlty to Working Capital Lenders
TRADE RECEIVABLES (CURRENT) NOTENO. -5
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2015
aj Trade Receivables considered good-Secured - -
b) Trade Recelvables considered good-Unsecured 7,110.93 4,262.64
¢) Trade Recelvables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and - -
d) Trade Receivables-credit impaired 1,03,350.17 1,02,803.78
1,10,461.10 1,07,066.42
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (Expected Credit Loss Allowance}# 1,03,350.17 1,02,803.78
TOTAL 7,110.93 4,262.64
Trade Recelvables pledged as security to Working Capital Lenders
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,02,803.78 88,093.33
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provision 7,306.83 949.44
Add: Provision made during the year 7,853.22 15,659.89
Balance at the end of the year 1,03,350.17 1,02,803.78
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE NO. -10
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.201%
{a) Cash in Hand 26,72 27.48
{b) Balances With Scheduled Banks
i) In Current Accounts 153.03 446.06
i} In Fixed Deposits Accounts 2,01 1.57
TOTAL 181.76 475.12
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTENOQ, -11
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Other Bank Balances
1} In Fixed Deposits Accounts 34.64 32.59
TOTAL 34.64 32.59
OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) NOTE NO, ~12
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{Unsecured, considered good)
i} Duty Drawback Receivable 448,71 760.22
i1} Interest Subsidy Receivable 26,621.40 26,521.40
1li} Interest Receivable 17.76 1.15
27,087.88 27,382.78
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 26,621.40 -
TOTAL 466.47 27,382.78
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS . ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provision - -
Add: Provision made during the year 26,621.40 -
Balance at the end of the year 26,621.40 -
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CURRENT TAX ASSETS [NET) NOTE NO. -13
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i) Prepaid Taxes 1,902.36 1,443,220
TOTAL 1,909.36 1,443.20
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS NOTE NO, -14
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{Unsecured, considered good)
i) Advances to Suppliers 4,789.03 4,508,17
ii} Statutory Dues & Taxes 1,207.43 1,009.97
iii} Others 1,501.24 1,175.29
7,497.70 6,693.43
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables [Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 5,715.49 4,264.46
TOTAL 1,782.21 2,428.97
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
. 21.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,264.46 1,917.77
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provision 34.45 513.25
Add: Provision made during the year 1,485.49 2,859.94
Balance at the end of the year 5,715.49 4,264.46
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL NOTE NO.-15
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a) Authorised
1,000,000,000 Equity Shares 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
(b) Issued, Subscrlbed & Pald Up
331,347,000 Equity Shares Fully Paid Up 33,134.70 33,134.70
33,134.70 33,134.70
{c} Par Value per Share
331,347,000 Equity Shares Rs. 10/-
{d} Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding
: As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares putstanding at the beginning of the year
Equity Shares 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Total 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Add: Addition during the yvear
Equity Shares - - - -
Total - - - -
Less: Deduction durlng the year
Equity Shares - - - -
Total - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Equity Shares 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Total 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,31347 33,134.70
{e) Shares In'the company held by preference shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Dhiraj Saluja 51,310,000 Shares 73.60%
Neeraj Saluja 12,400,000 Shares 17.78%
TOTAL 33,134.70 33,134.70

{e) Terms/rights, preference, restrictions attached to shares.

EQUITY SHARES: The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share except holder of GDR will not have voting right with respect to the Deposited Shares. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the,
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the realised value of the assets of the Company, remaining after payment of all preferential dues.|
‘The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company Issued 220,000,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 per share consequent to Global Depository Receipt {GDRs) issue of the
company during the year 2012-13. Holders of Global Deposltory Recelpt (GDRs) are entitled to receive dividends, subject to the terms of the Deposit
Agreement, to the same extent as the holders of Equity Shares, As on 31.03.2020, 75,708,249 shares (Previous Year 75,709,249 shares ) of the face

value of Rs. $0/- each per share represent the shares underlying GDRs which were issued during 2012-13.
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OTHER EQUITY NOTE NO. - 16
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31,03.2020 31.03.2019
(a} Captial Reserve
Opening Balance 2,900.4%8 2,900.48
Add: Addition during the year - -
2,900.48 2,900.48
Less: Deduction during the year - -
2,900.48 2,900.48
{b) Securities Premium
Opening Balance : 51,937.97 51,937.97
Add: Addition during the year - -
51,937.97 51,937.97
Less: Deduction during the year - -
51,937.97 51,937.97
{c) Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance 5,981,70 5,932.19
Add: Addition during the year 4111 700,84
6,022.81 5,633.03
Less: Deduction during the year 758.81 651,33
5,263.99 5,981.70
{d} Surplus
Opening Balance (3,20,909.16) {2,97,312.62)
Add: Addition during the year (2,54,101.36} [23,596.54)
(5,75,010.52} {3,20,509.16)
Less: Deduction during the year - -
- (5,75,010.52) {3,20,909.16)
TOTAL (5,14,508.07) (2,60,089.01)
BORROWINGS {NON CURRENT) NOTENO. -17
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31,03.2019
(a) Secured Loans
i) Term Loans
- From Banks 1,07,997.86 1,49,154.65
{b} Unsecured Loans (At Amortised Cost)
[} Loan from Qthers
i} Loan from Others 25.00 25.00
{ Loans repayable in 2021-22 carrying interest @ 0-15% pa) :
li} Loan from Related Parties 5,500.58 5,107.75
{Interest free loans repayable in 2023-24)
Liabllity Component of Compound Financial Instrument
(c) Preference Share Capital (At Amortized Cost)
69,710,000 1% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares Fully Paid Up 4,568.68 4,210.95
TOTAL 1,18,082.11 1,58,498,35
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Terms and conditions of secured loans taken from banks and status of contuining default as at year end

Type of Loans Rupee Term Loan| |Rupee Term Loan (1|  Funded Interest Working Capital | FL;_:'::‘:::‘::“ Rupee Term Loan
{RTL-1) {RTL-11} Term Loan 1 {FITL-1} | Term Loan {WCTL) (WCTL FITLA) 1t {PL-11)
Sanctioned Amount 1,72,714.00 32,604.00 31,332.00 63,928.00 12,281.00 5,657.00
Balance as on 31.03.2020 1,70,542.49 14,331.00 10,837.28 66,041.85 12,002,94 377.68
Rate of Interest 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 11.15%
Repayment Type Monthly Monthly Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Monthly
Repayment during the year ending
31/03/2021 25,786.65 2,252.92 - 11,185.98 1,842.15 -
31/03/2022 25,836.60 2,534,553 - 11,195.98 1,978.24 -
31/03/2023 25,836.,60 2,982.26 - 11,155.98 1,975.77 -
31/03/2024 9,436.94 1,690.67 - 3,005.52 - -
Overdue Princlple Amount 68,308.67 3,462.23 11,931.18 22,973.47 5,130.78 272.89
Overdue interest Amount 7,500.95 565.77 706.49 3,046.25 438.88 51.01
Overdue Since August 2015 July 2015 April 2015 July 2015 June 2015 | November 2015

Details of security for term Ioans

*Long term borrowings from banks are secured by the equitable mortg
immaovable & movable, both present and future ranking pari-passu b
passu basis with short term lenders, by equitable mortgage of the following properties,

asis and personal

age of entire Land & Building of the Company and further secured by
guarantee of the promoter directors. The sald borrowings are further secured, on pari-

all the fixed assets of the Company,

Sr, No, Onwer Detail of Property

1. Sh, R.5.Saluja Land & Building measuring 1K 13M at Rahon Road, Ludhiana

2. Smt. Sneh Lata Saluja Land measuring 2023,59 sq. yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhfana

3. Smt. Sneh Lata Saluja Land and bullding measuring 155 sq. yds, at B-V243, Hazuri Road, Ludhiana
4, Sh. Neeraj Saluja Land measuring 700 sq.yds. at Rajpura Road, Vill, Pratap Singhwata, Ludhiana
5. Sh. Neeraj Saluja Land measuring 4840 sq.yds. at Village Ihande, Ludhlana

6. Smt. Ritu Saluja Land measuring 1023,59 sq, yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhlana
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PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT)

NOTENC. - 18

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits 139,68 136.12
TOTAL 130.68 136.12
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS NOTENOD, -19
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(a) Secured Loans
_ i) Loans Repayable on Demand*
From Banks 3,42,718.54 3,42,261.40
TOTAL 3,42,718.54 2,42,261.40

“refer note no, 49

Details of security for working capital borrowings

1) Short term borrowings from banks are secured by the Hypothecation of Stock-in trade, Book Debts and Receivables of the Company and further
secured by the second parri-passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee of the promoter directors and pledged of]
36,729,044 equity shares of the company held by the promoters, The said borrowings are further secured, on pari-passu basis with term loan lenders,

by equitable mortgage of the following properties:

Sr. No. Dwner Detial of property

1 Sh. R.5.5aluja Land & Building measuring 1K 13M at Rahon Road, Ludhfana

2. Smt. Sneh Lata Saluja Land measuring 1023.59 sq. yds. at Village Ba]ra, Ludhiana

3. Smt. Sneh Lata Saluja Land and building measuring 155 sq. yds. at B-v443, Hazuri Road, Ludhlana
4, Sh, Neera] Saluja Land measuring 700 sq.yds. at Rajpura Road, Vill. Pratap Singhwala, Ludhlana
5 Sh, Neeraj Saluja Land measuring 4840 sq.yds. at village Jhande, Ludhiana

6. Smt. Ritu Salufa tand measuring 1023.59 sq. yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhtana

Terms of repayment of loans repayable on demand
From banks are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.65% p.a.

TRADE PAYABLES NOTE NO. - 20
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
: 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Trade Payables 6,766.73 5,843.50
TOTAL 6,766.73 6,843.50

*Based on and to the extent of information received from the Suppliers regarding their status under The Micro, Small and Meditm Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 as identified by Management, the relevant particulars as at 31st March, 2020 are Nil.

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

{i} Principal amount and the Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting|

ear - -

{ii] the amount of interest paid by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, {27 of 2006}, along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; - -

{iil) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has been paid

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,

Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; - -
{iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

{v} the amount ot turther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a

deductible expenditure under sectlon 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006. - -
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {CURRENT) NOTE NO, - 21
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i} Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 1,53,156.91 1,12,079.22
il) Current Maturities of Long Term Debts {Others) - 100,00 91.74
ii) Interest Accrued and due on borrowings 12,309.,35 12,308.35

iv) Employees Benefits 1,064.47 1,047.68
v} Payable to Vendors-Non Trade 2,405.40 2,049.36
vi} Others Payable 3,788.77 3,610.05

TOTAL 1,72,824.90 1,31,187.39
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OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

NOTE NO. - 22

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i) Statutory Dues & Taxes 78.43 111.36
i1} Advances from Customers 66,11 5.48
TOTAL 144.53 116.84
PROVISIONS {CURRENT) NOTE NO, - 23
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31,03.2020 31.03.2013
{a) Provision for Employee Benefits 623.91 59141
TOTAL 623,91 591.41
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS NOTE NO.-24
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Sale of Products
Finished Goods 7,000.84 23,724.07
Traded Goods - 28.15
Raw Material 6.73 7.96
Other Operating Income
Sale of Services 20,426.36 21,451.64
Others 1,670.36 699.15
TOTAL 29,104.29 45,910.97
OTHER INCOME NOTE NO. - 25
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIQUS YEAR
Export Incentives 333.83 2,147.70
Interest 295.22 96.87
Share of profit from Partnership Firm 47.49 -
Other Income < : 80.85 13.64
Foreign Exchahge Fluctuation 6,883.17 5,117.97
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments - 138.07
Cividend Income - 0.37
Rental Income 19.23 24.79
TOTAL 7.659.79 7,539.42
COS5T GF MATERIAL CONSUMED NOTE NO. - 26
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock T T 631,18 1,893.70
Add: Purchases {net) 4,230.43 11,343.57
4,861.61 13,237.27
Less: Closing Stock 353.00 631.18
Cost of raw material consumed during the year (A) 4,508.61 12,606.09
Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 198.40 152.56
Add: Purchases [net) 1,810.91 2,467.35
2,000.31 2,619.91
Less: Closing Stock 193.02 198.40
Cost of packing material consumed during the year {B) 1,816.29 2,421,51
TOTAL {A+B) 6,324.90 15,027.60
CHANGES IN INVENTQRIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE NOTE NO. - 27
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR | PREVIOUS YEAR
Opening Stocks
Work in Process 1,819.16 1,365.55
Finished Goods 2,796.50 3,087.04
{A) 4,615.66 4,452.58
Closing Stocks
Work In Process 753.53 1,819.16
Finished Goods 1,927.97 2,796.50
(B) 2,681.50 4,615.66
Decrease/{Increase) In Inventories {A-B} 1,934.16 {163.08)
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

NOTE NO. - 28

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Wages,Salaries & Other Allowances 6,289.21 7,471.60
Contribution to PF, ES! & Other Funds 432,45 475,52
Staff & Labour Welfare 70.50 90.28
TOTAL 6,792.17 £,037.40
FINANCIAL COSTS NOTE NO, -29
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
a) Bank Charges 103.24 165.62
b) Interest on
1) Others 17.81 171.92
TOTAL 121.05 337.54
DEPRECIATICN & AMORTISATION EXPENSES NOTE NO. -30
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Depreciation of Tangible Assets 10,774.26 10,874.72
Amaortisation of Leasehold Land 8.52 8.52
TOTAL 10,782.78 10,883.24
OTHER EXPENSES NOTE NO. - 31
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Powe! & Fuel 14,551.95 17,034.04
Consumables & Repair Maintenance 3,426.96 4,890.69
Job Work Expenses 282.91 997.73
Printing & Stationery 13.76 9.37
Insurance 189.9% 184.43
Fees & Taxes 116.80 100,122
Donation 0.32 0.74
Legal & Professional Charges 104.02 353.40
Postage & Courier Charges 46.26 58.25
Telephone & Fax Expenses 20.07 32.00
Statutory Auditors' Remuneration
-Audit Fee 2.85 570
=Tax Audit Fee 0.90 1.80
-Reimbursement of Expenses 0.12 0.1%
Cost Auditors' Remuneration
-Audit Fee 077 0.77
General Repair & Maintenance 75.37 100,16
Office Expenses 22.24 40.64
Festival Expenses 0.89 20.85
Rent 4011 86,14
Travelling & Conveyance 54,10 166,52
Water Charges 57.82 57.16
Service Tax Paid - 1,58
Advertisement 1.54 6.34
CIRP Expenses 723.06 -
Security Expenses - 4,55
Building Repair & Maintanenace 2.39 6.43
Share of Loss from Subsidaires - 54.10
Vehicles Expenses ) 62.69 84.11
VAT Input Credit Reversal For Earlier Years - 98.14
Business Promaotion 40.30 43.87
Commission 60.99 421.39
Rebate & Discount 581.30 -
Clearing Forwarding & Freight Dutward 363.65 1,097.18
. TOTAL 20,884.03 25,958.93
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS NOTE NO. - 32
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Impairment in Value of Investments in Subsidaries 2,02,023.10 {121.46)
Impairment in Value of Capital Work In Progress 12,544.57 -
Allowance for Doubtful Recelvables 546.39 14,710.45
Allowance/Impairment for Doubtful Loans & Advances 28,031.82 2,346.58
Inventories Written Down to Net Realisable Value 802.84 -
Impairment in Value of Investments 77.63 -
TOTAL 2,44,026.36 16,935.56
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMIPANY LIMITED 2019-20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Corporate Information

SEL Manufacturing Company Limited {the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the Nationa!
Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, processing & trading of yarns, fabrics, ready-made
garments and towels. The registered office of the company is located at 274, G.T.Road, Dhandari Khurd, Ludhiana,
Punjab. i

. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {ind AS), under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting
policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assurmnptions in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as mandgement becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. -

2.3 Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. First time adoption
has been conducted retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as on the transition date.
The effect on the transition to Ind AS 115 is Insignificant.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies performance obligation by transferring
promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of time or over a period of
time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognized as per the terms of relevant contractual
agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the customer
obtains controls of the asset.

Revenue from subsidiaries is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

Revenue also includes price variations based on the contractual agreements and excludes goods & services tax. Revenue
from export sales are recognized on shipment basis. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of Goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized as and when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by transferring control of the promised goods to its customers.

Sale of Services: Revenue from the sale of services is recognized on the basis of the stage of completion. When the
contract outcorne cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are
eligible to be recovered.

Dividend income: Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same Is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED ) 2019-20

Lease income: Lease agreements where the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset substantlally vest
with the lessor are recognized as operating leases. Lease rentals are recognized on straight line basis as per the terms of
the agreements in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest income: Income from interest is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or recelpts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest

- rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument’
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Export Incentives: Revenue in respe;:t of the eligible benefits is recognized on post export basis.
2.4 Inventories

inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower except for waste which is valued at net
realizable value. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is computed as under:

i) Inrespect of Raw Materials on FIFO basis.

it} In respect of Work in process and Finished Goods, at weighted average cost of raw material plus conversion cost &
packing cost incurred to bring the goods to their present condition & [ocation.

iii) In respect of trading goods, on specific identification method.
iv) In respect of Consumable Stores on weighted average basis.

The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces,
defective inventories are duly provided for and valued at net realizable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

2.5 Fo'reig-n -Currency Traﬁsactions
The functional currency of SEL Manufacturing Company Ltd. is an Indian rupee.
Other foreign currency transactions:

{i) Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction except
sales that are recorded at rate notified by the customs for inveice purposes. Such rate is notified in the last week of
every month and is adopted for recording export sales of next month.

{i) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on reporting the same at balance sheet date are recognized as income or
expenses in period in which they arise, except the exchange difference in case of fixed assets which have been
adjusted to the cost of fixed assets,

(iii) Foreign currency non-monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost, re-stated: at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the year-end and the gain or loss is accumulated in a foreign exchange fluctuation reserve.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are
ready for use, as intended by the management. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The assets residual values, usefu! lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively If appropriate.
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Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the plant and equipment of spinning and terry towel units where
useful life has been technically assessed as 30 years.

Property, plant and equipment which are added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. The company depreciates property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date
are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment
is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit or net
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying
value or the fair value less cost to self,

Leased Assets: Leasehold lands are amortized over the period of lease. Buildings constructed on leasehold land
are depreciated based on the useful life specified in Schedule 1§ to the Companles Act, 2013, where the lease period
of land is beyond the life of the building.

2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized
over useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use,

2.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of such
assets, up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as
expenditure in the year in which they are incurred. The capitalization of borrowing costs to be suspended during

extended periods in which active developments will be interrupted.

2.9 Employee Benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months for rendering
services are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the period
in which the employee renders related service.

(i) Post Employment Benefits:

(a) befined Contribution Plans:

Provident Fund: Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution. The Company contribution to Provident
Fund is made in accordance with the provisions of the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act,
1952 and is charged to the profit and loss account,

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan') covering
eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial
valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit
method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset} are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive
income. The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED 2019-20

(i} Long Term Employee Benefits: The liability for leave with wages is recognized on the basis of actuarial
valuation at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

2.10 Taxes
Tax Expense comprises of current income tax, deferred tax and minimum alternate tax credit entitlement.

Current Tax: Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period
after considering tax allowances & exemptions.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences hetween the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax Credit: Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized as tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset Is written down to
the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specific period.

2.11 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. if any
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets Is estimated and impairment is recognized,
if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the net selling price and their value in use. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset
in earfier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position include cash in hand and at bank and short-term
deposits with original maturity period of three months or less.

2.13 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions: Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be determined by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;

(i) The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
(i) A probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle the obligation; and
(iif) The amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of;

{i) a present obligation arising from a past event when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
{ii) a possible obligation, unless the probabllity of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
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Contingent Assets: A contingent asset is disclosed when possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence would be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

2.14 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

2.15 Lease

The Company as a lessee: The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: {i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the fease and {iii) the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {(“ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and low value ieases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certaln
lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,
N

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluatéd for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

The Company as a lessor: Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental
income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2.16 Financial instruments:
(i) Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as flnancial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets
measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
- Financial assets at fair value
- Financial assets at amortized cost
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Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit
and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
other comprehensive income}.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write
down for impairment) unless the asset Is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to reafize its fair value
changes).

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

- Business model test: The financial assef is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an “accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses Impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) mode! to the following:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

- The 12- months expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from those default events on the fmanmal
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

- Full lifetime expected credit losses {(expected credit losses that result from all possible default events aver the life of

the financial instrument).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
- All other receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. '

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECLis used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognize impairment loss
allowance based on 12-months ECL,
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increase in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Investment in subsidiaries and associates
The Company has accounted for its investment in subsidiaries and associates at cost less impairment.
Other Investments

Quoted Investments: All other quoted investments are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Incomeé
in the balance sheet.

Unquoted Investments: All other unquoted investments are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income In the balance sheet, except those investments which the company has chosen to measure at cost as per Ind
AS 109 Financial Instruments Paragraph B5.2.3.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at fair
value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financia! position) when:

-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "'pass-through" arrangement and either;

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
- arrangement. [t evaluates if and to-what-extent it has retained the risks-and rewards-of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control. of the
asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

(ii} Financial liahilities:

Classification as debt or equity: Financial [iabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
~ according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument

Initial recognition and measurement: All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and
redeemable preference shares.

Subsequent measurement: The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

CHARTERED
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Loans and borrowings: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recoghized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization,

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

2,17 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or {iability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole: ’

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unchservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

CHARTERE
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2,18 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
Aliability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classifled as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle: Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents. A$ the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is
assumed o be twelve months.

2.19 Exceptional ltems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of
the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company, such
income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the
financial statements.

2,20 Government Grants & Subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the Company
will comply with the conditions attached to them, and {ii) the grant/subsidy will be received. When the grant or
subsidy relates to revenue, it Is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over
the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

2.21  Segment Reporting .
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating officer {CO0), in deciding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance, The Company’s chief operating officer is the Managing Director & CEOQ. '

2.22  Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 “Statement of
Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating activities.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company in the financial statements are as set out above. The
application of a number of these policies requires the Company to use a variety of estimation techniques and apply
judgment to best reflect the substance of underlying transactions.
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The Company has determined that a number of its accounting policies can be considered significant, in terms of the

management judgment that has been required to determine the various assumptions underpinning their application
in the financial statements presented which, under different conditions, could lead to material differences in these
statements. The actual results may differ from the judgments, estimates and assumptions made by the management
and will seldom equal the estimated results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments: The following are significant management judgments in applying the accounting policies of the
Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Assets: The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can
be utilized is based on the company's forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses,
and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in India in which the company operates
are also carefully taken into consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a
deferred tax asset, especially when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually
recognized in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or
uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Contingences and commitments: In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations
and other claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallizing or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but
are not provided for in the financial statements., Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of
the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financial position.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a materia! adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Liability for sales return: In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed
criteria for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular, whether the
Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods. Foliowing the
detailed quantification of the Company's liability towards sales return, the management is satisfied that significant
risk and rewards have been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in
conjunction with the recognition of an appropriate liability for sales return. Accruals for estimated product returns,
which are based on historical experience of actual sales returns and adjustment on account of current market
scenario is considered by Company to be reliable estimate of future sales returns.

Allowancefimpairment for uncollected accounts receivable and other advances: Trade receivables and other
advances do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowance/impairment which is made on ECL, and the present value of the cash shortfail over the expected life of
the financial assets,

91
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33. The related party disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 “Related Party” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below;

Sr. No. | Name of Related Party Relationship
1 | SEExports Subsidiary Partnership Firm
SEL Textiles Ltd. Subsidiary Company
SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary Company

*Silverline Corporation Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Company

V| | WM

*Mr. R. S. Saluja
Mr. NeerajSaluja
Mr. DhirajSaluja
Mr. Navneet Gupta
Mr. V.X, Goyal

Key Management Personnel

6 *Mrs. SnehlataSaluja
*Mrs. RituSaluja
*Mrs. ReemaSaluja

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

7 *Shiv Narayan Investments Pvt. Ltd,
*Saluja International
Rythm Textiles & Apparels Park Ltd.

Enterprises over which key management personnel and
relatives of such personnel is able to exercise significant

influence
*SEL Renewable Power Limited
*No transactions have taken place during the year.
Related Parties Transactions:
Particulars Subsidiaries Key Management and Total

Relatives of KMP &

Enterprises over which key

management personnel and

relatives of such personnel

is able to exercise significant

-- - : ' ' T influence”™ ~ T - T
31st March, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 3istMarch,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Purchase & Processing of
Goods & Consumakles Stores* - 1.20 - - - 1.20
Sale & Processing of Goods &
Consumables Stores* - .04 - - - 0.04
Services Receivable 13.59 90.49 - - 13.59 90.49
Services Paid 181.61 6.98 3.36 10.31 184,97 17.29
Share of Loss/{Profit) (47.49) 54,10 - - (47.49) 54.10
Rent Paid - - 10.70 42.80 10,70 42.80
Rent Receivable 7.00 7.00 - - 7.00 7.00
Managerial Remuneration - - 117.00 306.00 117.00 306.00
Corporate Guarantee Given** 201,324.00 201,324.00 - - 201,324.00 201,324.00
Closing Balance of Related
Parties Debits/{Credits) 6318.70 6,512.40 (4,758.34} (4,666.89) 1560.36 1,845.51

*excluding all taxes

**refer note no.49
In reference to Services Receivable, the component of pertains to the regular allocation of electricity expenses to the
subsidiary which was already approved prior to the recommencement of the CIRP process by the Board of Directors in a
board meeting dated 21.10.2017 and also no cash inflow occurred during the year.

In reference to Rent Receivable, the lease agreement was executed on dated 27.11.2017 which is prior to the
recommencement of the CIRP process and also no cash inflow occurred during the year.
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34. Earnings Per Share: The calculation of Earnings per Share as disclosed in the statement of Profit & Loss has
been in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS)-33 on “Earning per Share” issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of india.

A statement on calculation of Basic & Diluted EPS is as under:

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 331,347,000 331,347,000
Profit/(Loss) for the year {continuing operations) Lakhs (254,101,386) {23,596.54)
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) Rs. (76.69) (7.12)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (Discontinued cperations) Lakhs - -
Weighted average earnings per shares (baslc and diluted) Rs. - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (total operations) Lakhs (254,101.36) (232,596.54)
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) Rs. (76.69) (7.12)

35. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities: There are contingent liabilities in respect of the following items: No outflow is
expected in view of the past history relating to these items:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
(i) Export Bills Discounted 1,054.60 1,054.60
(i) Income Tax (net of deposit under protest) - 2,911.98
(iif} Export Incentives obligations refundable in respect of allowance for foreign 3,854.74 3,854.74
trade receivables*
(iv) Security Deposits** 1,286.27 -
*Subject to further Interest and penalty
**refer note no. 41
B. - .. - Capital - - - - = - - - -Commitments -
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
{i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 2,485.83 2,485.83

and not provi_ded for {net of advances)

Further, the company has made impairment provision against capital advances amounting Rs. 1,625.38 lakhs outstanding
since long and the orders placed with capital goods suppliers are more than two year and escalation costs, if any, in these
purchase orders shall be in addition to figures reported above,

36. Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon'tle National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) by State
Bank of India against SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (“Corporate Debtor” or the "Company"), under Section 7 of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from
time to time (“Code”), the NCLT vide its order {“Admission Order”) dated April 11, 2018 (“Insolvency Commencement
Date”) had admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of the
Corporate Debtor. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated April 25, 2018 (“IRP Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet
Kumar Gupta as the interim resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor (“IRP”). Due to legal interventions, CIRP was
in abeynace from May 01, 2018 to May 21, 2018. Subsequently, in the first meeting of the committee of creditors of the
Corporate Debtor held on June 15, 2018 IRP was confirmed as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor
{"Resolution Professional” or "RP").

Subsequently, a petition was filed by Mr. Dhiraj Saluja, one of the promoters and directors of the Corporate Debtor,
before the High Court (“Petition”} wherein the High Court, vide its interim order dated June 22, 2018, directed the CIRP
of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance and directed the earlier board of directors of the Corporate Debtor to
operate their bank accounts and bank operations as before the initiation of the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to protect
the interest of the bank consortium. This Petition was transferred to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”).
The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed the Transferred Case as
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withdrawn (“Withdrawa Order”}, A copy of the Withdrawal Grder was published on September 11, 2019 (“Publication
Date”). Accordingly, on and from the Publication Date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stands resumed. As part of
duties casted upon the Resolution Professional (RP) under the Code, the RP, has taken on record these financial
statements and has authorized the directors of the Company to sign these financial statements.

37. The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016”. In view
of this, the Company has stopped providing interest accrued and unpald effective 1st April, 2016 in its books. The
amount of such accrued and unpaid interest, calculated according to the CDR term, not provided for Is estimated at Rs.
57,776.67lakhs for the year ended 3ist March, 2020 and the same has not been censidered for preparation of the
financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2020. Due to non-provision of the interest €xpense, net loss for the year
ended 31*March, 2020 Is reduced by Rs. 57,776.67 lakhs, Further, the Financial Liability is reduced by Rs. 201,240.00
lakhs and correspondingly the equity is increased by the same amount.

38. Resolution plan received for SEL Manufacturing Company Limited, from consortium of ArrEss Industries Private Limited &

Leading Edge Commercial FZ, has been approved by Committee of Creditors on October 6, 2020 under provisions of

Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code and related Regulations. The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal has approved the

Resolution Plan on 10™ February, 2021,

39. Exceptional ftems for the year includes:
a. During the year, the Company has made an allowance for trade receivables under Expected credit losses (ECL)
Method aggregating to Rs. 546,39 lakhs, net of amount callected and provision made, in compliance of ind AS
109 which is charged to Staternent of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item. Though the company strongly
believes that these trade receivables are fully recoverable.

b. The Company has given capital & trade advances to the suppliers and other current assets that are outstanding
for a long time. In view of reduction in activities, the materials and services could not be called from such
suppliers, In compliance of Ind AS 36impairment for capital & trade advances and other current assets
amounting to Rs. 28,031.82 lakhs, net of amount adjusted and provision made, which is charged to Statement of
Profit & Loss as an exceptional item. Though the company strongly believes that these advances are fully
recoverable/adjustahble.

c. The Company was implementing a Spinning Project which got stuck due to non-disbursement of credit facilities =

by the barks, However, post Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CiRP} the Company impairment testing
has been conducted and considering the technical assessment and management estimates, INR 12,544.57 lakhs
value of Capital wark in progress has been impaired as per Ind AS 36. A provision for impairment has been
recorded, which is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item.

e, The Company has impaired the investment in subsidiaries and others amounting to INR 202,100.73 Lakhs.,
which is charged to Profit & Loss as exceptional item.

40. There are no long-term contracts, as on the date of balance sheet, including derivative contracts for which there are any
material foreseeable losses,

41. Notice receivad from Madhya Pradesh Electricity Board: The MP State Electricity Board had issued a “notice of
discontinuance of supply” on 11th March 20 (against demand raised on 12th Dec 2019) upon the Company demanding as
due and payable INR 1286.27 lakhs an account of a revision of the security deposit In terms of Madhya Pradesh
Electricity Regulatory Commission {Security Deposit) (Revision—1) Regulations, 2009 (“MERC Regulations”} and other
energy charges.

42, With reference to the Bank Balances of Current Accounts under the head Cash & Cash Equivalents, an amount of Rs, 1.08
crores could not be substantiated due to hon-avaifability of Bank Statements which pertains to the period which is prior
to the commencement of the CIRP. To the best of our knowledge these amounts pertain to the cut-back account and
may have been appropriated towards loan outstanding by respective banks, However, the bank statements have not
been provided by the respective banks, therefore, the balance amounts have been presented under Suspense Account,
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43. During the year, Central Bureau of Investigation carried out search & seizure action at the registered office of the
Company and the residence of the erstwhile Directors of the Company on 5th November 2019 from 09.30 AM to 09.00
PM. under section 165 of the Criminal Procedure Code on the Company and its directors. The consequential proceedings
are in progress.

44. During the year, the Company has received notice dated February 13, 2020 on February 26, 2020 fram the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs further ordering the investigation of books of accounts and papers under section 210{1}(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the erstwhile Directors of the Company under section 217(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been issued summons to appear before the authorities. The conseguential proceedings are in progress

45.During the year, the Company has received summon dated March 4, 2020 on March 12, 2020 from the Directorate
General of GST Intelligence under section 14 of the Central Excise Act, 1944 to give evidence truthfully on such matters
concerning the enquiry as may be asked and produce the documents and records for examination. The consequential
proceedings are in progress.

46.During the year, the Company has received summon dated November 6, 2019 from the Directorate of Enforcement
{(“ED") ufs 37 of the FEMA, 1999 read with Section 131 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Section 30 of Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908. Summon was issued in matter of GDRs issued by the SEL for which an exhaustive list of documents was
being asked to be furnished to them as per Annex A of the said order ranging from details of GDR issued, foreign
subscribers, foreign and Indian mediator involved with overseas banks, movement of subscribed funds and its end
utilization, adherence of applicable laws for pricing of GDR.

47.During the year, with reference to the Global Depository Receipts {"GDR”) of the company, the BNY Mellon has resigned
as Depository Bank for the company’s Depository Receipts (“DR”) program through letter dated 06" December 2019,

48. with reference to interest subsidy receivable, the subsidies are to be released by the Ministry of Textiles and MP
Government and the Company is not hopeful of receiving the same. During the year, a provision for impairment has been
recorded for INR 26,621.40 lakhs (included above in note no. 39{b)) and the same does have an impact on the losses of
the company.

49. The company had given financial guarantee to the extent of INR 201,324 lakhs to the bankers of its subsidiary namely,
SEL Textiles Limited, to secure the credit facilities availed by it. The sald guarantee has been invoked by the bankers
before initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited and hence said
financial guarantee amounting INR 201,324 lakhs (consisting of principal outstanding and interest thereon upto 31"
March 2020 calculated as per terms of MRA with CDR lenders of subsidiary company) and has been duly recognized in
financial statements as required by Ind AS 109. There was a corresponding amount of investment in Subsidiary recorded
up to that extent, however, considering negative net worth of SEL Textile Limited, a provision for impairment has been
recorded for INR 201,324 lakhs.

50. Subsequent to the year-end 31st March, 2020, the Principal Commissioner of Income Tax {Central), Ludhiana filed an
appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana which was heard on November 4, 2020 in the matter
pertaining to the assessment u/s 153 w.r.s 143(3) of the income Tax Act, 1961 for the assessment years 2010-11, 2011-
12 & 2013-14,which was completed on January 31, 2017 where an amount of INR 280.00 crores was demanded from the
Company. Appeals that were filed before the CIT (A} on July 27, 2017 were decided by the CIT (A} on December 29, 2017
against the company. On February 02, 2018, Company filed an appeal before the ITAT, Chandigarh bench against the
order of CIT {A} and the same had been decided by the ITAT in the favor of the Company on February 28, 2019.

51. Segment Information: Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues: In accordance with
ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the chief executive officer (CEO) of the Company reported that the company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing & processing of textile products i.e. a single business and all business activities
revolve around this segment.

Geographical information: The Company operates in two principal geographical areas - India and outside India.
The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and informaticn
about its non-current assets* by location of assets are detailed below.

Particulars Revenue from external customers Non-turrent assets*

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
India 24,541.62 24,446.78 145,176.60 168,535.19
Qutside India 4,562.67 21,464.19 - -
Total 29,104.29 45,910.97 145,176.60 168,535.19

*Non-current assets exclude those relating to financlal assets and deferred tax assets.
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Information about major customers: Two customer contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue during the
financial year 2019-20.

Lease Rent

i. During the last financial year, Factory Building had taken on lease for 5 years & Office Premises is taken on lease for 11

months with the option of renewal. During the year, the company has discontinued the lease agreements which had
taken on lease for 5 years. The particutars of these leases are as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Future Minimum lease payments obligation on non-cancellable operating leases: - 200.81
Not later than one year - 72.42
Later than one year and not later than five years - 128.39
Later than five years - -
Lease payment recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 40.13 86.14

i. Rent Income alse includes Lease Rentals received towards Land, Factory Bullding & Office Premises. Such operating

leases are generally for a period of 5 to 15 years. The particulars of these leases are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Future Minimum lease rental under non-cancellable operating leases: 77.18 115,78

Not later than one year 18.20 22.02

Later than one year and not later than five years 47.90 66.03

Later than five years 11.08 27.73

Lease Income recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 19.23 24.79

Capital Work in Progress includes, Project and Pre-operative Expenses pending allocation to fixed assets:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
~ Opening Balance = - ’ TOB7100° © 0 T o 671.00 -

Add: Expenses incurred during the year - -

Less: Impaired during the year 671.00 -

Closing Balance - 671.00

The summarized position of Post-Employment benefits and long term employee henefits recognized in the Profit & Loss
Account and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 19) are as under:

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity: The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the
Company's financial statements as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019:

{Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

L Change in benefit obligations
Present value of obligations as at the beginning 597.43 684.22
Current Service cost 128.83 131.42
Interast expense 41.82 53.02
Remeasurements-Actuarial {gains)/ losses {45.39) (232.33)
Benefits paid (70.25) {38.90)
Present value of obligations as at the end £§52.44 597.43
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I Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 6.03 ' 16.74
Return on plan assets 0.42 130
Remeasurements-Actuarial {gains)/ losses 1.45 {0.55)
Contributions 90.88 27.44
Benefits paid (70.25) {38.90)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 28.53 6.03
Funded status (623.91) (591.40)
mnr. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Amount for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee
benefit expenses.

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Service cost 128.83 131.42
Interest cost 41,82 53.02
Return on plan assets (0.42) (1.30}
Net gratuity cost 170.23 183.14
V. Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income

Amount for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:

Particulars i 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Actuarial {gains) / losses (45.85} (231.77)
V. Actuarial Assumptions
The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 are set out
helow:
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Discount rate {per annum) 7.00% 7.75%
Salary Growth Rate [per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality - JALM (2012-14)IALM {2006-08)
Exbected rate of return on Plan Assets 500% o 5.00%
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
VL Sensitivity Analysis {in lakhs)
Particulars 31.03-2020
Decrease | Increase
Discount Rate (-/+1%) 714.02 599.66
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 9% 8%
Safary growth Rate (-/+1%) 59:;5 714.6510%
(% change compared to hase due to sensitivity}
. 645.31 658.22
Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 1% 19

{% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Provident Fund: During the year, the company has recognized an expense of Rs. 383.78 lakhs [Previous Year Rs. 442.70
lakhs) towards provident fund scheme.

Leave Encashment: During the year, the company has recognized an expense of Rs. 45.83 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 60.34
jakhs).
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Deferred Tax Recognized (IND AS 12):
1. Income Tax:
The Company has not recognized any income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income
during the year on account of accumulated losses.

2. Recapnized deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Particular Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 46,542.44 46,050.77
Right of use assets - -
Deferred tax assets*
Provision for gratuity ‘ {623.90) {591.40)
Provision for leave encashment {139.68) (136.12)
Provision for bad debts (1,37,312.44) {1,08,734.22)
Provision for bonus {516.80) (444.04)
Lease liabilities - -
Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses {2,16,431.00} (2,04,902.80}
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (3,08,481.38) (2,68,757.82)

*In accordance with Ind AS 12, recognition of deferred tax asset has been restricted to the deferred tax liability as there is no
reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets will be realized,

3. Unrecognized deferred tax assets;
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized with respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable

_ _ profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom:. . _ . ... . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ .

Particulars Yearended Year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2018

Peductible temporary difference - -

Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses {2,16,431.00) [2,04,902.80)

{2,16,431.00) {2,04,902.80)

4. Reconciliation of effective tax rate; : The major components of income-tax expense and the reconciliation of tax expense based on
the effective tax rate of the Company at 34.944% and the reperted tax expense in profit or loss are as follows -

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Profit hefore tax & After Exceptional items (2,54,101.34) (13,012.96)
Add: Exceptional Items 2,44,026.36 10,305.38
Profit before tax {10,074.98) {2,707.58)

Less: Capital gains (taxable under long term capital gain) - -

Profit before tax (business loss) {10,074.98) {2,707.58)

Income tax expense calculated at demestic tax rates applicable to profits - -
(34.944%)

Less : Unrecorded deferred tax assets on carry forward losses and other
tempaorary differences - .

Income Tax expense - d
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5. Tax losses carried forward: Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognized expire as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs})

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

FY 2013-14 11,577.26 11,577.26

FY 2015-16 49,577.79 49,577.79

FY 2016-17 62,861.30 62,861.30

Unabsorbed depreciation 92,414.65 80,886.45
2,16,431.00 2,04,902.80

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying value and fair value of financlal instruments at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Cost

FVTPL

FYTOCI

Amortized Cost

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

31.03.2020 31.03.201%

31.03,2020 | 31.03.2

019

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Investments in

- Equity
Instruments*

253925.77

253925.77

69.51

162.80

- Others

8.68

(24.81)

43.07

48.59

Other Financial
Assets

Q.50

0.50

Current Assets

Trade Recejvables®

110,462.79 | 107066.42

Other Financial
Assets

466.47 2738278

Cash & Cash
Equivalents

181.76 47

5.12

Bank Balances
other than above

3464 | 3259

TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS

253,934.45

253900.96

211.39

111,145.66 | 134,957.41

FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Non-Current
Liabilities

Borrowings

118,092.11 | 158,498.35

Current Liabilities

Borrowings

342,718.54 | 342,261.40

Trade Payahles

6,766.73 6843.50

Other Financial
Liabilities

172,824.90 | 131,187.39

TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

640,402.28 | 638,790.64

*including impairment in value of investments amounting Rs. 253,914lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 52023.45 lakhs)
# including allowance for doubtful debts amounting Rs. 103,350.17lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 102803.78 lakhs)

57. Revenue from operations for the year ended 3ist March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 is as follows:(In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Revenue from sale of products 8,677.93 24,459.23
Revenue from job work 20,426.36 21,451.64
Total Revenue from Operations 29,104.29 45,910.97
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Disaggregate Revenue Information: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers
for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 by type of goods and services.

{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 March31, 2019
Terry Towels 5,598.62 21,691.48
Yarn 1,373.21 1,205.71
Garments 16.79 573.11
Knitted Cloth 12.22 28191
Others 1,677.08 707.12
lob Work 20,426,36 21,451.64
Total 29,104.29 45,910.97

Trade receivables: Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations: The remaining performance obligation disclosure
provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as
given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for
contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance
completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis, Remaining performance
obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the
scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for
currency,

58. Fair Value Measurement :The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

{in Lakhs
Fair Value Measurement using
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Non-Current Investments
-- Fair Value through OCi - - ~69.51 © T 8516 T 43.077 T T T126.22{ o -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 621,708.24 620,937.37 - -

59. The balances of Trade Receivables, Loan and Advances, Deposits and Trade Payables are subject to
confirmation/reconciliation and subsequent adjustments, i any. During the year, letters have been sent to various
parties with a request to confirm their balances as on 31% March, 2020 out of which few parties have confirmed their
balances to the company.

60. Financial Risk Management

The Company's principal financial liabllities comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and other
current liabilities, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company's operations. The
Company has loans and receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term depaesits that arise directly
from its operations. The management of the company has set out the company's overall business strategies and its risk
management policy. The Company’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company. The company policies include financial risk management policies
covering specific areas, such as market risk (including forelgn exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk).
Periodic reviews are undertaken to ensure that the company’s policy guidelines are complied with.

There has been no change to the company’s exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk. The company is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments. The company has not
framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are monitored by management on a continuous basis. The
company does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, investment in securities, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative or risk management purposes. '

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:
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(a} Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans & borrowings and
deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st
March, 2019,

The followlng assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

i} The sensitlvity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on
the net interest income for one year, based on the average rate of borrowings held during the year ended 3ist
March, 2019, all other variables being held constant. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions.

{bjForeign Currency Risk Management: The Company undertakes certaln transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

(c} Liquidity Risk Management: The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash
flow that is generated from operations. The Company has outstanding bank borrowings. The Company is passing
through a phase of liquidity stress and there is a mismatch in cash flows. Due to this, the capacities of the Company
are running at sub-optimal level. The Company is at an advanced stage of negotiations with the banks for
restructuring of its debt which would correct the cash flow mismatch. The Company belleves that post restructuring,
the Company would be able to generate encugh cash inflows to meet its working capital requirements in the medium
and long run.

The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

(d) Credit Risk Management: Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk has always been managed by the company through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the company grants
cradit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit
loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company has exposure to credit risk from trade receivable batances
on sale of Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns. The Company has entered into short-term agreements with
companies incorporated in overseas to sell the Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns. Therefore, the Company is

. committed, in the short term, to sell Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns_te.these customers and the.potential risk of .

default is considered low. For other customers, the Company ensures concentration of credit does not significantly
impair the financial assets since the customers to whom the exposure of credit is taken are weli established and reputed
industries engaged in their respective field of business. The creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants
credit in the normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

(e) Capital Risk Management: The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The director’s policy is to maintain a strong capital
base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business,

No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March,
2019.

61. On account of COVID-19 pandemic the Company has made assessment of its liguidity position for the next year and the

recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments,
inventories and trade receivables as at the date of the balance sheet. The Company has considered internal and external
sources of information for making said assessment. Basis the evaluation of the current estimates, the Company expects
to recover the carrying amount of these assets and no material adjustments is required in the financial statements. Given
the uncertainties associated with nature, condition and duration of COVID-19, the Company wiil closely monitor any
material changes arising of the future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be
recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic condition arise.
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62. Previous year amounts have been reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable and conform to Ind AS
presentation,

63. Note No. 1 to 62 forms integral part of balance sheet and statement of profit /loss.

For Manik Malhotra & Associates For and on the behalf of Board of
Chartered Accountants SEL Manufacturing Company Limited

FRN: 015848N -

Mol

{CA Manik Malhao
Partner
M. No.: 094604

)

[V.K.Goyal) {Navneet Gupta) (Ra%l(ap'oor)

Director & CEO  Director & CFQ Company Secretary
DIN: §2751391 DIN: 02122320

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 13.02.2021
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion} submitted along-with
Annual Audited Financial Results:
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 3 1,2020

(Standalone Financial Results) (Rs. In Lakhs)
L SL Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported (audited figures
before adjusting after adjusting for
for qualifications) qualifications)
1. Turnover/Total Income 36,764.08 36,764.08
2. Total Expenditure 46,839.08 1,04,616.08
(Excluding Exceptional Items and
Tax adjustments)
3. Net Profit/-(Loss) -2,54,101.36 -3,11,878.36
4. | Earnings Per Share -76.69 -94.11
5. Total Assets 1,59,537.03 1,59,537.03
6. Total Liabilities 6,41,310.40 8,42,550.40
7. Net Worth -4,81,773.37 -6,83,013.37
8. | Any other financial item(s) (as felt None None
appropriate by the management)
IL | Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately)
a. Details of Audit | Regarding non provision of interest on borrowings from banks
Qualification {classified as NPA) amounting Rs. 57,777 lakhs & Rs. 53,478
lakhs (amount calculated after considering the rates and terms
and conditions stipulated originally as per COR package) for the
year ended 31° March, 2020 & 31° March 2019 respectively.
The same is not in compliance with the requirements of para 27
of the Ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements w.r.i.
preparation of financial statements on accrual basis.
b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion
Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion
c. Frequency of qualification: Fourth Time
Whether  appeared first
time/repetitive/since how long
continuing
d. For Audit Qualification(s) | The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated
where the impact is | under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016”. In view of this,
quantified by the auditor, | the Company has stopped providing interest accrued and
Management’s Views: unpaid effective 1st April, 2016 in its books. The amount of such
accrued and unpaid interest, calculated according to the CDR
term, not provided for is estimated at Rs. 57,777 lakhs for the
yvear ended 31st March, 2020 and the same has not been
considered for preparation of the financial results for the year
ended 31st March, 2020. Due to non-provision of the interest
expense, net loss for the year ended 31**March, 2020 is reduced
by Rs. 57,777 lakhs. Further, the Financial Liability is reduced by
Rs. 201,240.00 lakhs and correspondingly the equity is
increased by the same amount,
e. For Audit Qualification(s) | --N.A.--

where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020
(Standalone Financial Results)

IL

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately)

Details of Audit

Qualification

The company has provided for impairment of Capital work in
progress by Rs. 12,544 lacs as per INDAS-36 for the year ended
March 31, 2020. As per representation given by Resolution
Professional, the impairment of Capital WIP is done on the basis
of valuation report as at the Insolvency Commencement Date.
However, the said valuation Reports are not provided to us
considering the confidentiality of the same. Hence, we are
unable to justify its reasonableness.

Type of Audit Qualification:

Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion

Qualified Opinion

Frequency of qualification:
Whether appeared  first
time/repetitive/since  how
long continuing

First Time

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is
quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views:

~N.A--

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:

1) Management’s
estimation on the impact of
audit qualification:

~N.A-—

(ii) If management is unable
to estimate the impact,
reasons for the same:

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated
under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016”. In view of this,
the impairment of Capital WIP is done on the basis of valuation
report as at the Insolvency Commencement Date. However, the
said valuation Reports are not shared to any person/authority
considering the confidentiality of the same.

(iii) Auditors’ Comments on
(1) or (ii) above:

The said valuation reports are not provided to us considering the
confidentiality of the same. Hence, we are unable to justify its
reasonableness.

Vi
Place: Ludhiana w“}‘
e ’
Dated:13.02.2021 (E CEQ) (Pirector & CFO)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Financial Statements of SEL Manufacturing Company
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries ( the company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group” ) which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph , except for the possible effects of our
observations described in the Paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion below , the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements read with Paragraph Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern and
paragraph Emphasis of Matters described below give the information required by the Companies
Act,2013(" the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended (“Iind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2020, the
consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibliities Jor the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements,

We refer to:

package) for the year ended 31 March, 2020 & 31* March 2019 respectively. The same is not in
compliance with the requirements of para 27 of the ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements
w.r.t. preparation of financial statements on accrual basis. Consequently, borrowings are not
reflected at fair value in financial statements as required by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments.




2] Note No. 43(iii) of the consolidated financial statements, the company has provided for impairment
of Capital work in progress by Rs. 12,544 Lacs as per INDAS-36 for the year ended 31% March,
2020. As per representation given by Resolution Professional, the impairment of Capital WIP is
done on the basis of valuation report as at the Insolvency Commencement Date. However the said
valuation Reports are not provided to us considering the confidentiality of the same. Hence, we are
unable to justify its reasonableness.

3) The Group has not provided to us for our review any working regarding impairment testing
conducted to assess recoverable amount of Capital work in progress of Rs 38,990 Iacs (relating to
subsidiary company) outstanding as at 31st March, 2020, We are unable to comment on whether
the company needs to make a provision in respect of impairment losses on above as required under
Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets.

4) Note no. 18, 21 and 23 of the Consolidated financial statements In respect of Borrowings and other
financial liabilities respectively contains secured loans from banks and current maturities thereof.
There is shortfalf in the carrying value of the security against the secured loans consequently the
loans are not fully secured.

5} The Group has not provided for reversal of input tax amounting to Rs. 169 lacs frelating to
subsidiary company) on trade payables outstanding for more than 180 days under rule 37 of CGST
Rules and Sec. 16(2) of the CGST Act.

We further report that, had the impact of our observations made in paragraph 1 & 5 of Basis for
qualified opinion paragraph been considered, the net loss for the year ended 31" March, 2020 would
have been increased by Rs. 81,966 facs and the borrowings for the year ended 31% March 2020 and 31%
March 2019 would have been increased by Rs. 285,631 fucs &Rs. 203,665 lacs and Equity would have
been reduced by the same amount for the years ended 31" March 2020 and 31% March 2019
respectively. Further, Loans & Advances would have been reduced by the Rs. 169 lacs Jor the year ended
31* March, 2020.The financial impact of matters stated in paragraphs 2 to 5 to the Basis for Qualified
Opinion can’t be measured refiably.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Note no. 38 of the consolidated financial statements, stating thereto that the terms and conditions of
the sanctioned CDR package w.r.t. interest and principal repayment were not complied with in respect
of Parent company. Consequently, State Bank of India, in its capacity as financial creditor had filed a
petition under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016{IBC) against the parent company with Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench {NCLT) which was admitted on 11th April 2018 and
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP} has been initiated in terms of IBC, Subsequently the
NCLT vide its order dated 25" April, 2018 {(“IRP Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta as the
interim resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor (“IRP”). Due to legal interventions, CIRP was in
abeyance from 1* May, 2018 to 21% May, 2018. Subsequently, in the first meeting of the committee of
creditors of the Corporate Debtor held on 15 June, 2018 IRP was confirmed as the resolution
professional of the Corporate Debtor {“Resolution Professional”).The company has filed an appeal
against the admission of petition and appointment of IRP with NCLAT. This petition was transferred to
the Hon'ble Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”). The Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order dated 6"
September, 2019 as prayed for, dismissed the transferred case as withdrawn {“Withdrawal Order”). A
copy of withdrawal order was published on 11" September, 2019 (“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on
and from the Publication date, the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor stands resumed. The Group has
incurred net loss of Rs, 58,736 lacs for the year ended 31* March, 2020 leading to erosion of entire net
worth and current liabilities have exceeded the current assets of the company.

Moreover the terms and conditions of the sanctioned CDR package w.r.t. interest and principal
repayment (relating to subsidiary company) were not complied with. Consequently, the bank accounts
of the subsidiary company also became non performing, The subsidiary company has incurred losses
leading to erosion of entire net worth and current liabilities have exceeded the current assets of the
subsidiary company, Further concerning the subsidiary company’s ability to realize the value of




inventories, trade receivables and other financial assets, to meet its contractual/ financial obligations
w.r.t. repayment of overdue principal and accrued interest on secured borrowings, arranging working
capital for ensuring normal operations, further investments required towards ongoing projects under
construction. Due to financial constraints, the subsidiary company has started job work operations in
tmajor spinning plants instead of pursulng its own manufacturing activities and major source of
operating income during the year under consideration is from job work. This condition indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the subsidiary company’s ability
10 continue as going concern and therefore the subsidlary company may be unable to realize its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business,

Further refer to Note no. 41 of the consolidated financial statements, the Resolution Plan (relating to
parent company)submitted by the consortium of Arr Ess Industries Private Limited & Leading Edge
Commercial FZE had been approved by the members of the Committee of Creditors {(“CoC”) on
October 6, 2020 under the provisions insolvency and Bankruptcy Code and related regulations. Further,
The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunai has approved the Resolution Plan on 10 February, 2021.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:
{1) Note No. 39 of the consolidated financial statements in respect of Contingency related to
‘compensation payable in lieu of bank sacrifice,” the outcome of which is materially uncertain
and cannot be determined currently.

(2) Note No. 37A {iii) of the consolidated financial statements in respect of contingency related to
export fncentives obligation refundable amounting Rs. 4,921 lacs in respect of allowance for
foreign trade receivables, which is further subject to interest and penalties. The amount of such
abligation cannot be determined currently.

(3) Note no. 42, to the consolidated financial statements regarding the balance confirmations of
Trade Receivables, Capital/Trade Advances & Trade Payables. During the course of preparation
of consolidated financial statements, letters have been sent to various parties by the parent
company and its subsidiaries with a request to confirm their balances as on 31% March, 2020
out of which few parties have confirmed their balances direct to the company and to the
auditors of its subsidiaries.

(4) As reported vide note 43(i) and (ii) to the consolidated financial statements, the group has
provided for allowance/impairment of Rs. 32,100 lacs in compliance of ind AS 109 under
Expected credit losses (under ECL Model} In respect of Trade Receivables and Capital/Trade
Advances given to suppliers.

(5) Note no. 43(iv) of the consolidated financial statements, the Group has written down
Inventories of Finished Goods identified as non-moving, slow moving, obsolete and damaged
inventory to net realizable value by Rs 803 Lacs for the year ended on 31% March, 2020. The
same has been charged to Statement of profit & loss as exceptional item.

(6) Note No.53 read with 43(ii} of the consolidated financial statements, the company has
provided for allowance for interest subsidy receivable amounting to Rs. 26,621 Lacs for the
year ended on 31% March, 2020 which consists of interest subsidy (i) under TUFS from Ministry
of Textiles and (i) Subsidy under Textile Policy of Government of Madhya Pradesh for the
financial years 2013-14 to 2016-17.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this Matter.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response

Litigations, provisions and contingencies

The Group is involved in several ongoing direct and
indirect tax litigations.

The assessment of the existence of the present legal
Or constructive obligation, analysis of the probability
or possibility of the related payment require the
management to make judgement and estimates In
relation to the issues of each matter.

The management with the help of opinion and advise
of its experts have made such judgements and
estimates relating to the likelihood of an obligation
arising and whether there is a need to recognize a
provision or disclose a contingent liability.

The Group recognises a provision when it has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where
there is a possible obligation or 2 present obligation
that may probably not require an outflow of
resources, When there is a possible or a present
obligation where the Ilikelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

We have identified litigations, provisions and
contingencies as a key audit matter because it
requires the management to make Judgements and
estimates in relation to the exposure arising out of
litigations. The key judgement lies in the estimation
of provisions where they may differ from the future
obligations. The Group operates under several tax
laws and some of these have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

In view of the significance of the matter we
applied the following audit procedures in this
area, among others to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence:

We tested the effectiveness of key controls
around the recording and assessment of tax
provisions and contingent fiabilities.

We assessed the value of the provisions and
contingent liabilities in light of the nature of the
exposures, applicable regulations and related
correspondences with the authorities,

We have reviewed and held discussions with the
management to understand their processes to
identify new possible obligations and changes in
existing obligations for compliance with the
requirements of Ind AS 37 on Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

We have aiso discussed with the management
significant changes from prior periods and
obtained a detailed understanding of these items
and assumptions applied. We have held regular
meetings with the management and key legal
personnel responsible for handling legal matters.

In addition, we have reviewed the details of the
proceedings before the relevant authorities
including communication from the advocates /
experts; status of each of the material matters as
on the date of the balance sheet,

We have assessed the appropriateness of
provisioning based on assumptions made by the
management and presentation of the significant
contingent liabilities in the financial statements,

Information Other than the Consolidated Finan
The Group’s Board of Directors is responsible
after called the Management Discussion and

Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
not include the consolidated Financial Statements and our Aud

cial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
for the preparation and presentation of its report herein
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s

and Shareholder’s Information but does
ftor's Report thereon. The Management

Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governiance and Shareholder’s Information is expected to be made available to us

after the date of this auditor's report,




Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therean,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materfally inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent has been under the corporate insolvency resolution process under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('the Code'). The powers of the Board of Directors stand
suspended as per Section 17 of the Code and such powers are being exercised by the Resolution
Professional appointed by the NCLT under the provisions of the Code. .As per the order dated
September 6, 2019 of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the
company has been restored and as per Section 20 of the Code, the management and operations of the
parent company are being managed by the Resolution Professional Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta.

The Company’s management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indjan
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors
of the subsidiary companies in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each subsidiary to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management/Resolution Professional is also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism th roughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143 (3)(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in Indfa, has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and perfoermance of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify du ring our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and




other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. .

From the matters communicated with those charged with Bovernance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Other Matters
We draw attention to the following matter:

1. We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of two Subsidiaries, whose
financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets (net) of Rs. 4792 lacs as at 31st
March, 2020 and total revenue of Rs. 2 tacs, for the year ended on 31st March, 2020, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/ financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our repart
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

2. We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of subsidiary wherein total assets {net)
of Rs. 16 lacs as at 31st March, 2020.The group’s share of profit aggregate to Rs. 48 lacs for the
year ended. These unaudited financial statements as approved by the respective management
of the subsidiary have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as It- relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections {3) and (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relate to the aforesaid subsidiaries are based solely on such
approved unaudited financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our refiance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors as well as our reliance on such approved
unaudited financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and  belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements,

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the report of the other auditor.

¢. The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated
statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
accounts maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements .

d. In our opinion, the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” and "Emphasis of Matter”
paragraphs above may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the group.




“ e Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

March, 2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the company and its subsidiaries and the
report of the statutory auditors of the Subsidiary Companies, none of the directors of the Group
Companies is disqualified as an 31st March, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls , refer to our Separate report in “Annexure A” which is
based on the auditor's reports of the companry and its subsidiary Companies

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the vear is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

L With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended , in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in jts
consolidated financial statements — Refer Note no. 37 to the consolidated financial statements;

were any material foreseeable losses. .
iit. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

FOR MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN.: 015843N

Mk Moot

PLACE: LUDHIANA (CA. MANIK MALHOTRA)
DATED: 13.02.2021 PARTNER
M.NO.: 094604

UDin 21094 b60b-Anp A 1835
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph (g} under the “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report to the members of SEL Manufacturing Company Limited of even date)

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31% March, 2020 we have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of
SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (Hereinafter referred to as “parent” and its subsidiary companies
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Act.

Controls over Financial Rep'orting {the "Guidance Note”} issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companles
Act,2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interpal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and Operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

our qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company and its subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in Indja.




Meaning of Internat Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail -accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial
controls over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over Financial reporting with regard to the Group were not
made available to us to enable us to determine if the Group. has established adequate internal financial
control over financial reporting and whether such internal financjal controls operating effectively as on

31st March, 2020.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below,
the company , its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated In India, in respect of the
matters disclosed in paragraphs under “Basis for Qualified Opinion” and “Emphasis of Matter” of our
main Independent Auditor's Report which came to our notice during the course of audit of
consolidated financial statements indicates material weaknesses in the internal financial controls over
financial reporting as at 31st March, 2020.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis,

Qualified Oplnion
In our opinion, the matters disclosed in above paragraphs under “Basis for Qualified Opinion” indicate
material weaknesses in the internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under section 143(3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of

the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company,
which are company incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors
of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.




We have considered the disclaimer of opinion
Qualified Opinion paragraph in determining t
audit of the financial statements of the C
disclaimer and material weaknesses do not a
of the Group.

PLACE: LUDHIANA
DATED: 13.02,2021
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as well as material weaknesses identified and reported in
he nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
ompany for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and the
ffect our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements

FOR MALHOTRA MANIK & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN.: 015848N

Ay
é} CHARTERED
COUNTANT
[V_Q_w/c M -
{CA. MANIK MALHOTRA)
PARTNER

M.NO.: 094604 _
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019%
ASSETS
{1) Non Current Assets
() Property, Plant and Equipment 5 2,01,004.62 2,15,520.33
{b} Capital Work in Progress 5 43,235.73 55,940.78
{c} Investment Praperty - -
{d} Goodwill - -
(e} Other Intangible Assets 5 - -
(f) Intangible Assets under Development . -
{g) Bictogleal Assets Other Than Bearer Plants B -
{h} Financial Assets
{i} Investments B 4,181.76 4,280,56
{ii) Trade Receivable - -
{iii) Loans - -
{iv) Others 7 8.75 18.84
{i} Deferred Tax Assets [Net} - -
{f} Other Nen-Current Assets B 4,150.82 4,053.57
2,52,581.67 2,79,814.50
{2} Current Assets
{a) Inventories g 4,191.57 ?,272.38
{b) Financial Assets
[i} Current Investments - -
[i3) Trade Receivables 10 7414.28 5,901.30
iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 264.83 539.31
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iif) above 12 34,79 32,74
{v] Loans - -
{vi) Others 13 6,805.28 33,721.95
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 1a 2,532.91 1,878,98
{d) Other Current Assets 15 3,011.26 3,887.21
24,255.02 53,233.87
TOTAL ASSETS 2,76,836.69 3,33,048.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{2) Equity Share Capital 16 33,134.70 33,134.70
{b} Other Equity 17 (3,69,154.74) (3,09,367.55)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (3,36,020.04) {2,76,232.85)
Non-Controlling Interest * - 17.47 18.31
Totat Equity (3,36,002.57) {2,76,214.54}
LIABILITIES
{1} Non-Current Liabllities
{a) Financial Liabifities .
(i) Borrowings 18 1,61,470.46 2,19,495.12
{il) Trade Payables - -
{iii) Other Financial Liabilites 19 6.85 -
(b] Provisions 20 178.38 173.47
(c} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) - -
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilities - -
1,61,655.70 2,19,668.59
{2) Current Liabilities
{a) Financiat Liabilitles
{i) Borrowings 21 1,75,535.73 | 1,77,132.41
(i#) Trade Payables 22
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; - -
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 11,958.99 12,011.34
{iii} Other Financial Liabilities 23 2,60,492.18 1,99,557.32
{b} Other Current Liabilities 24 2464.7% 184.64
{c) Provisions 25 731.87 708.59
{d) Current Tax Liabifities(Net) - -
4,51,183.56 3,89,594.31
TOTALEQUITY & LIABILITIES 2,16,836.69 3,33,048.36

See accompanying notes to the financlal statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Malhotra Manik & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No, 015848N

m«ﬁﬁ(\l\ﬂl a}lgmaj

Partner
M.No.: 034604

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 13.02,2021
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For and on the behalf of Board of Directors
SEL Manufacturing Company Limited

K.Goyal)
Director &CEQ
DIN: 02751391

Navneet Gupta)
Directar &CFO
DIN: 02122420

{Rahul Kapoor}
Company Secretary



SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

{Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
I. Revenue From Operations 26 35,261.58 60,672.87
II. Other Income 27 9,902.99 9,168.72
L. Tatal income [i+01) 45,154.57 69,841.59
V. Expenses
Cost of Materizls Consumed 28 6,809.23 19,395.57
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 732.80 281.92
Changes in Inventaries of Finlshed Goads, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 29 2,608.94 1,248.15
Employee Benefits Expense 30 9,027.33 11,460.88
Finance Cost 31 263.06 684.27
Depreclation and Amartization Expense 32 14,505.62 14,630.76
Other Expense 33 24,428.96 34,502.78
Total Expensas {IV) 58,375.96 82,204.33
V. Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional ltems And Tax [i-Iv) {13,211.39) (12,362.74)
VI, Exceptional ltems 34 45,524.79 24,884.24
VL. Profitf{Loss) Before Tax (V-V1) {58,736.18) (37.246.98)
VIII. Tax Expense
a) Earlier Years - (0.03)
IX. Profit/{Loss} for the period from Continuing Operations (VII-Vill) (58,736.18) {37,246.94)
X. Profit/{Loss) from Dis¢ontinued Operations - -
XI. Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations - -
L. Profit/{toss] from Discontinulng Operations {(After Tax) [X-X[} - .
XIEL. Profitf{Loss) for the period {(IX+X) {58,736.18) (37,246.94)
Profit/(Loss} attributable to
[1) Owners of the Company (58,735.34) (37,249.45)
{2} Non-Controlling Interests {0.84) 2.50
Profitf{Loss) for the period {58,736.18) {37,246.94)
XIV. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 96.79 496,51
B {i} items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss {1,148.65) {801.13}
Total Other Comprehensive Income(net of taxes) {1,051.86) [304.62)
XV, Total Cemprehensive Income for the Perlod {XHI+XIV) (5%,788.04} (37,551.56)
Total Comprehensive Incame attributable to
[1} Owners of the Company {59,787.20) {37,554.07)
{2) Non-Controlling Interests {0.84) 2.50
Total Comprehensive Income {59,788.04) {37,551.56)
XL Earning per Equity Share (for Continuing Operations) 36
1) Basic [17.73) {10.99)
2) Dituted {17.73) {10.99)
XVII. Earning per Equity Share {for Discontinuing Operations)
1} Basic - -
2) Diluted . -
XVl Earniing per Equity Share {for Discontinuing & Continuing Operations)
1) Basic (17.73) {10.99)
2) Diluted {17.73) . {10.99)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Malhotra Mankk & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 015848N

CA. Manik Malhotra}

Partner
M.No.: 054504

Place: Ludhlana
Bate: 13.02.2021
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For and on the beha!f of Board of Directors
of Sfi. Manufacturing Company Limited

{v.K.Goyal} (Navneet Gupta) (Rahu! Kapoor)
Director &CEQ Director &CFO Company Secretary
DIN: 02751391 DIN: 02122420



SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Detalls Current Year Details Previous Year
A [Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Taxes & Extraordinary items (58,735.34) {37,249.48)
Adjustments for Non Cash Items:
-Depreciation & Amortization 14,505.62 14,630.76
-Provision for Doubtful Debts 4,034.58 22,550.29
-Impatrment In Value of Capital Work In Progress 12,544.57 -
-Inventories Written Down to Net Realisable Value 802.84 -
-Allowances for Loans & Advances 28,065.16 2,333,96
-Interest Cost. 123.34 501.01
-Interest Income (436.18} [127.28)
-Dividend Income - (0.27)
-(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets {15.54) (340.14)
59,702.03 39,548.23
Ad]ustments for Changes in Working Capital:
-Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables (52.35) 703.50
-Increase/ (Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities 2,280.15 {431.70)
-Increase/ {Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilitles 19,975.13 48,656.70
-Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Provisions 23.28 (19.12)
-({Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (5,547.56) {7,308.18)
-[Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current Assets {27,191.27} 5,733.18
-{Increase}/ Decrease in Current Assets Tax (Net) [653.93) {662.84)
-{Increase}/ Decrease in Current Loans 26,916.57 300.63
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 2,277.97 18,027,99 4,126.51 51,058.77
Cash Generation from Cperations 18,994.68 53,396.52
-Taxes Paid - {0.03}
Net Cash from Operating Activities 18,994.68 53,395.55
B |Cash Flows from Investing Activitles
-Purchase of Plant, Property & Equipments (40.37) (31.54)
-{increase)/Decrease in Capital Work In Process 160,49 (17.46)
-Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 66.00 1,127.26
-Interest income 436.18 127.28
-Dividend Income - 0.37
-(Increase)/ Decrease in Others Financial Assets Non Current 10.09 21.01
«(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Assets {96.84) - - {1,954.4D)
-Increase/f{Decrease}in Non Current Provisions 4,91 (209.62)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 540.46 {937.11}
€ |Cash Flows from Financing Activities
-Increase/{Decrease) in Non Controlling Interest (0,84} 3.35
-Proceeds/{Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings {18,095.62) {50,351.80}
-Increase/(Decrease}in Other Financial Liabilities Non Current 6.85 -
-Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short term Borrowings {1,596.68} (1,488.21)
-Interest Cost {123,34) {501.01)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (19,809.52) (52,336.66)
Net Increase/{Decrease} In Cash & Cash Equivalent {274.48) 122.78
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 539,31 416.53
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 264.83 539.31

Subject to our Separate Report of Even Date
For Malhotra Manik & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 015848N

L
(CA. Manik Malhotra
Partner
M.No.: 0946504

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 13.02.2021
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For and on the behalf of Board of

SEL Manufa

ring Company Limited

¥

{V.K.Goyal) ,(savneetGupta) {Rahul Kapoor)

Director &CEQO  Director 8CFO Zompany Secretary
DIN: 02122420

DIN: 02751351
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INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT) NOTE NO.-6
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(1) Investment in Equity Instruments {Quoted-At Fair Value)
1) 6,248 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ each fully pald up of Reliance Industries Limited 9,51 8516
i) 778 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up of Dhanus Technolegies Limited - -
(2} Investment In Equity Instruments (Unguoted-At Falr Value)
Others
1} 299,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up of The Delhl Stock
Exchange Association Limited - 77.63
i) 14,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of Rythm Textile &
Apparels Park Limited 1.40 140
it} 1,108,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up of OPGS Power Guirat Pvt, Ltd. 5.56 5.56
(4) Investments In Preference Shares (At Cost) )
i} 3,692,530 9% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
of Rhythm Textile & Apparels Park Umited 4,062.22 4,062.22
{5) Investment In Mutual Funds {Ungquoted-At Falr Value)
1} 150,000 Units of Rs.20/- each of 5Bl Infrastructure Fund 16.66 22.58
1i) 50,000 Units of Rs.10/- each of SBI PSU Fund 3.8l 5.25
1ii} 55,187.638 Units of Rs. 10/- each of Union Multi Cap Fund 8.55 10.76
tv} 100,000 Units of Rs.10/- each of SBI Gold Fund 14.05 10,00
TOTAL 4,181.76 4,280.56
Market Value of Quoted Investments 85.16 85.16
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 30.68 30,68
Aggregate Amount of UnQuoted Investments 4,096.59 4,195.40
Aggregate Impairment in Value of Investments 210.19 132,55
OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS {NON CURRENT} NOTE NO. -7
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(#) Fixed Deposits with Banks 8,75 18.84
TOTAL 8.75 18.84
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS NOTE NO.-8
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
a) Security Deposits 1,779.71 1,682.86
b) Capital Advances 12,102.08 12,130.82
13,888.79 13,833.69
Allowance/Impalrment for-Doubtful Loans & Advances# 9,737.97 9,779.72
TOTAL 4,150.82 4,053.97
#Movement In the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
3L03.2020 . _ 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year - 9,779.72 9,796.53
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provision 41.75 16.81
Add: Provision made during the year - -
Balanee at the end of the year 9,737.97 8,779.72
INVENTORIES NOTENO.-9
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(Valued at Cost or Net Reallsable Value, whichever Is lower)
{a) Raw Materials 697.06 1,043.57
(b} Work In Progress 753.53 1,819.16
[c} Finished Goods
=In Godown 2,093.07 3,590.49
-In Transit 7.59 223,74
{d) Stockin Trade 221,52 51.25
(d) Stores & Spares 418.81 544,17
TOTAL 4,191.57 7,272.38
TRADE RECEIVABLES [CURRENT) NOTENO.-10
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAY
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
a} Trade Recelvables considered good-Secured - N
b) Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured 7,414.28 5,901.30
¢) Trade Recelvables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and - -
d} Trade Receivables-credit impaired 1,28,688.61 1,23,680.23
1,36,102.50 1,29,581.54
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 1,28,688.61 1,23,680.23
TOTAL 7,414.28 5,901.30
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at.the beginning of the year 1,23,680.23 1,01,129.85
Less: Ameunt collected and hence reversal of provision 7,306.83 949,44
Add: Provision made during the year 12,098.86 23,495.72
Balance at the end of the year 1,28,688.61 1,23,680,23




NOTE NO. -11

CASH 8B CASH EQUIVALENTS
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a) Cash In Hand 39.52 53.07
(b} Balances With Scheduled Banks
i) In Current Accounts 223.30 484.67
ii] in Fixed Deposits Accounts 201 157
TOTAL 264.83 539.31
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE NO. - 12
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.201%
Other Bank Balances
i} In Fixed Deposits Accounts 34.79 32,74
TOTAL 34.79 32.74
OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) NOTENO. -13
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.202¢ 31.03.2018
{Unsecured, considered good)
¥) Duty Drawback Receivable 448,71 760.22
11} Interest Subsidy Receivable 32,952.68 32,952.68
iii} Interest Receivable 25.39 9.04
: 33,426,78 33,721.95
Allowance/impairment for Doubtful Loans & Advances# 26,621.40 -
TOTAL 6,805.38 33,721.95
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Alloswance
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of provislon - -
Add: Provislon made during the year 26,621.40 -
Balance at the end of the year 26,621.40 -
CURRENT TAX ASSETS {NET} NOTE NO. -14
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
- 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
1) Prepaid Taxes 2,53291 1,878.98
TOTAL 2,532.81 1,878,98
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS _ ___ROTENO.-15
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{Unsecured, considered good)
i} Advances to Suppliers 5,441.86 5,177.07
il) Statutory Dues & Taxes 2,055.06 2,083.21
1ii) Others 1,880.44 1,507.51
9,377.35 8,767.79
Less: Mlowance for Doubtful Receivables [Expected Credit Loss Allowance)# 6,366.09 4,880.58
TOTAL 3,011.26 3,887.21
#Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,880.58 2,529.82
Less: Amount collected and hence reversal of pravision 34.45 513.25
Add: Provision matle during the year 1,519.97 2,864.01
Balance at the end of the year 6,366,09 4,880.58
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL NOTE NO. -16
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a} Authorised
1,000,000,000 Equity Shares 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
(b} 1ssued, Subscribed & Paid Up
331,347,000 Equity Shares Fully Paid Up 33,134.70 33,134.70
33,134.70 33,134.70
{c) Par Value per Share
331,347,000 Equity Shares Rs. 10/~
{d) Reconcillation_of the number of shares sutstanding
Patticulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2619
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Equity Shares 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Total 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Add: Addition durlng the year
Equity Shares - - - -
Total - - - -
Less: Deduction durlng the year
Equity Shares - = - -
Total ’ - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Equity Shares 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,313.47 33,134.70
Total 3,313.47 33,134.70 3,31347 33,134.70
{e) Shares In the company held by preference shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Dhira] Saluja 51,310,000 Shares 73.60%
Neeraj Saluja 12,400,000 Shares 17.78%

{e) Terms/rights, preference, restrictions attached to shares.

number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

shares underlying GDRs which were issued during 2012-13.

EQUITY SHARES: The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share
except holder of GDR will not have voting right with respect to the Deposited Shares. In'the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will
be entitled to recelve the realised value of the assets of the Company, remaining after payment of all preferential dues. The distribution will be In proportion to the

The Company Issued 220,000,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 per share consequent to Global Depository Recelpt {GDRs) issue of the company during|
the year 2012-13. Holders of Global Depository Receipt (GDRs) are entitled to receive dividends, subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, to the same extent
as the holders of Equity Shares. As on 31.03.2020, 75,705,249 shares (Previous Year 75,709,249 shares ) of the face value of Rs, 10/- each per share represent the

OTHER EQUITY NOTE NO.-17
PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a} Captial Reserve
Opening Balance 2,615.78 2,615.78
Add: Addition during the year - -
2,615.78 2,615.78
Less; Deduction during the year - -
2,615.78 2,615.78
{b} Securities Premium
Opening Balance — 51,866.83 - - E},866.83
Add: Addition during the year - -
51,B66,83 51,866.83
Less: Deductlon durlng the year - -
- 51,866.83 51,866.83
{¢) Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance 3,355.89 3,660.61
Add: Addition during the year 96.79 496.51
3,452.78 4,157.12
Less: Deduction during the year 1,148.65 801.13
2,304.13 3,355.99
{d) Surpius
QOpening Balance (3,67,206.14) [3.29,956.70)
Add: Addition during the year (58,735.34) (37,245.45)
{4,25,941.48) (3,67,206.14)
Less: Deduction during the year - -
{4,25,941.48} (3,67,206.14)
(e} Non Controlling Interests
Opening Balance 1831 14.96
Add: Addition during the year (0.84) 2.50
17.47 17.46
Less: Deduction during the year (0.00} {0.85}
17.47 18.31
TOTAL {3,69,154.74) (3,09,367.55)
BORROWINGS (NON CURRENT) NOTE NO.-18
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(a) Secured Loans
i) Term Loans
- From Banks 1,45,437.26 2,08,377.25
{b} Unsecured Loans (At Amortised Cost)
i} Loan from Others 35.00 35.00
i} Loan from Directors 7,429.53 6,871.93
{Interest free oans repayable in 2023-24)
Liability Component of Compound Financlal Instrument
{c} Preference Share Capital {At Amortized Cost) 4,568.68 4,210.95
69,710,000 1% Redeernable, Non Cuntulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares Fully Paid Up
1,61,47046 2,19,495.12




Terms and conditions of secured loans taken from banks and status of contuining default as at year end

Funded Interest | Working Capital | Funded Interest
Rupee Term Loan|  Rupee Term Rupee Term
Type of Loans I (RTL) Loan Il (RYL-N) Term Loan Term Loan Term Loan 1} Loan I {PL-tif)
(FITL-1) {wcCTL) [ WCTL FITL-l}
Sanctioned Amount 2,15,960.00 92,604.00 48,206.00 74,553.00 14,443.62 13,157.00
Balance as on 31,03.2020 2,06,643,74 72,098.87 18,453.76 73,578.79 13,383.20 1,005.36
Rate of Interest 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 10.65% 11.15%
Repayment Type Monthly Monthly Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Monthly
Repayment during the year ending
' 31/03/2021 31,408.63 11,252.92 - 13,055.36 1,842.15 102.79
31/03/2022 31,458.58 13,034,53 - 13,056.61 1,978.24 119.92
310312023 31,891.04 13,482.26 - 13,852.22 1,975.77 119.92
31/03/2024 10,767.57 2,514.18 - 3,372.47 - 100.16
Overdue Principle Amount 88,836.15 27,347.58 18,745.42 26,495.99 6,900.43 515.06
Qverdue Interast Amount 10,044.68 4,056.47 1,475.67 3,746.14 693.27 67.80
Overdue Since August 2015 July 2015 Aprll 2015 July 2015 e 2015 |November 2015

Details of security for term loans

*Long term borrowings from banks are secured by

the aquitable mortgage of entire Land & Bullding of the Comy

pany and further secured by all the fixed assets of the

Compary, immevabile & movable, both present and future ranking pari-passu basls and personal guarantes of the promoter directors. The said borrowings are further
secured, on parf-passu basls with short term lenders, by equitable mertgage of the following properties.

Sr. No, Onwer Detall of Property

1. Sh.R.S.5aluja Land & Building measuring 1K 13M at Rahon Road, Ludhiana

2. Smt. Sheh Lata Saluja Land measuring 1023.59 sq, yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhlana

3. Smt. Sneh Lata Salufa Land and bullding reasuring 155 sq. yds. at B-V443, Hazuri Road, Ludhiana
4. Sh. Neeraf Saluja Land measuring 700 sq.yds. at Rajpura Road, Vill.Pratap Singhwata, Ludhiana
5. 5h, Neeraj Saluja tand measuring 4840 sq.yds. at Village Jhande, Ludhiana

5. Smt. Ritu Saluja Land measuting 123,54 sq, yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhiana
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OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITES (NON CURRENT) NOTE NG.- 19
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a} Lease Payable 6.85 -
TOTAL 6.85 -
PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT) NOTE NO.-20
PARTICULARS ASAT ASAT
. 31.03.202¢ 31.03.2019
{a} Provision for Employee Benefits 178.38 17347
TOTAL 178.38 173.47
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS NOTE NO.-21
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a) Secured Loans
i) Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks 1,75,535.73 1,77,132.41
TOTAL 1,75,535.73 1,77,132.41

Details of security for working capital borrowings

i} Short term borrowings from banks are secured by the Hypothecation of Stock-in trade, Book Debts and Recelvables of the Company and further secured by the
second parri-passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee of the promoter directors and pledged of 36,729,044 equity shares of|
the company held by the promoters. The said borrowings are further secured, on pari-passu basis with term loan lenders, by equitable mortgage of the followlng

|oranerties

St. No. Owner Detlal of property

1. Sh. R.5.5aluja Land & Bullding measuring 1K 13M at Rahon Road, Ludhiana

2. Smt, Sneh Lata Saluja Land measuring 1023.59 sq. yds. at Village Bajra, Ludhiana

3, Smt. Sneh Lata Saluja Land and building measuring 155 sq. yds. at B-V443, Hazuri Road, Ludhiana
4, Sh. Meeraj Saluja Land measuring 700 sq.yds. at Rajpura Road, Vill. Pratap Singhwala, Ludhiana
5, Sh. Neera] Saluja Land measuring 4840 s¢.yds. at Village Jhande, Ludhiana

5, Smit. Ritu Saluja Land measuring 1023.59 4. yds, at Village Bajra, Ludhlana

Terms of repayment of loans repayable on demand

From banks are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.65% p.a.

TRADE PAYABLES NOTE NO. - 22
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2018
Trade Payables 11,958,99 12,011.34
TOTAL 1%,958.99 12,011.34
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {CURRENT) " NOTEND.-23
PARTICULARS ASAT AS AT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i} Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 2.27.502.47 1,69,840.62
ii) Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Others) 100.00 9174
iii) Interest Accrued and due on borrowings 20,084.06 20,084.06
iv) Employees Benefits 1,304.71 1,291.41
v) Payable to Vendors-Non Trade 343266 3,037.46
vi) Others Payable 8,068.2% 5,212.03
TOTAL 2,60,492.18 1,99,5572.32
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES NOTE NO.-24
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
i} Statutory Dues & Taxes 111.45 165,38
ii) Advances from Customers 2,353,34 18.26
TOTAL 2,464.79 184.64
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PROVISIONS (CURRENT} NOTE NO. -25
PARTICULARS AS AT ASAT
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
{a) Pravislon for Employee Benefits 731.87 708.59
TOTAL 731.87 708.59
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS NOTE ND. - 26
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Sale of Products
Finished Goods 13,283.64 35,932.85
Traded Goods - 1,034.40
Raw Material 62.83 164531
Other Operating Income
Sale of Services 20,244.74 21,361.15
Others 1,670.36 £99.15
TOTAL 35,261.58 60,672.87
OTHER INCOME NOTE NO. -27
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Export Incentlves 333.83 2,142.70
Interest 436,18 127.28
Qther income 156.32 21,52
Dividend Income - 037
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 8,937.31 6,505.49
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 15.54 340.14
Rental Income 22.82 26,23
TOTAL 9,902.99 9,168.72
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED NOTE NO. - 28
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock 78191 3,858.16
Add: Purchases {net) 4,23043 12,829.53
5,012.34 15,687.69
Less: Closing Stock 426.81 781.91
Cost of raw materlal consumed during the year (A} 4,575.53 15,905.78
Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 261.66 200.16
Add: Purchases {net} 2,232.29 3,551.29
249395 3,751.45
Less: Closing Stock 260.25 261.66
Cost of packing material consumed during the year {B) 2,233.71 3,489.79
TOTAL {A+B} 5,809.23 19,395.57
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE NOTE NO. - 29
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIQUS YEAR
Opening Stocks
Worsk in Process 1,819.16 1,461.25
Finished Goods 381424 4,652.48
Stock in Trade 51.25 5§19.06
{A) 5,684.64 6,932.79
Closing Stocks
Work in Process 753.53 1,819.16
Finished Goods 2,100.66 3,814.24
Stock In Trade 221,52 51.25
{8} 3,075.71 5,684.64
Decrease/({Increase) In Inventories {A-B) 2,608.94 1,248.15
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE . NOTE NO. - 30
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Wages,Salaries & Other Allowances 8,348.65 10,639.49
Contribution to PF, ES| & Other Funds 590.81 701.16
Staff & Labour Welfare 87.86 120.22
5,027.33 11,450.88
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FINANCIAL COSTS NOTE NO.-31
PARTICLILARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
) Bank Charges 139.73 183.26
b} Interest on
i} Others 123.34 501.01
TOTAL 263.06 684,27
DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSES NOTE NO.-32
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Depreciation of Tangible Assets 14,493.7% 14,622.24
Amortisation of Leasehald Land * 8.52 8.52
Depreciation of Right to Use Assets 331 -
TOTAL 14,505.62 14,630.76
OTHER EXPENSES NOTE NO. -33
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIQOUS YEAR
Powel & Fuel 17,734.35 23,357.14
Consumables & Repair Maintenance 3,684.73 6,259.72
Job Work Expenses 101,20 907.24
Printing & Stationery 14.45 11.22
Insurance 248,63 224,16
Fees & Taxes 164,52 152,33
Donation 0.34 0.74
Legal & Professional Charges 119.63 422.37
Postage & Courier Charges 47.48 60.22
Telephone & Fax Expenses 24.90 36.00
Statutory Auditors' Remuneration
~Audit Fee 373 7.35
-Tax Audit Fee 1.15 2.30
-Reimbursement of Expenses 017 0.28
Cost Auditors' Remuneration
-Audit Fee 112 112
General Repalr & Maintenance 7714 106.44
Office Expenses 44.59 58.97
Festival Expenses 125 30,14
Rent 40.11 50.51
Travelling & Conveyance 156,37 367.87
Water Charges 57.82 57.16
Service Tax Pald . 1.58
Advertisement 1.54 6.84
CIRP Expenses 723.06 -
Security Expenses - 4.55
Building Repair & Maintanenace 3.27 11.20
Vehicles Expenses 68,52 97.48
VAT Input Credit Reversal For Earlier Yeats - 375.54
Business Promotion 40.30 43.87
Commission 60,99 421,76
Rebate & Discount 581.30 -
Clearing Forwarding & Freight Qutward . 426.20 1,386.67
TOTAL 24,428.96 34,502.78
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS NOTE NO. - 34
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Impairment in Value of Capital Work in Progress 12,544.57 -
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables 4,034.58 22,550.29
Allowance/Impairment for Doubtful Loans & Advances 28,065.16 2,333.96
Inventories Written Down to Net Realisable Value 802,84 -
Impairmentin Value of Investments 77.63 -
TOTAL 45,524.7% 24,884.24
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED 2019-20

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

SEL Manufacturing Company Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India. its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the
National Stock Exchange. The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing, processing & trading of yarns, fabrics, readymade garments, towels and aviation sector. The registered
office of the company is located at 274, G.T.Road, Dhandari Khurd, Ludhiana, Punjab,

2. Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS}), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except far certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {"INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except
otherwise indicated.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements relate to SEL Manufacturing Company Limited {‘the company’) and its subsidiary
companies/firms.

In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financlal statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries are
combined on line-by-line basis by adding together the items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The inter group
balances and transactions and unrealized profits and losses are fully eliminated.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

The financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiaries except a subsidiary firm have been consclidated using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of
the Parent i.e, year ended March 31, 2020.

Non Controliing Interest’s in net profit of consolidated financial statements, for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the grougp.

Non Controlling Interest’s in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and equity of the Group’s shareholders.

The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of
shares in the subsidiaries is recognized In the financial statements as Goodwlll or Capltal Reserve as the case may be.

3.2 Use of astimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application
of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in
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the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

3.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group adopted ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. First time adoption has
been conducted retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as on the transition date. The
effect on the transition to Ind AS 115 is insignificant.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies performance obligation by transferring
promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of time or over a period
of time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognized as per the terms of relevant contractual

agreements/ arrangements. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the customer
obtains contrals of the asset.

Revenue from subsidiaries is recognized based on transaction price which is at arm’s length,

Revenue also includes price variations based on the contractual agreements and excludes goods & services tax. Revenue
from export sales are recognized on shipment basis. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. .

Sale of Goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized as and when the Group satisfies performance obligations
by transferring control of the promised goods to its customers,

Sale of Services: Revenue from the sale of services is recognized on the basis of the stage of completion. When the
contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are
eligible to be recovered.

Dividend income: Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease income: Lease agreements where the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset substantially vest
with the lessor are recognized as operating leases. Lease rentals are recognized on straight-line basis as per the terms of
the agreements in the statement of profit and loss. : : - :

Interest income: Income from interest is recognized using the effective Interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Export Incentives: Revenue in respect of the eligible benefits is recognized on post export basis.

3.4 Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower except for waste which is valued at net
realizable value. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is computed as under:

i} Inrespect of Raw Materials on FIFO basis.

i) In respect of Work in process and Finished Goods, at weighted average cost of raw material plus conversion cost &
packing cost incurred to bring the goods to their present condition & location.

i} In respect of trading goods, on specific identification method.

iv} In respect of Consumable Stores on weighted average basis.

The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of canversion and other related costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces,
defective inventories are duly provided for and valued at net realizable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued
at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above
cost, Net realizable value Is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

CHARTERE
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3.5 Foreign Currency Transactions
The functional currency of the group is an Indian rupee.
Other foreign currency transactions:

(i) Transactions In forelgn currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction
except sales that are recorded at rate notified by the customs for invoice purposes. Such rate is notified in
the last week of every month and is adopted for recording export sales of next month.

(i) Forelgn currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on reporting the same at balance sheet date are recognized as income or
expenses in period in which they arlse, except the exchange difference in case of fixed assets which have
been adjusted to the cost of fixed assets.

{iii) Foreign currency non monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost, re-stated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the year-end and the gain or Joss, is accumuiated in a foreign exchange fluctuation
reserve.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are
ready for use, as intended by the management. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
the asset after its use Is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for the plant and equipment of spinning and terry towe! units where useful life
has been technically assessed as 30 years. Property, plant and equipment which are added/ disposed off during the
year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. The Group
depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment cutstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date
are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is
capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit or net loss
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated
from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair
value less cost to sell.

Leased assets: Leasehold lands are amortized over the period of lease. Buildings constructed on leasehold land are
depreciated based on the useful life specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of
land is beyond the life of the building.

3.7 Goodwill and Intangible assets
Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of
the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwili is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances
indicate that the implied fair value of goodwilt is less than its carrying amount.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over useful lives on a stralght-line basis, from the date that they are available for use.

3.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of such assets,
up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as expenditure in the
year in which they are incurred. The capitalization of borrowing costs to be suspended during extended periods in
which active developments will be interrupted.
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3.9 Employee Benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months for rendering services are
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences,
performance Incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the periad in which the
employee renders related service.

(ii) Post Employment Benefits:
(a) Defined Contribution Plans:
Provident Fund: Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution

The Group contribution to Provident Fund is made in accordance with the provisions of the Employees Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 and is charged to the profit and loss account.

{b) Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity: The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment with the Group. Liabilities with regard to the Gratulty Plan are determined by actuarial
valuatton, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liabitity. Gains
and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The actual return of the portfalio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive
income, The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Long Term Employee Benefits: The liability for leave with wages is recognized an the basis of actuarial valuaticn at the
balance sheet date using projected unit credit method. .

3,10 Taxes
Tax Expense comprises of current income tax, deferred tax and Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement.

Current Tax: Current Tax Is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period after
considering tax allowances & exemptions.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liabllity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax Credit: Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized as tax asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent
there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specific
period.

CHARTERE
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3.11 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognizad, if
the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recaverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and their value in use. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset’in
earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position include cash in hand and at bank and short-term
deposits with original maturity period of three months or less,

3.13 Provisions and Contingant Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions: Provisions are recognized for liabllities that can be determined by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if:
() The Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

(ii) A probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle the obligation; and
(iii) The amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
{ii a present obligation arising from a past event when it is not probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or

{ii} a possible obligation, unless the prohability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent Assets: A Contingent asset is disclosed when possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence would be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

3.14 Earnings per share
Basic EPS s computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary equity
shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

3.15 Leases
The Group as a lessee: The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 2 lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset, the Group assesses whether: {n
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (li) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (jit) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset {“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases).and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements
includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs iess any
lease incentives and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset
or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

The Group as a lessor: Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognized
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.16 Financial instruments:
{i) Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
-Financial assets at fair value
-Financial assets at amortized cost
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit
and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized In other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for
Impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

-Business model test: The objective of the Group's business model is to hold the financia! asset to collect the
contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value
changes). .

-Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financia! asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

-Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

-Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency {sometimes referred to as an “accounting
mismatch”} that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabllities or recognizing the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI);
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
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- The 12- months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life
of the financial instrument).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
- All other receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether

" there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-months ECL Is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognize
impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increase in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Other Investments

- Quoted Investments: All other quoted investments are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income in the balance sheet.

- Unquoted Investments: All other unquoted investments are measured at fair value t"hrough Other
Comprehensive Income in the balance sheet, except those investments which the Group has chosen to measure at
cost as per Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments Paragraph BS.2.3,

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at
fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets} is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s statement of financial position) when:

-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through™ arrangement and either;

(a)the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement. It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of owrership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group alse recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on & basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

(i) Financial liabilities:
Classification as debt or equity: Financiat liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument

Initial recognition and measurement: All financial liabilities are recognized initlally at fair value and, In the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, foans and borrewings including bank overdrafts, and
redeemable preference shares.

Subsequent measurement: The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial Hablities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings: After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financia! liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. . S

3.17 Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or [1ability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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- Level 1 — Quoted {(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiiities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
Is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

3.18 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset
is current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; .

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
‘after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A fiability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

-It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle: Operating cycle of the Group is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, As the Group’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed
to be twelve months.

3.19 Exceptional Items
Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an ltem of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of
the Group is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Group, such income or

expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial
statements.

3.20 Government Grants & Subsidies
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that {i} the Group will
comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i) the grant/subsidy will be received. When the grant or subsidy
relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

3.21 Segment Reporting
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating officer {CO0), in deciding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance. The Group’s chief operating officer {COOQ} is the Managing Director & CEOQ.
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3.22

Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) — 7 "Statement of
Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating activities.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company in the financial statements are as set out above. The
application of a number of these policles requires the Company to use a varlety of estimation techniques and apply
judgment to best reflect the substance of underlying transactions. ‘

The Company has determined that a number of its accounting policies can be considered significant, in terms of the
management judgment that has been required to determine the various assumptions underpinning their
application in the financial statements presented which, under different conditions, could lead to material
differences in these statements. The actual results may differ from the judgments, estimates and assumptions made
by the management and will seldom equal the estimated results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgements: The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of
the Group that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Assets: The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax assets can
be utilized is based on the Group's forecast, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses,
and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. The tax rules in India in which the Group operates are
also carefully taken into consideration. If a positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a
deferred tax asset, especially when it can be utilized without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually
recognized in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or
uncertainties is assessed individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.

Contingences and commitments: In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations
and other claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low prebability of crystallizing or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes
but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financial
position.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Liability for sales return: In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed
criteria for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular, whether the
Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods. Following the
detailed quantification of the Company’s liability towards sales return, the management is satisfied that significant
risk and rewards have been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in
conjunction with the recognition of an appropriate liability for sales return. Accruals for estimated product returns,
which are based on historical experience of actual sales returns and adjustment on account of current market
scenario is considered by Company to be reliable estimate of future sales returns.

Allowance/Impairment for uncollected accounts receivable and other advances: Trade receivables and other
advances do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowance/impairment which is made on ECL, and the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of
the financial assets.
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35. The related party disclosure in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 “Related Party” issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given below:

Sr. No. Name of Related Party Relationship

1 3. E. Exports Subsidiary Partnership Firm

2 SEL Textiles Ltd. Subsidiary Company

3 SEL Aviation Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary Company

4 *Silverline Corporation Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Company

5 Mr, R. S. Saluja
Mr. Neeraj Saluja
Mr. Dhiraj Saluja Key Management Personnel
Mr. Navneet Gupta
Mr. V.K. Goyal

6 *Mrs. $neh Lata Saluja
*Mrs. Ritu Saluja Relatives of Key Management Personnel
*Mrs. Reema Saluja

7 *Shiv Narayan Investments Pvt, Ltd. Enterprises over which key management personnel and
*Saluja International relatives of such personnel is able to exercise significant
Rythm Textiles & Apparels Park Ltd. influence
*SEL Renewable Power Limited

*io transactions have taken place during the year.

Related Parties Transactions:

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars Key Management & Relatives of Enterprises over which Personal

KMP {KMP} significant influence
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Rent Paid - - 15.07 47,17
Services Received - - 9.89 23.64
Managerial Remuneration 145.80 334.80 - -
Closing Balance of Related Parties Debit/{Credit) (7,385.45} {6871.82) 257.30 -

36. Earnings Per Share: The calculation of Earnings per Share as disclosed in the statement of Profit & Loss has been in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS}-33 on “Earning per Share” issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

A statement on calculation of Basic & Diluted EPS is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Face value of equity shares Rs. 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 331,347,000 331,347,000
Profit/{Loss) for the year (continuing operations) Lakhs (58,736.18) {37,246.94)
Weighted average earnings per shares {basic and diluted) Rs. (17.73} {11.24)
Profit/{Loss} for the year (Discontinued operations) Lakhs - -
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) _ Rs. - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year {total operations} Lakhs (58,736.18) (37,246.94)
Weighted average earnings per shares (basic and diluted) RS. {17.13) {11.24)

138
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37. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

A, Contingent Liabilities: There are contingent liabilities in respect of the following items: {No outflow is expected
in view of the past history relating to these items) ‘

Partlculars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(i) Export Bills Discounted 1,054.60 1,054.60

(i) Income Tax (net of deposit under protest) - 3,614.40

(iii) Export Incentives obligations refundable in respect of allowance for 4,920.93 4920.93
foreign trade receivables*

L(iv) Security Deposits** 1,286.27 -

*Subject to further Interest and penalty
**refer rote no. 44

B. Capital Commitments o {Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars : : March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

38.

39

(1) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account

and not provided for(net of advances) 9,359.55 9,359.55

Further the Group has made impairment for capital advances amounting Rs. 9,737.97 lakhs outstanding since long
and the orders placed with capital goods suppliers are more than two year and escalation costs, if any, In these
purchase orders shall be in addition to figures reported above.

Pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench {“NCLT") by
State Bank of India against the Parent Company SEL Manufacturing Company Limited {(“Corporate Debtor” or the
"Company"), under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations
framed there under, as amended from time to time {"Code”), the NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order”) dated
April 11, 2018 {“Insolvency Commencement Date”} had admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate
insolvency resclution process {“CIRP") of the Corporate Debtor. Subsequentiy, the NCLT vide ks order dated April
25, 2018 ("IRP Order”) appointed Mr. Navneet Kumar Gupta as the interim resolution professional of the
Corporate Debtor (“IRP*). Due to legal interventions, CIRP was in abeyance from May 01, 2018 to May 21, 2018,
Subsequently, in the first meeting of the committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtor held on June 15, 2018iRpP .
was confirmed as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor {"Resolution Professional” or "RP").

Subsequently, a petition was filed by Mr. Dhira) Saluja, one of tha promoters and directars of the Corporafe
Debtor, before the High Court ("Petition”) wherein the High Court, vide its interim order dated June 22, 2018,
directed the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor to be kept in abeyance and directed the earlier board of directors of the

Corporate Debtor to protect the interest of the bank consortium. This Petition was transferred to the Hon'ble
Supreme Court (“Transferred Case”). The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order dated September 6, 2019 as prayed
for, dismissed the Transferred Case as withdrawn {“Withdrawal Order”). A copy of the Withdrawal Order was
published on September 11, 2019 {“Publication Date”). Accordingly, on and from the Publication Date, the CIRP of
the Corporate Debtor stands resumed. As part of duties casted upon the Resolution Professional {RP) under the
Code, the RP, has taken on record these financial statements and has authorized the directors of the Company to
sign these financial statemens.

SEL Textiles Limited, the one of the subsidiary of the company, submitted proposal for res?crutturing of its debts
was approved by Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell (“CDR Cell”} vide Letter of Approval (LOA) dt. 30.06.2014. The
cut-off date (COD) for implementation of CDR was 30“‘.September, 2013. The borrower’s executed Master
Restructuring Agreement (MRA) with CDR Lenders in September, 2014, The details of the Restructuring package as
approved by CDR cell were as under:

a}l Restructuring of repayment schedule for term loans under Technology Upgradation Funds Scheme (TUFS) and
Non-TUFS Term Loans, reduction in interest rates, additional facilities in the form of Working Capital Term
Loan (WCTL} & Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL).

b} Lenders with the approval of CDR EG shall have the right to recompense the reliefs/sacrifices/waivers
extended by respective COR lenders as per the CDR guidelines. The recompense payable is contingent on
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40.

41.

42,

43,

ifi.

various factors including Improved performance of the Company and many other conditions, the outcome of
which is currently materially uncertain,

However, the credit facilities envisaged and sanctioned under CDR package were riot released by the lenders to the
company, which resulted in sub-optimum utilization of manufacturing facilities. Due to non-disbursement of funds
the company could not complete their spinning project where substantial amount were already incurred. All this
has led to adverse financial performance and erosion in net worth of the company. Also the said company are
facing cash flow mismatch and are not able to serve debt obligations-as per the terms of CDR package sanctioned
earlier.

Since, the subsidiary company was finding it difficult to serve its debt obligations, they have requested their
lenders for a second/deep restructuring of its debts. Considering the state of art manufacturing facilities of the
tompany, most modernized technology, skilled labour force, professional management and inherent viability of
the said Company, the lenders have In-principle agreed for second/deep restructuring of the debts,

Due to non disbursement of credit facilities the company had suffered operational logses as well as capital losses.
Therefore, the company has presented before the Adjudicating Authority counter claim & claim of set off against
the banks. ‘

In the case of Parent Company, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated under “Insolvency
and Bankruptey Code, 2016”. In view of this, the Company has stopped providing interest accrued and unpaid
effective 1st April, 2016 in its books. And in the case one of its subsidiary company, the secured lenders have
stopped charging interest on debts, since the dues from the company has been categorized as Non Performing
Asset and the company is in active discussion/negotiation with their lenders to restructure their debts at &
sustainable level including waiver of unpaid interest. In view of the above, the Parent Company & one of its
subsidiary has stopped providing interest accrued and unpaid effective 1 April 2015 in its books. The amount of
such accrued and unpaid interest {Including penal interest) not provided for is estimated at Rs. 81,797.14 lakhs for
the year ended 31st March,, 2020 and accordingly the same has not been considered for preparation of the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020. Due to non provision of the interest expense, net loss
for the year ended March 31, 2020 is reduced by Rs. 81,797.14 lakhs. Further the Financial Liability is reduced by
Rs. 285,425.94 lakhs and correspondingly the equity is increased by the same amount.

Resolution plan received for SEL Manufacturing Company Limited, from consortium of ArrEss Industries Private

Limited & Leading Edge Commercial FZ, has been approved by Committee of Creditors oh October 6, 2020 under

provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code and related Regulations. The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal
has approved the Resolution Plan on 10™ February, 2021,

Exceptional Items for the year includes:
During the year the group has made an allowance for doubtful trade receivables under Expected credit losses
(ECL) method ageregating to Rs. 4,034.58 lakhs, net of amount collected and provision made, in compliance of Ind
A5 109 which is charged to Staterment of Profit & Loss as an exceptiona! item. Though the group strongly believes
that these trade receivables are fully recoverable.

il. The group has given capital, trade advances to the suppliers and other current assets that are outstanding for a

long time. In view of reduction in activities, the materials and services could not be called from such suppliers. In
compliance of Ind AS 36 impairment for capital & trade advances and other current assets amounting to Rs.
28,065.16 lakhs, net of amount adjusted and provision made, which is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss as
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iv. The Company has initiated the pracess of identifying non-moving, slow moving, obsolete and damaged inventory

in finished goods during the year. The company has recognized an aggregate amount of Rs, 803 lakhs as
reduction in value of inventories due to writs down thereof to net realizable value, which is charged to Profit &
Loss Statement as an exceptional itemn.

v.The Company has impaired the investment in others amounting to Rs. 77.63 lakhs, which is charged to Profit &

44.

45.

46.

47.

&

49

h

50.

51

52.

53.

Loss as exceptional item

There are no long term centracts, as on the date of balance sheet, including derivative contracts for which there
are any material foreseeable [osses,

Notice received from Madhya Pradesh Electricity Board: The MP State Electricity Board had issued a “notice of
discontinuance of supply” on 11th March 20 {against demand raised on 12th Dec 2019) upon the Company
demanding as due and payable INR 1286.27lakhs on account of a ravislon of the security deposit in terms of
Madhya Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (Security Deposit) (Revision-1) Regulations, 2009 {“MERC
Regulations”) and other energy charges,

With reference to the Bank Balances of Current Accounts under the head Cash & Cash Equivalents, an amount of
Rs. 1.08 crores could not be substantiated due to non-availability of Bank Statements which pertains to the period
which is prior to the commencement of the CIRP. To the best of our knowledge these amounts pertain to the cut-
back account and may have been appropriated towards loan outstanding by respective banks. However, the bank
statements have not been provided by the respective banks, therefore, the balance amounts have been presented
under Suspense Account,

During the year, Central Bureay of Investigation carried out search & seizure action at the registered office of the
Company and the residence of the erstwhile Directors of the Company on 5th November 2019 from 09.30 AM to
09.00 PM. under section 165 of the Criminal Procedure Code on the Company and its directors. The consequential
proceedings are in progress.

Subsequent to the year end March 31, 2020, Central Bureau of Investigation carried out search & seizure action at
the registered office of one of the subsidiary company SEL Textiles Limited and the residence of the Directors of
the Company on 14th August, 2020 under section 165 of the Criminal Procedure Code on the Company and its
directors. The consequential proceedings are in progress. i

Puring the year, the Company has received notice dated February 13, 2020 on February 26, 2020 from the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs further ordering the investigation of books of accounts and papers under section 210{1)(c) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the erstwhile Directors of the Company under section 217(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 have been issued summans to appear before the authorities, The consequential proceedings are in progress.

During the year, the Company has received summon dated March 4, 2020 on March 12, 2020 from the Directorate
General of GST Intelligence under section 14 of the Central Excise Act, 1944 to give evidence truthfully on such
matters concerning the enquiry as may be asked and produce the documents and records for examination. The
consequential proceedings are in progress.

During the vear, the Company has received summon dated November 6, 2019 from the Directorate of
Enforcement (“ED”} u/s 37 of the FEMA, 1959 read with Section 131 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Section 30 of
Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, Summon was issued in matter of (GDRs issued by the SEL for which an exhaustive
list of documents was being asked to be furnished to them as per Annex A of the said order ranging from details of
GDR issued, foreign subscribers, foreign and Indian mediator involved with overseas banks, movement of
subscribed funds and its end utilization, adherence of applicable laws for pricing of GDR,

During the year, with reference to the Global Depository Receipts {“GDR") of the company, the BNY Mellon has
resigned as Dapository Bank for the company’s Depository Receipts {“DR") program through letter dated 0g™
December 2019,

With reference to interest subsidy receivable, the subsidies are to be released by the Ministry of Textiles and MP
Government and the Company is not hepeful of recelving the same. During the year, a provision for impairment
has been recorded for INR 26,621.40 lakhs (included above in note no, 42(iti}) and the same does have an impact
on the losses of the company.
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54. Subsequent to the year end March 31, 2020, the Principal Commissioner of Income Tax (Central), Ludhiana filed an
appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana which was heard on November 4, 2020 in the matter
pertaining to the assessment u/s 153 w.r.s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the assessment years 2010-11,
2011-12 & 2013-14,which was completed on January 31, 2017 where an amount of INR 280.00 crores was
demanded from the Holding Company. Appeals that were filed before the CIT (A) on July 27, 2017 were decided by
the CIT {A) on December 29, 2017 against the company. On February 02, 2018, Company filed an appeal before the
ITAT, Chandigarh bench against the order of CIT (A) and the same had been decided by the ITAT in the favor of the
Company on February 28, 2019,

55. Lease Rent

i. During the last financial year, Factory Building had taken on lease for 5 years & Office Premises is taken on lease
for 11 months with the aption of renewal. The particulars of these leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013
Future Minimum lease payments obligation an non-cancellable operating - 218.29
leases

Not later than one year - 76.79
Later than ane year and not later than five years - 141.50
Later than five years - -
Lease payment recognized in Profit and Loss Account 40.11 90.51

it. Rent Income also includes Lease Rentals received towards Factory Building & Office Premises. Such operating
leases are generally for a period of 5 to 15 years. The particulars of these leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Future Minimum fease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 77.18 88.97
Not fater than one year 18.20 16.50
Later than one year and not {ater than five years 47.90 46.28
Later than five years 11.08 26.19
Lease Income recognized in Profit and Loss Account 23.82 26,23
56. Capital Work In Progress includes, Project and Pre-operative Expenses pending allocation to fixed assets:
Particulars March 31,-2020 - March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 9,078.28 9,078.28
Add: Expenses incurred during the year - -
Less: Expenses impaired during the year 671.00 -
Closing Balance 8,407.28 9,078.28

57. Segment Information: Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues: In accordance
with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the chief executive officer {CEO} of the Group reported that the Group is
engaged in the business of manufacturing & processing of textile products i.e. a single business and all business
activities revolve around this segment.

Geographical information: The Company operates in two principal geographical areas - India and outside India

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information
about its non-current assets* by location of assets are detailed below.

Particulars Revenue from external customers Non-current assets®

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
India 30,880.52 39,208.69 248,3299.91 275,533.94
Outside India 4,562.67 21,464.19 - -
Total 35,443.19 606,72.87 248,399.91 275,533.94

*Non-current assets exclude those relating to financial assets and deferred tax assets.

I

Information about major customers: Two customer contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue during the

financial year 2019-20.
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58. The summarized position of Post-Employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the Profit &
Loss Account and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 19) are as under:

a. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity: The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the
Group's financial statements as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
’ Change In benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the beginning 775.36 799.65
Service cost ] 167.93 175.74
Interest expense 54.28 61.97
Remeasurements-Actuarial (gains)/ losses {99.67} (223.11)
Benefits paid : {71,20) (38.90)
Present Value of obligations as at the end 826.69 775.36
Change in Fair Value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 66.77 71.94
Expected return on plan assets 4,57 5.58
Remeasurements-Actuarial (gains)/ losses ’ 1.71 . (0.79)
Contributions 92.86 28.94
Benefits paid (71.20) (28.90)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 94.81 66.77
Funded status {731.87} {708.59)

Expenses recognized tn Statement of Profit and Loss
Amount for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee

henefit expenses.
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Service cost 167.93 175.74
Net interest/cost on the net defined benefit liability/asset 49,61 56.39
Net gratuity cost 167.93 232.14

Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 recognized in statement of ather comprehensive income:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Actuarial {gains) / losses (101.28) {222.32)

Actuarial Assumptions
The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit abligations as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are set out

below:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate 7.00% 7.75%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation
Levels 5.00% ’ 5.00%
Sensitivity Analysis{in lakhs)
. 31-03-2020
Particulars
Decrease | Increase
Discount Rate {-/+1%) 904.85 759.68
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 9% 8%
Salary growth Rate {-/+1%) 75;9.690 905.65 9%
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity}
. 821.00 833.90
Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 1% 1%

{% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
b. Provident Fund

During the year the group has recognized an expense of Rs. 511.45 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 629.06 lakhs) towards
provident fund scheme.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS

143



SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

2019-20

¢. Leave Encashment
During the year the group has recognized an expense of Rs. 59.43 lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 80.24 lakhs).

59. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments at the end of each reporting period is as follows: {Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars Cost FVTPL FVTCC Amortized Cost
31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Investments in
- Equity Instruments £6.96 6.96 - - 69.51 162.80 - -
- Others - - - - 43.07 48,59 - -
Other Financial Assets - - - - - - 8.75 18.84
Current Assets
Trade Receivables’ - - - - - - | 136,102.89 | 129,581.54
Other Financial Assets - - - - - - 6,805.38 33,721.95
Cash & Cash - . - . - - 264.83 539.31
Equivalents
Bank Balances other } 3 ) ) _ ) 34.79 32.74
than above
TOTAL FINANCIAL 6.96 6.96 - - 112.58 211.29 | 143,207.89 | 163,594.38
ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ]
Non Current Liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - | 161,470.46 | 219,495.12
Current Liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - | 175,535.73 177,132.41
Trade Payables - - - - - - | 11,958.99 12,011.34
Other Financial - . - - . - | 260,492.18 | 199,557.32
Liabilities
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES - - - - s o 609,457.36. 608196.19
# Including allowance for doubtful receivables amounting Rs. 128688.61 lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 123680,23 lakhs}.
60. Revenue from cperations for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows:

{In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from sale of products 15,016.84 28,121.69
Revenue from job work 20,244.74 32,551.18
Total Revenue from Qperations 35,261.58 60,672.87

Disaggregate Revenue Information: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers
for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 by type of goods and services.

(In lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2020 March21, 2019

Terry Towels 5,558.62 21,714.28

Yarn 2,114.16 2,176.58

Garments 16.79 573.11

Knitted Cloth 12,22 1,288.18

Others 2,406.66 2,369.56

Job Work 25,113.13 2,551.16

Total 35,261.58 60,672.87

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.
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Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the
remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is
on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by
several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue

that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

61. Fair Value Measurement
The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
{In Lakhs)
Falr Value Measurement using
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.02.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Non Curcent Investments ’
- Fair Value through OCI £69.51 85.16 43.07 126.22 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 580,024.04 582,341.26 - -
62. Financial Risk Management

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and other current
liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group operations. The Group has loans
and recelvables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations.
The management of the Group has set out the Group’s overall business strategies and its risk management policy. The
Group’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the company. The company policies include financial risk management policies covering specific areas,
such as market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk). Periodic reviews are
undertaken to ensure that the Policy's policy guidelines are complied with. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk. The Group is exposed to the
following risks related to financial instruments. The Group has not framed formal risk management policies; however,
the risks are monitored by management on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial
instruments, investment in securities, including derlvative financial instruments, for speculative or risk management
purposes.

The Board of Directars reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

(a) Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans & borrowings and
deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March 2020 and 31st
March 2019. The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

i) The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of the assumed changes in  interest rates
on the net interest income for one year, based on the average rate of borrowings held during the year ended 31st
March, 2019, all other variables being held constant. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions.

{b} Foreign Currency Risk Management: The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

{¢) Liquidity Risk Management: The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash
flow that is generated from operations. The Group has outstanding bank borrowings. The Group is passing through a
phase of llquidity stress and there is a mismatch in cash flows. Due to this, the capacities of the Group are running
at sub-optimal level. The Group Is at an advanced stage of negotiations with the banks for restructuring of its debt
which would correct the cash flow mismatch. The Group believes that post restructuring, the Group would be able
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to generate enough cash inflows to meet its working capital requirements in the medium and long run. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

{d) Credit Risk Management: Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk has always been managed by the Group through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the
company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company
uses expected credit loss model to assess the Impairment loss or gain.The Group has exposure to credit risk from
trade receivable balances on sale of Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns. The Group has entered into short-term
agreements with companies incorporated in overseas to sell the Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns. Therefore
the Group is committed, in the short term, to sell Readymade Garments, Towel and Yarns to these customers and
the potential risk of default is considered low. For other customers, the Group ensures concentration of credit does
not significantly impair the financial assets since the customers to whom the exposure of credit is taken are well
established and reputed industries engaged in their respective field of business. The creditworthiness of customers
to which the Group grants credit in the normal course of the business is monitored regularly.

(e) Capital Risk Management: The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The director’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business,

No Changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31st March 2020 and 31st
March 2018.

63. Deferred Tax Recognized (IND AS 12):

1. Income tax

a} The Company has not recognised any income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive
income during the year on account of accumulated losses.

b) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities Year ended Year ended
31st March, 31st March,
2020 2019
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 70,598.87 69,498.87
Right of use assets 32.64 -
Deferred tax assets* :
Provision for gratuity {731.86) (708.58}
Provision for leave encashment (178.38) (173.47}
Provision for bad debts/advances {1,78,175.79) (1,45,318.90)
Provision for bonus (708.69) {592.22)
Lease liabilities - (33.13) -
Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses (2,98,467.79) (2,83,155.56)
Deferred tax [assets)/ liabilities {4,07,664.13) {3,60,489.87)

*In accordance with Ind AS 12, recognition of deferred tax asset have been restricted to the deferred tax liability as there is
no reaschable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets will be realised.
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c) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised with respect of the following items, because it is not prebable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom:

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 31st March,
2020 2019
Deductible temporary difference - -
Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses {2,98,467.79) {2,83,195.56})

(2,98,467.79)  (2,83,195.55)

d} Reconcillation of effective tax rate Year ended Year ended
31ist March, 31st March,
2020 2019

The major components of income-tax expense and the reconciliation of tax expense based on the effective tax rate of the
Company at 34.944% and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Profit before tax & After Exceptional items {2,61,559.77) (25,697.39)
Add: Exceptional ltems 2,48.305.24 17,289.00
Profit before tax (13,254.37) (8,532.94)

Less: Capital gains (taxable under long term capital gain) - -

Profit before tax (business loss) {13,254,37) {8,532.94)
Income tax expense calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits (34.944%) _ _

Less : Unrecorded deferred tax assets on carry forward losses and other temporary
differences - -

Income Tax expense i - -

e) Tax losses carrled forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows: - - -
Financial Year 31st March, 31st March,

2020 2019
2011-12 25.46 25.46
2012-12 55.42 55.42
2013-14 11,672.13 11,672.13
2014-15 84.67 - 84.67
2015-16 . 49,638.63 49,638.63
2015-17 70,930.27 70,930.27
2017-18 18,487.08 18,437.08
2018-19 8,065.52 8,965.52
2019-20 2,339.88 2,338.73
Unabsorbed depreciation 1,36,268.72 1,20,356.64
Total . 2,98,467.79 2,83,195.56

64. On account of COVID-19 pandemic the Company has made assessment of its liquidity position for the next year
and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments, inventories and trade receivables as at the date of the balance sheet. The Company has considered
internal and external sources of information for niaking said assessment. Basis the evaluation of the current
estimates, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets and no material adjustments is
required in the financial statements. Given the uncertainties associated with nature, condition and duration of
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COVID-19, the Company will closely menitor any material changes arising of the future economic conditions and
any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these
material changes to economic condition arise

65. List of Subsidiaries which are included in the Consolidation and the Company’ effective holdings therein are as

under:
Name of Subsidiary Country of Effective Ownership in Subsidiaries as at
Incorporation
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
SEL Textiles Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
SE Exports India '99.00% 99.00%
SEL Aviation Private Limited India 97.54% 97.54%
Silverline Corporation Limited.* India 97.63% 97.63%

*Subsidiary of SEL Textiles Limited

66. Additional Information as required under Schedule !l to the Companies Act, 2013 of entities consolidated as

Ludhiana
13.02.2021

Place:
Date:
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Subsidiary:
Name of the subsidiary Net Assets i.e, Total Assets Share in Profit or Sharein Other Share in Total
minus Total Liabilitias) Loss Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidate Consolida Other Totat
d Net Asset ted Profit Comprehe Comprehe
or Loss nsive nsive
Income Income
Parent Company
SEL Manufacturing Ca. Ltd. 143.38 (481,773.37) 432,61 | {2,54,101.36) 68.23 {717.71) 426.20 | {254,819.07)
Subsidiaries
SEL Textiles Limited 18.92 (63,583.78) 1270 (7.458.37) 10.37 {109.09) 12.66 (7,567.46)
SEL Aviation Pvt. Limited {0.21) 716.63 {0.00} {0.06} - - 0.00 (0.06}
Silverline Corporation Ltd. {1.21) 4,060.89 (0.00} {0.13) - - (0.00} (0.13)
S E Exporis 0.01 15,76 (0.08) 47.97 - - 0.08 47.97
Minority interestin all {0.01) 17.47 [0.00) (0.84) - - (0.00} (0.54)
subsidiaries
Eliminations {6D.87) 204,526.37 {345.23) 202,776.61 21.40 {225.06) (338.78) 202,551.55
Total 100.00 (336,020.04) 100.00 {58,736.18) 100.00 (1,051.86) 100.00 [59,788.04)
67. Note No. 1 to 66 forms integral part of balance sheet and statement of profit floss.
For Manik Malhotra & Associates For and on the behalf of Board of
Chartered Accounta SEL Manyfacturing Company Limited
FRN: 015848N N
[32_\.'-3 IQ
{CAManik Mal {V.K.Goyal) {Navneet Gupta) {Rahul Kapoor)
Partner Executive Director Executive Director Company Secretary
M. No.: 094604 DIN:02751391 DIN: 02122420




SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for andit report with modified opinion) submitted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31,2020
(Consolidated Financial Results)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
L SL Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before (audited figures
adjusting for after adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
1. Turnover/Total Income 45,164.57 45,164.57
2 Total Expenditure 58,375.96 1,40,341.96
(Excluding Exceptional Items and
Tax adjustments)
3. | Net Profit/-(Loss) -58,736.18 -1,40,702.18
4. | Earnings Per Share -17.72 -42.46
5. | Total Assets 2,76,836.69 2,76,667.69
6. | Total Liabilities 6,12,839.26 8,98,470.26
7. Net Worth -3,36,002.57 -6,21,802.57
8. | Any other financial item(s) (as felt None None
appropriate by the management)

IL | Audif Qualification (each audit qualification separately)
a. Details of Audit | Regarding non provision of interest on borrowings from banks
Qualification {classified as NPA) amounting Rs. 81797 lakhs & Rs 76136 lakhs
(eamount calculated after considering the rates and terms and
conditions stipulated originally as per COR package) for the year
ended 31% March, 2020 & 31" March 2019 respectively. The
same is not in compliance with the requirements of para 27 of
the Ind AS I1-Presentation of Financial Statements w.r.t,
preparation of financial statements on accrual basis.
b. Type of Audit Qualification: | Qualified Opinion
Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion
C. Frequency of qualification: | Fourth Time
Whether appeared  first
time/repetitive/since  how
long continuing
d. For Audit Qualification(s) | In the case of Parent Company, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution

where the impact is
quantified by the audifor,
Management’s Views:

Process has been initiated under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016". In view of this, the Company has stopped providing interest
accrued and unpaid effective 1st April, 2016 in its books. And in the
case one of its subsidiary company, the secured lenders have stopped
charging interest on debts, since the dues from the company has been
categorized as Non Performing Asset and the company is in active
discussion/negotiation with their lenders to restructure their debts at
a sustainable level including waiver of unpaid interest. In view of the
above, the Parent Company & one of its subsidiary has stopped
providing interest accrued and unpaid effective 1 April 2016 in its
bocks. The amount of such accrued and unpaid interest (including
penal interest) not provided for is estimated at Rs. 81,797 lakhs for
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the year ended 31st March,, 2020 and accordingly the same has not
been considered for preparation of the financial statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2020, Due to non provision of the interest
expense, net loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 is reduced by Rs.
81,797 lakhs. Further the Financial Liability is reduced by Rs. 285,631
lakhs and correspondingly the equity is increased by the same

amount.

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:

“NA--
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31 . 2020
(Consolidated Financial Results)

IL.

Audit Qualification (each aundit qualification separately)

Details of Audit

Qualification

The company has provided for impairment of Capital work in
progress by Rs.12,544 Lacs as per Ind AS-36 for the year ended
March 31, 2020. As per representation given by Resolution
Professional, the impairment of Capital WIP is done on the basis
of valuation report as at the Insolvency Commencement Date.
However the said valuation Reports are not provided to us
considering the confidentiality of the same. Hence, we are
unable to justify its reasonableness.

Type of Audit Qualification:

Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion

Qualified Opinion

Frequency of qualification:
Whether appeared first
time/repetitive/since ~ how
long continuing

First Time

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact s
quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views:

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:

() Management’s
estimation on the impact of
audit qualification:

“N.A-—-

(ii) If management is unable
to estimate the impact,
reasons for the same:

The Corporate insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated
under “Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016”. In view of this,
the impairment of Capital WIP is done on the basis of valuation
report gs at the Insolvency Commencement Date. However, the
said vafuation Reports are not shared to any person/authority
considering the confidentiality of the same.

(1ii) Auditors’ Comments on
(1) or (ii) above:

“N.A-
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020
(Consolidated Financial Results)

II.

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately)

Details of Audit

Qualification

The Group has not provided to us for our review any working
regarding impairment testing conducted to assess recovergble
amount of Capital work in progress of Rs 38,990 lakhs {relating
to subsidiary company) outstanding as at March 31, 2020. We
are unable to comment on whether the company needs to make
a provision in respect of impairment losses on above as required
under Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets..

Type of Audit Qualification:

Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion

Qualified Opinion

Frequency of qualification:
Whether appeared  first
time/repetitive/since  how
long continuing

Third Time

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is
quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views:

For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:

1) Management’s
estimation on the impact of
audit qualification:

~N.A.--

(i1) If management is unable
fo estimate the impact,
reasons for the same:

The Company’s Subsidiary was implementing its Spinning
project which got stuck due to non-disbursement of credit
facilities by the Banks. However, the Company expects
that the project would be completed. Therefore, impairment
testing was not conducted.

(iii} Auditors’ Comments on
(1) or (ii) above:

We are unable to comment on whether the company needs to
make a provision in respect of impairment losses on above as
required under Ind AS 36.

CHARTERE
ACCOUNTAN
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020
(Consolidated Financial Results)

II. | Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately)
a. Details of Audit | The Consolidated financial results, in respect of Borrowings
Qualification (Non Current, Short Term Borrowings and other Financial
Liabilities (Current) respectively contains secured loans from
banks and current maturities thereof. There is shortfall in the
carrying value of the security against the secured loans
consequently the loans are not fully secured,
b. | Type of Audit Qualification: | Qualified Opinion
Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion
C. Frequency of qualification: | Third Time
Whether  appeared  first
time/repetitive/since  how
long continuing
d. For Audit Qualification(s) | --N.A.-~
where the impact is
quantified by the auditor,
Management’s Views:
e. For Audit Qualification(s)
where the impact is not
quantified by the auditor:
(i) Management’s | --N.A.--

estimation on the impact of
andit qualification:

(i1) If management is unable
to estimate the impact,
reasons for the same:

The carrying value of the security has reduced due to
impairment of advances, trade receivables etc for the
Company and one of its subsidiary. Further, inclusion of
Corporate Guarantee in financial statement has increased
the borrowings without corresponding increase in security
value.

(iii) Auditors’ Comments on
(1) or (ii) above:

Management comments are self explanatory, the disclosure
of bank borrowings classification between secured and
unsecured not given in financial statements.
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submltted
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results:
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020
(Consolidated Financial Results)

IL. | Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately)

a. Details of Audit | The Group has not provided for reversal of input tax amounting
Qualification to Rs. 169 lakhs (relating to subsidiary company) on trode
payables outstanding for more than 180 days under rule 37 of
CGST Rules and Sec. 16(2) of the CGST Act..

b. Type of Audit Qualification: | Qualified Opinion

Qualified Opinion/
Disclaimer of Opinion/
Adverse Opinion

C. Frequency of qualification: | First Time
Whether appeared  first
time/repetitive/since  how
long continuing

d. For Audit Qualification(s) | The said is mnot provided since the amount has been
where  the impact is | disputable. Due to non provision of the same, net loss for
quantified by the auditor, | the year ended March 31, 2020 is reduced by Rs. 169
Management’s Views: lakhs. Further Loans and Advances would have been
reduced by Rs.169 lakhs for the year ended March 31,
2020.

e. For Audit Qualification(s) | --N.A.--

where the impact is not

quantified by the auditor:
.
Place: Ludhiana ﬂsz / C /)
Dated:13.02.2021 (ED & CEO) (Director & CFO) (Statutory Aditors
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SEL MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
274, Dhandari Khurd, G.T. Road,
Ludhiana 141014
Punjab, (India)
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